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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SERVICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE. CONCORD, NH 03301

6O3-271.4501 l-800-«52-3345 Ext. 4501

Fax:603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

July 14. 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing contract with Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (VC#1177677),
Newmarket, NH, for Reproductive and Sexual Health Services, by increasing the price limitation
by $171,541 from $431,505 to $603.046 with no change to thexontract completion date of
December 31, 2023, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 59.32% Federal Funds.
40.68% General Funds.

#41C.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on December 22, 2021, item

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902010-5530 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS. HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV. BUREAU OF COMM & HEALTH SERV, FAMILY PLANNING
PROGRAM 100% Federal Funds

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Numt>er

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022
074-500589

Grants for Pub Asst

and Rel 90080206 $33,775 $0 $33,775

2023 074-500589

Grants for Pub Asst

and Rel 90080017
$0 $22,070 $22,070

2023 074-500589

Grants for Pub Asst

and Rel 90080206
$33,775 $81,103 $114,878

2024 074-500589

Grants for Pub Asst

and Rel 90080206
$16,888 $45,772 $62,660

Subtotai $84,438 $148,945 $233,383

The Dtpartmentof HeaUh and Human Services' Mission is U> join communilies and (amilies
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health.oJid-independence.
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and the Honorai>le Council
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05-95-45*450010'6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, AND
TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES 100% Federal Funds

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022
074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst

and Rel

45030203
$48,494 $0 $48,494

2023
074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst

and Rel

45030203
$48,494 $580 $49,074

2024
074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst

and Rel

45030203
$24,247 $2,521 $26,768

Subtotal $121,235 $3,101 $124,330

05-95-90-902010-5530 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF COMM & HEALTH SERV, FAMILY PLANNING
PROGRAM 100% General Funds

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022
102-500731

Contracts for

Prog Serv. 90080207 $90,333 $0 $90,333

2023 102-500731

Contracts for

Prog Serv. 90080207
$90,333 $9,957 $100,290

2024 102-500731

Contracts for

Prog Serv. 90080207
$45,166 $9,538 $54,704

Subtotal $225,832 $19,494 $245,327

Total $431,505 $171,541 $603,046

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is provide family planning clinical services. STI and HIV
counseling and testing, cancer screening and health education materials for low-income
individuals in need of sexual and reproductive health care services.

Approximately 1698 individuals will be served under this Agreement through December
31. 2023.

The Contractor has provided the Department a written, signed attestation asserting that
they have reviewed and are in compliance with the Title X regulation (42 CFR, Part 59), and that
they do not provide abortion services. As such, this provider is not a reproductive health facility
as defined in RSA 132:37. 1.
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Reproductive health care and family planning are critical public health services that must
be affordable and easily accessible within communities throughout the State. Through these
contracts, the Department is partnering with a federally qualified health center located in a rural
area to ensure that access to affordable reproductive health care is available in all areas of the
State. Family Planning services reduce the health and economic disparities associated with lack
of access to high quality, affordable health care. Individuals with lower levels of education and
income, uninsured, underinsured, individuals of color, and other minority individuals are less likely
to have access to quality family planning services.

The Contractor will provide family planning and reproductive health services to individuals
in need with a heightened focus on vulnerable and low-income populations including, but not
limited to the Uninsured; Underinsured; individuals who are eligible and/or are receiving Medicaid
services, adolescents; lesbian gay bisexual transgender, and or questioning (LGBTQ); individuals
in need of confidential sen/ices; individuals at or below two hundred fifty percent (250%) federal
poverty level; refugees; and individuals at risk of unintended pregnancy due to substance abuse.
The effectiveness of the services delivered by the Contractor will be measured by monitoring the
percentage of;

• Clients in the family planning caseload who respectively were under 100% Federal
Poverty Level (FPL), were under 250% FPL, and under 20 years of age.

• Clients served in the family planning program that were uninsured or Medicaid recipients
at the time of their last visit.

• Family planning clients less than 18 years of age who received education that abstinence
is a viable method of birth control.

• Family planning clients who received STI/HIV reduction education.

• Individuals under age 25 screened for Chlamydia and tested positive.

• Family planning clients of reproductive age who receive preconception counseling.

• Women ages 15 to 44 at risk of unintended pregnancy who are provided a most or
moderately effective contraceptive method.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the sustainability of New
Hampshire's reproductive health care system will be negatively impacted. Not authorizing this
request could remove the safety net of services that improve birth outcomes, prevent unplanned
pregnancy and reduce health disparities, which could increase the cost of health care for New
Hampshire citizens.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.217, FAIN FPHPA006511 and CFDA #93.558, FAIN
2001NHTANF.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3D59E1B0-8B3B-4B30-B17C-0F280E479742

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Reproductive and Sexual Health Services contract is by and between the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services {"State" or "Department") and Lamprey
Health Care, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on December 22"'^, 2021, (Item #41C), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Subparagraph 3.3,
the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$603,046

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services Subsection 2.10 to read:

2.10 The Contractor shall work with the Department's Contractor for the technical assistance
required to meet integration requirements between the EMR and the NH Family Planning
Program data base system for FPAR 2.0, until March 31. 2023.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services Paragraph 2.12.5 through subparagraph 2.12.5.6 to read:

2.12.5 The Contractor shall establish an l&E Committee/ Advisory Board comprised of
individuals within the targeted population or/or communities for which the materials are
intended. The l&E Committee /Advisory Board, which may be the same group of
individuals, must be broadly representative in terms of demographic factors including:

2.12.5.1 Race;

2.12.5.2 Color;

2.12.5.3 National origin;

2.12.5.4 Handicapped condition

2.12.5.5 Sex, and

2.12.5.6 Age.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services Paragraph 2.12.7 to read:

Reserved

6. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services Subparagraph 2.12.8.2 to read:

2.12.8.2 Health education and information materials are reviewed by the l&E
Committee in accordance with Title X Family Planning l&E Advisory and
Community Participation Guidelines/Agreement (Attachment 3).

fo)
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials^

RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05-A01 Page 1 of 4 Date



OocuSign Envelope ID: 3D59E1B0-8B3B-4B30-B17C-0F280E479742

7. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services by adding Subparagraph 2.16.2.1 to read;

2.16.2.1 The Contractor shall have at least one (1) l_ARC method available, at each clinic
location site, for insertion for any family planning client who requests a LARC method
of contraception.

8. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit 0 Amendment #1,
Payment Terms, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

9. Modify Exhibit C-2, Family Planning Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit 0-2, Family
Planning Budget Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

10. Modify Exhibit C-3, Family Planning Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-3, Family
Planning Budget Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

11. Modify Exhibit C-5, TANF Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-5, TANF Budget
Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

12. Modify Exhibit C-6, TANF Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-6, TANF Budget
Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

13. Add Exhibit C-7, FPAR Budget Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

— OS

O)
Lamprey Health Care. Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initialsv

RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05-A01 Page 2 of 4 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3D59E1B0-8B3B-4B30-B17C-0F280E479742

All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

7/15/2022

Date

7/15/2022

Date

■OocuSigned by:

M. Til ley

Title: Director

Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
-DocuSlgn*4 by:

Title; ceo

Lamprey Health Care inc.

RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05-A01

A-S-1.2

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

•^OocuSigr^td by:>—Uocu5>gr>td by:

7/18/2022 ^^vivu)

Date ^ Guarino
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Lamprey Health Care inc. A-S-1.2

RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05-A01 Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reproductive and Sexual Health Services

EXHIBIT C Amendment #1

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 59.32% Federal Funding from the Family Planning Services Grants, as
awarded on March 23, 2022, by the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Office of Assistant Secretary of Health, NH Family
Planning (Title X) Program, CFDA #93.217, FAIN FPHPA006511 and
from U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for
Children & Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (ACF,
TANF) as awarded by the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Administration for Children & Families, Temporary Assistance
for Needy Families (TANF), CFDA #93.558, FAIN 2001NHTANF.

1.2. 40.68% State General funds.

2. The Contractor shall n^ utilize any funds provided under this Agreement for
abortion services.

3. For the purposes of this Agreement:

3.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

3.2. The Department has identified this Agreement as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3.3. The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with
2 CFR §200.414.

4. Payment shall be made on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the Department approved budget line items in Exhibits C-1, Budget through
Exhibit C-7 FPAR Budget Amendment 1.

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department
by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment.

5.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

5.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or othenwise acceptable to the
Department.

5.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

a>
RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-050-A01 Lamprey Health Care, Inc. . Contractor Initials

C-1.2 Page 1 of 3



OocuSign Envelope ID: 3D59E1BO-8B3B-4B30-B17C-OF280E479742

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reproductive and Sexual Health Services

EXHIBIT C Amendment#!

5.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

5.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation, and is
emailed to DPHSContractBillinq@dhhs.nh.aovThe Department shall make
payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice,
subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are
available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions Form Number P-37
of this Agreement.

7. The final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit 8, Scope of Services.

10. Should the Contractor not meet the approximate number of clients served in
Year One (1) of the Contract Period, as specified in Subsection 1.2 of Exhibit
B. Scope of Services, the Department may adjust the State Fiscal Year funding
amount for Year Two (2) of the Contract Period through a Contract Amendment
subject to Governor and Council approval.

11. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

12. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

13. Audits

13.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.qov if

any of the following conditions exist:
f  OS

O)
RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-050-A01 Lamprey Health Care. Inc. . Contractor Initials^
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C-1.2 Page 2 of 3 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID; 3D59E1BO-8B3B-4B3O-B17C-OF280E479742

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reproductive and Sexual Health Services

EXHIBIT C Amendment #1

13.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

13.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

13.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

13.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

13.3. If Condition 8 or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

13.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

13.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

13.6. The Contractor shall allow the Department to conduct financial audits
on an annual basis, or upon request by the Department, to ensure
compliance with the funding requirements of this Agreement. The
Contractor shall make available documentation and staff as necessary
to conduct such audits, including but not limited to policy and
procedure manuals, financial records and reports, and discussions
with management and finance staff.

Oi
RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-050-A01 Lamprey Health Care, Inc. . Contractor Initials

C-1.2 Page 3 of 3 Date^^^^^^^



OocuSign Envelope ID: 3D59E1B0-8B3B-4B30-B17C-0F280E479742

BT-1,0 Exhibit C-2. Family Planning Budget Amendment #1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: Lamprey Health Care

Budget Request for: Fam/7/ Planning

Budget Period G5C Approval-6/30/2023

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $172,267

2. Fringe Benefits $29,901

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $1,500
5.(b) Supplies • Lab $0

5.(0) Suppiies - Pharmacy $500

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $11,000

5.(e) Supplies Office $0

6. T ravel $0

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $0

8. (b) Other • Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other - Other (sp>edfy below)
Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $215,168

Total Indirect Costs $0

TOTAL $215,168

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

Date
7/1S/2022
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BT-1.0 Exhibit C-3. Family Planning Budget Amendment #1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: Lamprey Health Care

Budget Request for: Family Planning

Budget Period 7/1/2023 • 12/31/2023

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0 00%

Line Item' Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages S95,654

2. Fringe Benefits $16,644

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200. i
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab SO

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $66

5.(d) Supplies • Medical $5,000

5.(e) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel $0

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $0

8. (b) Other • Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $117.364

Total Indirect Costs $0

TOTAL $117,364

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

Date
7/15/2022
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BT-1.0 Exhibit C-5, TANF Budget Amendment #1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: Lamprey Health Care

Budget Request for: TANF

Budget Period G5C Approval-6/30/2023

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0 00%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by OHHS

1. Salary & Wages $39,248

2. Fringe Benefits $6,711

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.(a) Supplies • Educational _$0
JO
$0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab

5.(c) Suppiies' Pharmacy
5.(d) Supplies - Medical JO

SO5-(e) Supplies Office

6. Travel $0

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other ■ Marketing/Communications $3,115
8. (b) Other • Education and Training $0

8- (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subredpient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $49,074

Total Indirect Costs $0

TOTAL $49,074

Page 1 of1

Contractor Initials

Date
7/15/2022
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BT-1.0 Exhibit C-6. TANF Budget Amendment #1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: Lamprey Health Care

Budget Request for; TANF

Budget Period 7/1/2023 - 12/31/2023

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 0.00%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $22,895

2. Fringe Benefits $3,873

3, Consultants $0

4, Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 SO
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

5.(3) Supplies - Educational $0
5.(b) Supplies-Lab $0
5.(0) Supplies - Pharmacy $0
5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0
5.(e) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel $0

7, Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $0
8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $26,768

Total Indirect Costs $0

TOTAL $26,768

Oi
Contractor Initials

Page 1 of 1 Date
7/15/2022
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BT-1.0 Exhibit C-7, FPAR Budget Amendment #1

New Hampshire Oepartrnent of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: Lamprey Health Care

Budget Request for: FPAR

Budget Period 8/1/2022 - 3/1/2023

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $11,359

2. Fringe Benefits $1,959

3, Consultants $2,600

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1
end Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$1,952

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5. (c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $200

6, Travel $0

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $4,000

Total Direct Costs $22,070

Total Indirect Costs $0

TOTAL $22,070

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

Date
7/15/2022
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan. Secretary of State of the State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that LAMPREY HEALTH CARE,

INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on August 16, 1971. I funhcr

certify that all fees and doeuments required by the Secretary' of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Business ID: 66382

Certificate Number: 0005770882

i&m
s

^3

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Sea! of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 29th day of April A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secreiar)' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Laura Valencia, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected Secretary/Officer of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on March 25, 2020. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Gregory A. White, CEO

is duly authorized on behalf of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of
New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents,
agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty
(30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person{s) listed above currently occupy the position(s)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Laura
Digitally signed by
Laura Valencia

Date: 2022.07.11

Dated: July 11, 2022 Valencia i9:45:54-04W
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Laura Valencia

Title: Secretary, Board of Directors

Rev. 03/24/20
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LAMPHEA-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

MDUNNING

DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

7/11/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ios) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorscmcnt(s).

PRODUCER License # 1780862 . Lauren Stiles

HUB International New England
275 US Route 1
Cumberland Foroside, ME 04110

PHONE FAX
(A/C. No, Ext): (A/C, No):

Lauren.Stiles@hubinternational.com

tNSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAJCf

INSURER A: Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Comoanv 18058

INSURED

Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
207 South Main Street

Newmarket, NH 03857

iNsuRERB:Atlantic Charter Insurance Comoanv 44326

INSURER C;

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

US. TYPE OF INSURANCE
AOOL
Jh£Q.

SU8R
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY Eff
IMM/DD/YYYYl

POLICY EXP
IMMfDD/YYYY^

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE I X I OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

PHPK2423e60 7/1/2022 7/1/2023
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea ocoifrericel

MED EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

□ siPOLICY

.r r ulCv

□ LOG

OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS ■ COMP/OP AGG

1,000.000
100,000

5,000
1,000,000
3,000,000

3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea ftccideni)

ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

aOTOI

BODILY INJURY [Per pafsont

BODILY INJURY (Per acciOenil
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per BCCidenU

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS- LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OTFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatoiy In NH)
11 yas. descnba under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

I f

□
WCA00545410 7/1/2022 7/1/2023

y PER
* STATUTE

OTH.
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 500,000

E.L. DISEASE ■ EA EMPLOYEE 500,000

ELOISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional RamarVs Schedult, may t>« aitachad If mora apaca it required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORO 25 (2016/03) (£) 1988-2015 ACORO CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Lamprey
Health Care
Where Excellence and Caring go Hand in Hand

Our Mission
The mission of Lamprey Health Care is to provide high quality primary medical care and health related
services, with an emphasis on prevention and lifestyle management, to all individuals regardless of
ability to pay.

♦ We seek to be a leader in providing access to medical and health services that improve the health status
of the individuals and families in the communities we seiwe.

♦  Our mission is to remove barriers that prevent access to care; we strive to eliminate such barriers as
language, cultural stereotyping, finances and/or lack of transportation.

♦  Lamprey Health Care's commitment to the community extends to providing and/or coordinating access
to a full range of comprehensive services.

♦  Lamprey Health Care is committed to achieving the highest level of patient satisfaction through a personal
and caring approach and exceeding standards of excellence in quality' and service.

Our Vision
♦ We will be the outstanding primary care choice for our patients, our communities and our service area,

and the standard by which others are judged.
♦ We will continue as pacesetter in the use of new knowledge for lifestyle improvement, quality of life.
♦ We will be a center of excellence in service, quality and leaching.
♦ We will be part of an integrated system of care to ensure access to medical care for all individuals and

families in our communities.

♦ We will be an innovator to foster development of the best primary care practices, adoption of the tools of
technology and teaching.

♦ We will establish partnerships, linkages, networks and refeirals with other organizations to provide
access to a full range of services to meet our communities' needs.

Our Values
We exist to serve the needs of our patients.
We value a positive caring approach in delivering patient services.
We are committed to improving the health and total well-being of our communities.
We are committed to being proactive in identifying and meeting our communities' health care needs.
We provide a supportive environment for the professional and personal growth, and healthy Iifest>ies
of our employees.
We provide an atmosphere of learning and growth for both patients and employees as well as for those
seeking training in primary care.
We succeed by utilizing a team approach that values a positive, constructive commitment to Lamprey
Health Care's mission.

Affirmed 12/16/2020
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W BerryDunn

Lamprey
Health Care
Where Excellence and Caring go Hand in Hand

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

September 30, 2018 and 2017

With Independent Auditor's Report
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc., which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of
September 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net
assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Bangor, ME • Portland, ME • Manchester, NH • Glaslonbuiy, CT • Charleston, VW • Phoenix, AZ
berr^dunn.com
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Board of Directors

Lamprey Health Care. Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, and the results of their operations, changes in their net assets
and their cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying consolidating balance sheets as of September 30, 2018
and 2017, and the related consolidating statements of operations and changes in net assets for the
years then ended, are presented for purposes of additional analysis rather than to present the financial
position and changes in net assets of the individual entities, and are not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Portland, Maine
December 19, 2018
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 30, 2018 and 2017

ASSETS

2018 2017

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, less allowance for uncollectible

accounts of $254,097 in 2018 and $233,455 in 2017
Grants receivable

Other receivables

Inventory
Other current assets

$ 1,341,015

1,330,870
228,972
172,839
72,219

139.568

$ 1,196,504

1.071,115

476,151

85,357

63,579

160.946

Total current assets 3,285,283 3,053,652

Investment in limited liability company
Assets limited as to use

Property and equipment, net

22,590
3,205,350
7.584.923

20,298

3,425,833

7.870.894

Total assets $14,098,146 $14,370,677

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

Current maturities of long-term debt

$  438,830
919,690
117,696
102.014

$  396,284
880,477

89,040
97.502

Total current liabilities 1,578,230 1,463,303

Long-term debt, less current maturities
Market value of interest rate swap

2,134,337
13.404

2,243,339
13.769

Total liabilities 3.725.971 3.720.411

Net assets

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted
9,951,659
420.516

10,176,258
474.008

Total net assets 10.372.175 10.650.266

Total liabilities and net assets $14,098,146 $14,370,677

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-3-
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue

Provision for bad debts
$ 9,426,185

f354.460l

$ 8,906,722
(274.7701

Net patient service revenue 9,071,725 8,631.952

Grants, contracts and contributions
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restrictions for operations

5,538,925
769,240
118.447

5,262,945

877,054

75.190

Total operating revenue 15.498.337 14.847.141

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other operating expenses
Insurance

Depreciation
Interest

9,941,188
1,688,571
715,862

1,569,327
594,355
537,414
143,338
459,716
96.431

9,361,791
1,860,717
593,252

1,526,562
589,108
590,580

137,232

444,584

117.623

Total operating expenses 15.746.202 15.221.449

Deficiency of revenue over expenses (247,865) (374,308)

Change in fair value of financial instrument
Net assets released from restrictions for capital acquisition

365

22.901

31,004
175.595

Decrease in unrestricted net assets $  (224.5991 $  (167.7091

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-4-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3D59E1B0-8B3B-4B30-B17C-0F280E479742

LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017

Unrestricted net assets

Deficiency of revenue over expenses
Change in fair value of financial instrument
Net assets released from restrictions for capital acquisition

$  {247,885)
365

22.901

$  (374,308)
31,004

175.595

Decrease in unrestricted net assets (224.5991 (167.7091

Temporarily restricted net assets
Provision for uncollectible pledges
Contributions

Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restrictions for capital acquisition

71,205
16,651

(118,447)
(22.9011

(1.100)
77,771

166,366
(75,190)

(175.5951

Decrease in temporarily restricted net assets (53.4921 (7.7481

Change in net assets (278,091) (175,457)

Net assets, beginning of year 10.650.266 10.825.723

Net assets, end of year $10,372,175 $10,650,266

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-5-
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $  (278,091) $ (175,457)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided (used) by operating activities
Provision for bad debts 354,460 274.770

Depreciation 459,716 444,584
Equity in earnings of limited liability company (2,292) (4,094)

Change in fair value of financial instrument (365) (31,004)

Grants for capital acquisition (16,651) (166,366)
Write off of uncollectible pledges - 1,100

(Increase) decrease in the following assets:
Patient accounts receivable (614,015) (267,849)
Grants receivable 247,179 (245,998)
Other receivable (87,482) 61,277

Inventory (8,640) (63,579)

Other current assets 21,378 (69,874)
Increase in the following liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 42,546 169,240

Accrued payroll and related expenses 39,213 64,025

Deferred revenue 28.656 4.517

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 185.612 (4.708)

Cash flows from investing activities
Increase in designated funds (155,880) (591,411)
Release of designated funds 376,363 740,479

Capital acquisitions f173.745^ (320.244)

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 46.738 (171.176)

Cash flows from financing activities
Grants for capital acquisition 16,651 166,366

Principal payments on long-term debt (104.490) (91.817)

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities (87.839) 74.549

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 144,511 (101,335)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1.196.504 1.297.839

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1.341.015 $ 1.196.504

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest $  96,431 $ 117.623

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-6-
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

Organization

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (LHC) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in the State of New
Hampshire. LHC is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) whose primary purpose is to provide
high quality family health, medical and behavioral health services to residents of southern New
Hampshire without regard to the patient's ability to pay for these services.

Subsidiary

Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (FLHC) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in the State of
New Hampshire. FLHC's primary purpose is to support LHC. FLHC is also the owner of the property
occupied by LHC's administrative and program offices in Newmarket, New Hampshire. LHC is the sole
member of FLHC.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of LHC and its subsidiary, FLHC
(collectively, the Organization). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

Both LHC and FLHC are public charities under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As
public charities, the entities are exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned in
accordance with their tax-exempt purposes. Unrelated business income is subject to state and
federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded
that the Organization has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.

Cash and Cash Eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits and petty cash funds.

-7-
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Patient accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible
accounts. In evaluating the collectibility of patient accounts receivable, the Organization analyzes
its past collection history and identifies trends for all funding sources in the aggregate. In addition,
patient balances in excess of 120 days are 100% reserved. Management regularly reviews
revenue and payer mix data in evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for uncollectible
accounts. Amounts not collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted are

applied against the allowance for uncollectible accounts.

A reconciliation of the allowance for uncollectible accounts follows:

2018 2017

Balance, beginning of year $ 233,455 $ 278,061
Provision 354,460 274,770
Write-offs (333.8181 (319.3761

Balance, end of year $ 254.097 $ 233.455

The provision for bad debts increased primarily as a result of the regulatory environment related
to challenges with credentialing of providers and timely filing limits.

Grants and Other Receivables

Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. All such amounts are considered collectible.

Investment In Limited Liabilitv Company

The Organization is one of eight partners who each made a capital contribution of $500 to Primary
Health Care Partners (PHCP). The purposes of PHCP are: (i) to engage and contract directly with
the payers of health care to influence the design and testing of emerging payment
methodologies: (ii) to achieve the three part aim of better care for individuals, better health for
populations and lower growth in expenditures in connection with both governmental and non
governmental payment systems; (iii) to undertake joint activities to offer access to high quality,
cost effective medical, mental health, oral health, home care and other community-based services,
based upon the medical home model of primary care delivery, that promote health and well-being
by developing and implementing effective clinical and administrative systems in a manner that is
aligned with the FQHC model; and to lead collaborative efforts to manage costs and improve the
quality of primary care services delivered by health centers operated throughout the state of New
Hampshire; and (iv) to engage in any and all lawful activities, including without limitation the
negotiation of contracts, agreements and/or arrangements (with payers and other parties). The
Organization's investment in PHCP is reported using the equity method and the investment
amounted to $22,590 and $20,298 at September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

-8-
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

Assets Limited as To Use

Assets limited as to use include assets set aside under loan agreements for repairs and
maintenance on the real property collateralizing the loan, assets designated by the board of
directors for specific projects or purposes and donor-restricted contributions.

Property and Eouipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of each class of depreciable asset and is
computed on the straight-line method.

Gifts of long-lived assets, such as land, buildings, or equipment, are reported as unrestricted
support unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of
long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of
cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as temporarily
restricted net assets. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets
must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired
long-lived assets are placed in service.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets include contributions and grants for which donor-imposed
restrictions have not been met. Assets are released from restrictions as expenditures are made in
line with restrictions called for under the terms of the donor. Grants restricted for capital acquisition
which were received prior to 2000 are released from restriction over the life of the related acquired
assets, matching depreciation expense.

Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payers, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as
final settlements are determined.

340B Drug Pricing Program

LHC, as an FQHC, is eligible to participate in the 340B Drug Pricing Program. The program
requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHCs and other identified entities at a
reduced price. LHC contracts with local pharmacies under this program. The local pharmacies
dispense drugs to eligible patients of LHC and bills Medicare and commercial insurances on behalf
of LHC. Reimbursement received by the pharmacies is remitted to LHC net of dispensing and
administrative fees. Revenue generated from the program is included in patient service revenue
net of third party allowances. The cost of drug replenishments and contracted expenses incurred
related to the program are included in other operating expenses.

-9-
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

Charity Care

The Organization provides discounts to patients who meet certain criteria under its sliding fee
discount program. Because the Organization does not pursue collection of amounts determined to
qualify for the sliding fee discount, they are not reported as patient service revenue.

Donor-Restricted Gifts

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to give are reported
at fair value at the date the gift is received and the conditions are met. The gifts are reported as
either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that
limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated
time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated statements of operations
as "net assets released from restrictions."

Functional Expenses

The Organization provides health care and wrap around services, including translation and care
management, to residents of the greater Newmarket, Raymond, and Nashua, New Hampshire
communities. Expenses related to providing these services are classified by their general nature
as follows;

2018 2017

Program services $ 13,407,871 $ 12,484,460
Administrative and general 2.338.331 2.736.989

Total $ 15.746.202 $ 15.221.449

Deficiency of Revenue Over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations reflect the deficiency of revenue over expenses.
Changes in unrestricted net assets which are excluded from this measure, consistent with industry
practice, include contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions
which, by donor restriction, were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets) and
changes in fair value of an interest rate swap that qualifies for hedge accounting.

-10-
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements, management has considered
transactions or events occurring through December 19, 2018, the date that the financial
statements were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated subsequent events after
that date for inclusion in the financial statements.

2. Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use are composed of cash and cash equivalents and consist of the following:

2018 2017

United States Department of Agriculture, Rural
Development (Rural Development) loan agreements

Designated by the governing board
Donor restricted, temporarily

$  142,092
2,752,113
311.145

$  142,587
2,924,858

358.388

Total $ 3.205.350 $ 3.425.833

Prooertv and Eauioment

Property and equipment consists of the following:

2018 2017

Land and improvements
Building and improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

$ 1,154,753
10,943,714
1.723.627

$ 1,146,784
10,829,267

1.685.929

Total cost

Less accumulated depreciation
13,822,094
8.237.171

13,661,980

5.791.086

Property and equipment, net $ 7.584.923 $ 7.870.894

The Organization has made renovations to certain buildings with federal grant funding. In
accordance with the grant agreements, a Notice of Federal Interest (NFI) was filed in the
appropriate official records of the jurisdiction in which the property is located. The NFI is designed
to notify any prospective buyer or creditor that the Federal Government has a financial interest in
the real property components acquired under the aforementioned grant; that the property may not
be used for any purpose inconsistent with that authorized by the grant program statute and
applicable regulations: that the property may not be mortgaged or otherwise used as collateral
without the written permission of the Associate Administrator of the Office of Federal Assistance
Management (OFAM), Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA); and that the
property may not be sold or transferred to another party without the written permission of the
Associate Administrator of OFAM and HRSA.

-11 -



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3D59E1B0-8B3B-4B3O-B17C-0F280E479742

LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

4. Line of Credit

The Organization has an available $1,000,000 revolving line of credit from a local bank through
May 2019, with an interest rate of 4.25%. The line of credit is collateralized by all business assets.
There was no outstanding balance at September 30, 2018 and 2017.

5. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:

2018 2017

Promissory note payable to local bank; see terms outlined
below. $ 875,508 $ 894,652

5.375% promissory note payable to Rural Development, paid in
monthly installments of $4,949, which includes interest,
through June 2026. The note is collateralized by all tangible
property owned by the Organization. 371,976 413,615

4.75% promissory note payable to Rural Development, paid in
monthly installments of $1,892, which includes interest,
through November 2033. The note is collateralized by all
tangible property owned by the Organization. 242,438 255,108

4.375% promissory note payable to Rural Development, paid in
monthly installments of $5,000, which includes interest,
through December 2036. The note is collateralized by all
tangible property owned by the Organization. 746.431 777.466

Total long-term debt 2,236,351 2,340,841
Less current maturities 102.014 97.502

Long-term debt, less current maturities $ 2,134,337 $ 2,243,3^

The Organization has a promissory note with a local bank which is a ten-year balloon note to be
paid at the amortization rate of 30 years, with monthly principal payments of $1,345 plus interest at
85% of the one-month LIBOR rate plus 2.125% through January 2022 when the balloon payment
is due. The note is collateralized by the real estate. The Organization has an interest rate swap
agreement for the ten-year period through 2022 that limits the potential interest rate fluctuation
and essentially fixes the rate at 4.13%. The fair market value of the interest rate swap agreement
was a liability of $13,404 and $13,769 at September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.
I

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

The Organization is required to meet certain administrative and financial covenants under various
loan agreements included above. The Organization is in compliance with all loan covenants at
September 30, 2018.

Maturities of long-term debt for the next five years are as follows:

2019 $ 102,014
2020 107,082
2021 112.402
2022 895,426
2023 97,595
Thereafter 921.832

Total $ 2.236.351

6. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets consisted of the following:

2018 2017

Temporarily restricted for:
Capital improvements $ 340,806 $ 347,056
Community programs 64,643 89,209
Substance abuse prevention 25.067 37.743

Total $ 420.516 £ 474.008

The composition of assets comprising temporarily restricted net assets at September 30, 2018 and
2017 is as follows:

2018 2017

Assets limited as to use $ 311,145 $ 358,388
Property and equipment 109.371 115.620

Total $ 420.516 $ 474.008
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

7. Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue follows;

2018 2017

Gross charges $13,683,357 $12,752,924
340B contract pharmacy revenue 1.327.156 1.198.264

Total gross revenue 15,010,513 13,951,188

Contractual adjustments (4,534,268) (4,005,181)
Sliding fee discounts (1,030,666) (1,020,240)
Other discounts (19.3941 (19.0451

Total patient service revenue $ 9.426.185 $ 8.906.722

Revenue from the Medicaid and Medicare programs accounted for approximately 27% and 17%.
respectively, of the Organization's gross patient service revenue for the year ended September 30,
2018 and 28% and 16%, respectively, for the year ended September 30, 2017. Laws and
regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. Management believes that the Organization is in compliance with all laws and
regulations. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Differences between amounts previously
estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or payable are included in
patient service revenue in the year that such amounts become known.

A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payers follows:

Medicare

The Organization is reimbursed for the care of qualified patients on a prospective basis, with
retroactive settlements related to vaccine costs only. The prospective payment is based on a
geographically-adjusted rate determined by federal guidelines. Overall, reimbursement was and
continues to be subject to a maximum allowable rate per visit. The Organization's Medicare cost
reports have been audited by the Medicare administrative contractor through September 30. 2017.

Medicaid and Other Pavers

The Organization also has entered into payment agreements with Medicaid and certain
commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations and preferred provider
organizations. The basis for payment to the Organization under these agreements includes
prospectively-determined rates per visit, discounts from established charges.

-14-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3D59E1BO-8B3B-4B30-B17C-OF280E479742

LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

Charity Care

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its sliding fee discount
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. The Organization estimates the
costs associated with providing the care to patients who qualify under the sliding fee discount
policy by calculating the ratio of total cost to total charges, and then multiplying that ratio by the
gross charges forgone under the sliding fee discount policy. The estimated cost amounted to
approximately $1,041,596 and $1,096,647 for the years ended September 30. 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

The Organization is able to provide these services with a component of funds received through
local community support and federal and state grants.

8. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a defined contribution plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b).
The Organization contributed $157,605 and $326,988 for the years ended September 30, 2018
and 2017, respectively. The Organization's Board of Directors voted to suspend the employer
contributions to the plan in April 2018 and resume contributions in January 2019 subsequent to the
adoption of revisions to the employer contribution component of the plan documents.

9. Concentration of Risk

The Organization has cash deposits in major financial institutions which exceed federal depository
insurance limits. The financial institutions have strong credit ratings and management believes the
credit risk related to these deposits is minimal.

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. Following is a summary of accounts
receivable, by funding source, at September 30:

2018 2017

Medicare 18% 18 %
Medicaid 14% 15 %

Anthem Blue Cross Blue Shield 13% 14 %

Other payers, including self pay 55% 53 %

100% 100 %

The Organization receives a significant amount of grants from the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS). As with all government funding, these grants are subject to reduction or
termination in future years. For the years ended September 30. 2018 and 2017, grants from
DHHS (Including both direct awards and awards passed through other organizations) represented
approximately 76% and 77%, respectively, of grants, contracts and contributions.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

10. Medical Malpractice

The Organization is protected from medical malpractice risk as an FOHC under the Federal Tort
Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional medical malpractice insurance, on a claims-
made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the FTCA. As of September 30,
2018, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of management,
will be settled for amounts in excess of both FTCA and medical malpractice insurance coverage,
nor are there any unasserted claims or incidents which require loss accrual. The Organization
intends to renew medical malpractice insurance coverage on a claims-made basis and anticipates
that such coverage will be available.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Balance Sheet

September 30, 2018

ASSETS

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey
Healthcare, Healthcare, 2018

Inc. Inc. Consolidated

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 656,379 $ 684,636 $ 1,341,015
Patient accounts receivable, net 1,330,670 - 1,330,670
Grants receivable 228,972 - 228,972

Other receivables 172,839 - 172,839
Inventory 72,219 - 72,219
Other current assets 139,568 - 139,568

Total current assets 2,600,647 684,636 3,285,283

Investment in limited liability company 22,590 _ 22,590

Assets limited as to use 2,920,876 284,474 3,205,350
Property and equipment, net 5.585.290 1.999.633 7.584.923

Total assets $11,129,403 $ 2.968.743 $ 14.098.146

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $  438,830 $ $ 438,830

Accrued payroll and related expenses 919,690 - 919,690
Deferred revenue 117,696 - 117,696

Current maturities of long-term debt 63.027 38.987 102.014

Total current liabilities 1,539,243 38,987 1,578,230

Long-term debt, less current maturities 1,184,455 949,882 2,134,337

Market value of interest rate swap 13.404 - 13.404

Total liabilities 2.737.102 988.869 3.725.971

Net assets

Unrestricted 7,971,785 1,979,874 9,951,659

Temporarily restricted 420.516 - 420.516

Total net assets 8.392.301 1.979.874 10.372.175

Total liabilities and net assets $11,129,403 $ 2.968.743 $ 14.098.146
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Balance Sheet

September 30, 2017

ASSETS

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey
Health Care, Health Care, 2017

Inc. Inc. Consolidated

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $  543,845 $  652,659 $ 1,196,504
Patient accounts receivable, net 1,071,115 . 1.071,115
Grants receivable 476.151 . 476,151
Other receivables 85,357 _ 85,357
Inventory 63,579 _ 63,579
Other current assets 160.946 - 160.946

Total current assets 2,400,993 652,659 3,053,652

Investment in limited liability company 20,298 . 20,298
Assets limited as to use 3,141,359 284,474 3,425,833
Property and equipment, net 5.869.762 2.001.132 7.870.894

Total assets $11,432,412 $ 2.938.265 $ 14.370.677

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $  393,269 $  3,015 $ 396,284
Accrued payroll and related expenses 880,477 - 880,477
Deferred revenue 89,040 . 89,040
Current maturities of long-term debt 60.169 37.333 97.502

Total current liabilities 1,422,955 40,348 1,463,303

Long-term debt, less current maturities 1,248,098 995,241 2,243,339
Market value of interest rate swap 13.769 - 13.769

Total liabilities 2.684.822 1.035.589 3.720.411

Net assets

Unrestricted 8,273.582 1.902,676 10,176,258
Temporarily restricted 474.008 - 474.008

Total net assets 8.747.590 1.902.676 10.650.266

Total liabilities and net assets $11.432.412 $ 2.938.265 $ 14.370.677
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Lamprey
Health Care

Inc.

Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care,

Inc. Eliminations

2018

Consolidated

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue

Provision for bad debts
$ 9,426,185

(354.460^

$ $ $  9,426,185
f354.4601

Net patient service revenue 9,071,725 - - 9,071,725

Rental income

Grants, contracts and contributions
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restrictions for
operations

5,538,925

769,148

118.447

227,916

92

(227,916)
5,538,925
769,240

118.447

Total operating revenue 15.498.245 228.008 f227.9161 15.498.337

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other operating expenses
insurance

Depreciation
interest expense

9,941,188
1,688,571
715,784

1,569,171

816,102
535,414
143,338

353,293

60.447

78

156

6,169

2,000

106,423

35.984

(227,916)

9,941,188
1,688,571
715,862

1,569,327

594,355
537,414
143,338

459,716
96.431

Total operating expenses 15.823.308 150.810 f227.9161 15.746.202

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over
expenses (325,063) 77,198 _ (247,865)

Change In fair value of financial
instrument

Net assets released from restrictions for

capital acquisition

365

22.901

- - 365

22.901

(Decrease) increase in unrestricted
net assets $  (301.797) $ 77.198 $ $  (224.599^
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2017

Lamprey
Health Care,

Inc.

Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care,

Inc. Eliminations

2017

Consolidated

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue

Provision for bad debts
$ 8,906,722

f274.770^

$ $ $  8,906,722
f274.7701

Net patient service revenue 8,631,952 - - 8,631,952

Rental income

Grants, contracts and contributions
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restrictions for

operations

5,262,945
876,963

75.190

227,916

91

(227,916)
5,262,945
877,054

75.190

Total operating revenue 14.847.050 228.007 f227.9161 14.847.141

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other operating expenses
insurance

Depreciation
Interest

9,361,791
1,860,717
593,070

1,526,457
803,891
586,192

137,232
346,833
67.608

182

105

13,133

4,388

97,751
50.015

(227,916)

9,361,791
1,860,717
593,252

1,526,562

589,108
590,580
137,232
444,584

117.623

Total operating expenses 15.283.791 165.574 f227.9161 15.221.449

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over
expenses (436,741) 62,433 - (374,308)

Change in fair value of financial
instrument

Net assets released from restrictions for

capital acquisition

31,004

175.595

- - 31,004

175.595

(Decrease) increase in unrestricted net
assets $  (230.142) $ 62.433 $ $  (167.709^
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Unrestricted net assets

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses
Change in fair value of financial instrument
Net assets released from restrictions for capitai

acquisition

(Decrease) increase in unrestricted net assets

Temporarily restricted net assets
Contributions

Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restrictions for capitai

acquisition

Decrease in temporarily restricted net assets

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Lamprey
Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care, Health Care,

Inc. Inc.

2018

Consolidated

(325,063) 77,198 (247,865)
365 - 365

22.901 _ 22.901

f301.7971 77.198 (224.5991

71,205 71,205

16,651 - 16,651
(118,447) - (118,447)

(22.90^) (22.9011

(53.4921 (53.4921

(355,289) 77,198 (278,091)

8.747.590 1.902.676 10.650.266

. 8.392.301 $ 1.979.874 $ 10.372.175
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended September 30, 2017

Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care,

Inc.

Lamprey
Health Care,

Inc.

2017

Consolidated

Unrestricted net assets

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses
Change in fair value of financial instrument
Net assets released from restrictions for capital

acquisition

$  (436,741)
31,004

175.595

$  62,433 $  (374,308)
31,004

175.595

(Decrease) increase in unrestricted net assets (230.1421 62.433 (167.7091

Temporarily restricted net assets
Provision for uncollectible pledges
Contributions

Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restrictions for capital

acquisition

(1,100)
77,771
166,366

(75,190)

(175.5951

- (1,100)
77,771
166,366

(75,190)

(175.5951

Decrease in temporarily restricted net assets (7.7481 (7.7481

Change in net assets (237,890) 62,433 (175,457)

Net assets, beginning of year 8.985.480 1.840.243 10.825.723

Net assets, end of year $ 8.747.590 $ 1.902.676 $  10.650.266
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care. Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc., which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of
September 30. 2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated statements of operations, functional
expenses, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibiiity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona

berrydunn.com
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Board of Directors

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the results of their operations, changes in their net assets
and their cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

Change in Accounting Principles

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2019 Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. adopted new accounting guidance, Financial Accounting Standards Board
Accounting Standards Updates No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit
Entities {Topic 958) and No. 2016-18, Restricted Cash (Topic 230). Our opinion is not modified with
respect to these matters.

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying consolidating balance sheets as of September 30, 2019
and 2018, and the related consolidating statements of operations and changes in net assets for the
years then ended, are presented for purposes of additional analysis rather than to present the financial
position and changes in net assets of the individual entities, and are not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

f

Portland, Maine
January 17, 2020
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 30, 2019 and 2018

ASSETS

2019 2018

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,422,407 $ 1,341,015
Patient accounts receivable, net 1,237,130 1,330,670
Grants receivable 452,711 228,972
Other receivables 236,798 172,839
Inventory 81,484 72,219
Other current assets 78.405 139.568

Total current assets 3,508,935 3,285,283

Investment in limited liability company 19,101 22,590
Assets limited as to use 2,943,714 3,205,350
Fair value of interest rate swap 13,512 _

Property and equipment, net 7.608.578 7.584.923

Total assets $14,093,840 $14,098,146

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

Current maturities of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current maturities

$  641,818 $ 438,830
961,024 919,690

85,418
106.190

1,794,450

2,031,076

117,696
102.014

1,578,230

2,134.337

Total liabilities 3.825.526 3.725.971

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions
9,732,208
536.106

10,061,029

311.146

Total net assets 10.268.314 10.372.175

Total liabilities and net assets $14,093,840 $14,098,146

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue

Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue

Grants, contracts and contributions
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restrictions for operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other operating expenses
Insurance

Depreciation
Interest

Total operating expenses

Deficiency of revenue over expenses

Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restrictions for capital acquisition

Decrease in net assets without donor restrictions

$ 9,143,768 $ 9.426.185
_(398i544) (354.460^

8,745,224 9,071,725

6,104,270
1,637,578

75.197

5,538,925
769,240
118.447

16.562.269 15.498.337

10,584,157
1,993,787
646,774

1,731,988
580,711
697,570
145,114
461,062
107.855

16.949.018

(386,749)

26,916
31.012

9,941,188
1,688,571

715,862

1,569,327
594,355

537,414
143,338

459,716

96.431

15.746.202

(247,865)

365

16.651

$  (328.8211 $ (230.849)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended September 30, 2019

Healthcare

Total

Healthcare

Administration

and Support
Services AHEC/PHN Transoortation Services Services Totaj

Salaries and wages $  8.599,722 $  418,785 $ 127.054 $ 9.145.561 S 1,438.596 $ 10,584,157
Employee benefits 1.531,182 76.015 23.346 1,630.543 363,244 1,993,787
Supplies 614,628 12,839 47 627,514 19,260 646,774
Purchased services 892,684 225,590 407 1,118.681 613,307 1,731,988
Facilities 4.020 477 23,155 27,652 553.059 580,711
Other 283.801 157,524 120 441,445 256.125 697,570
Insurance - - 8.922 8,922 136.192 145,114
Depreciation - - 27.509 27,509 433.553 461,062
Interest - - - . 107,855 107,855
Allocated program support 886,269 - - 886.269 {886,269) •

Allocated occupancy costs 714,331 34.319 4.531 753,181 f753.181t

Total $  13.526.637 S  925.549 S 215.091 S 14.667.277 $ 2.281.741 $ 16.949.018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Healthcare

Total

Healthcare

Administration

and Support
Services AHEC/PHN Transoortation Services Services Total

Salaries and wages $  8,000,572 $  411,320 $  120,008 Ji  8,531,900 $ 1,409,288 S;  9,941,188
Employee benefits 1.315,582 70,805 20,049 1,406,436 282,135 1,688,571
Supplies 684,828 7,051 40 691,919 23,943 715,862
Purchased services 815,843 139.400 - 955,243 614,084 1,569,327
Facilities 4,402 480 20.945 25,827 568,528 594,355
Other 253,564 87,005 39 340,608 196,806 537,414
Insurance - - 8.696 8,696 134,642 143,338
Depreciation - - 28,093 28,093 431,623 459,716
Interest - - - . 96,431 96,431
Allocated program support 825.266 - - 825.266 (825,266) -

Allocated occupancy costs 930.169 36.593 4.831 971.593 1971.5931 .

Total $  12.830.226 $  752.654 $  202.701 JJ  13.785.581 $ 1.960.621 S.  15.746.202

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-6-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3O59E1B0-8B3B-4B30-B17C-0F280E479742

LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Changes In Net Assets

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Net assets without donor restrictions

Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ {386,749) $ (247,865)
Change in fair value of interest rate swap 26,916 365
Net assets reieased from restrictions for capitai acquisition 31.012 16.651

Decrease in net assets without donor restrictions {328.8211 (230.8491

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions 205,027 71,205
Grants for capital acquisition 126,142 16,651
Net assets reieased from restrictions for operations (75,197) (118,447)
Net assets reieased from restrictions for capital acquisition (31.0121 (16.6511

Increase (decrease) in net assets with donor restrictions 224.960 (47.2421

Change in net assets (103,861) (278,091)

Net assets, beginning of year 10.372.175 10.650.266

Net assets, end of year $10.268.314 $10.372.175

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $  (103,861) $ (278,091)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities
Provision for bad debts 398,544 354.460
Depreciation 461,062 459,716
Equity in earnings of limited liability company 3,489 (2,292)
Change in fair value of interest rate swap (26,916) (365)
Grants for capital acquisition (126,142) (16,651)
(Increase) decrease In the following assets:

Patient accounts receivable (305,004) (614,015)
Grants receivable (223,739) 247,179
Other receivable (63,959) (87,482)
Inventory (9.265) (8,640)
Other current assets 61,163 21,378

Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 25,215 42,545
Accrued payroll and related expenses 41,334 39,213
Deferred revenue 132.278) 28.656

Net cash provided by operating activities 99.643 185.611

Cash flows from investing activities
Capital acquisitions f306.944) (173.745)

Cash flows from financing activities
Grants for capital acquisition 126,142 16,651
Principal payments on long-term debt (99.085) (104.4891

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 27.057 (87.8381

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash (180,244) (75,972)

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year 4.546.365 4.622.337

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year $ 4.366.121 $ 4.546.365

Breakdown of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash,
end of year
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,422,407 $ 1,341,015
Assets limited as to use 2.943.714 3.205.350

$ 4.366.121 $ 4.546.365

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid for interest $  107.855 $ 96.431

Capital expenditures included in accounts payable $  177.773 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (LHC) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in the State of New
Hampshire. LHC is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FOHC) whose primary purpose is to
provide high quality family health, medical and behavioral health services to residents of southern
New Hampshire without regard to the patient's ability to pay for these services.

Subsidiary

Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (FLHC) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in the State
of New Hampshire. FLHC's primary purpose is to support LHC. FLHC is also the owner of the
property occupied by LHC's administrative and program offices in Newmarket, New Hampshire.
LHC is the sole member of FLHC.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of LHC and its subsidiary, FLHC
(collectively, the Organization). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958),
which makes targeted changes to the not-for-profit financial reporting model. The ASU marks the
completion of the first phase of a larger project aimed at improving not-for-profit financial reporting.
Under the ASU, net asset reporting is streamlined and clarified. The existing three category
classification of net assets was replaced with a simplified model that combines temporarily
restricted and permanently restricted into a single category called "net assets with donor
restrictions." The guidance on accounting for the lapsing of restrictions on gifts to acquire property
and equipment has also been simplified and clarified. New disclosures highlight restrictions on the
use of resources that make otherwise liquid assets unavailable for meeting near-term financial
requirements. The ASU also imposes several new requirements related to reporting expenses
which resulted in the expansion of the consolidated financial statements to include statements of
functional expenses. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these statements
accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to 2018. The adoption had no effect on the
Organization's total net assets, results of operations, changes in net assets or cash flows for the
year ended September 30, 2019. The adoption did result in a reclassification of net assets
previously reported as net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions.

,  This related to gifts received and used to acquire property and equipment and the restrictions on
these gifts were previously released over the useful life of the acquired assets. Previously reported
net assets with donor restrictions of $109,370 and $115,620 at September 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, have been reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions.

-9-



DocuSign Envelope ID; 3D59E1B0-8B38-4B30-817C-0F280E479742

LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

In November 2016, FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18, Restricted Cash (Topic 230), which requires
that a statement of cash flows explain the change during the period in the total of cash, cash
equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents.
Therefore, amounts generally described as restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents should
be included with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-
period total amounts shown on the statement of cash flows. The ASU is effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after December 15, 2018. The Organization adopted ASU No. 2016-18 in 2019,
and restated its 2018 statement of cash flows to conform to the provisions thereof.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP), which require the Organization to report
information in the financial statements according to the following net asset classifications;

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's management
and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions
of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature,
whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as net assets with donor
restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.
When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassifted as net assets without
donor restrictions and reported in the statements of operations and changes in net assets as net
assets released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the

same year as received are reflected as contributions without donor restrictions in the
accompanying financial statements.

Gifts of long-lived assets, such as land, buildings, or equipment, are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used.
Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and
gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as net
assets with donor restrictions. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived
assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or
acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with U.S. GAAR requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

Both LHC and FLHC are public charities under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As
public charities, the entities are exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned In
accordance with their tax-exempt purposes. Unrelated business income is subject to state and
federal Income tax. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded
that the Organization has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of business checking and savings accounts as well as petty
cash funds.

The Organization maintains cash balances at several financial institutions. The balances are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. At various times
throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances may exceed FDIC insurance. The
Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and management believes it Is not
exposed to any significant risk.

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible
accounts. In evaluating the collectibility of patient accounts receivable, the Organization analyzes
its past collection history and identifies trends for all funding sources in the aggregate. In addition,
patient balances in excess of 120 days are 100% reserved. Management regularly reviews
revenue and payer mix data in evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for uncollectible
accounts. Amounts not collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted are

applied against the allowance for uncollectible accounts.

Grants and Other Receivables

Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. All such amounts are considered collectible.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

The Organization receives a significant amount of grants from the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS). As with all government funding, these grants are subject to reduction or
termination in future years. For the years ended September 30, 2019 and September 30, 2018,
grants from DHHS (including both direct awards and awards passed through other organizations)
represented approximately 76% and 76%, respectively, of grants, contracts and contributions
revenue.

Investment in Limited Liability Company

The Organization is one of eight partners who each made a capital contribution of $500 to Primary
Health Care Partners (PHCP). The purposes of PHCP are: (i) to engage and contract directly with
the payers of health care to influence the design and testing of emerging payment
methodologies: (ii) to achieve the three part aim of better care for individuals, better health for
populations and lower grov/th in expenditures in connection with both governmental and non
governmental payment systems; (iii) to undertake joint activities to offer access to high quality,
cost effective medical, mental health, oral health, home care and other community-based services,
based upon the medical home model of primary care delivery, that promote health and well-being
by developing and implementing effective clinical and administrative systems in a manner that is
aligned with the FQHC model; and to lead collaborative efforts to manage costs and improve the
quality of primary care services delivered by health centers operated throughout the state of New
Hampshire; and (iv) to engage in any and all lawful activities, including without limitation the
negotiation of contracts, agreements and/or arrangements (with payers and other parties). The
Organization's investment in PHCP is reported using the equity method and the investment
amounted to $19,101 and $22,590 at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Assets Limited as To Use

Assets limited as to use include cash and cash equivalents set aside under loan agreements for
repairs and maintenance on the real property collateralizing the loan, assets designated by the
Board of Directors for specific projects or purposes and donor-restricted contributions as
discussed further in Note 7.

Property and Eouipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of each class of depreciable asset and is
computed on the straight-line method.

Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payers, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as
final settlements are determined.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

340B Drug Pricing Program

LHC, as an FQHC, is eligible to participate in the 340B Drug Pricing Program. The program
requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHCs and other identified entities at a
reduced price. LHC contracts with local pharmacies under this program. The local pharmacies
dispense drugs to eligible patients of LHC and bill insurances on behalf of LHC. Reimbursement
received by the pharmacies is remitted to LHC net of dispensing and administrative fees. Revenue
generated from the program is included in patient service revenue net of third-party allowances.
The cost of drug replenishments and contracted expenses incurred related to the program are
included in other operating expenses.

Functional Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to one or more
programs or supporting functions of the Organization. Expenses which are allocated between
program services and administrative support include employee benefits which are allocated based
on direct wages, facilities and related costs which are allocated based upon square footage
occupied by the program, and direct program support (billing and medical records) which is 100%
attributable to healthcare services.

Deficiency of Revenue Over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations reflect the deficiency of revenue over expenses.
Changes in net assets without donor restriction which are excluded from this measure include
contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions which, by donor
restriction, were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets) and changes in fair value of
an interest rate swap that qualifies for hedge accounting.

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements, management has considered
transactions or events occurring through January 17, 2020, the date that the financial statements
were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for
inclusion in the financial statements.

2. Availabilltv and Liquidity of Financial Assets

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. The Organization has various sources of liquidity at its disposal,
including cash and cash equivalents and a line of credit.

The Organization had working capital of $1,714,485 and $1,707,053 at September 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively. The Organization had average days cash and cash equivalents on hand
(based on normal expenditures) of 31 and 32 at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

-13-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3D59E1B0-8B3B-4B30-B17C-0F280E479742

LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year as of September 30 were as
follows:

2019 2018

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, net
Grants receivable

Other receivables

Financial assets available

$  1,422,407 $ 1.341,015
1,237,130 1,330,670
452,711
236.798

228,972
172.839

$  3.349.046 $ 3.073.496

The Organization has certain board-designated assets limited to use which are available for
general expenditure within one year in the normal course of operations upon obtaining approval
from the Board of Directors. Accordingly, these assets have not been included in the qualitative
information above. The Organization has other assets limited to use for donor-restricted purposes,
which are more fully described In Note 7, are not available for general expenditure within the next
year and are not reflected in the amounts above.

The Organization's goal is generally to have, at the minimum, the Health Resources and Services
Administration recommended days cash and cash equivalents on hand for operations of 30 days.

The Organization has a $1,000,000 line of credit, as discussed in more detail in Note 5.

3. Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable consisted of the following:

Patient accounts receivable

Contract 3408 pharmacy program receivables

Total patient accounts receivable
Allowance for doubtful accounts

Patient accounts receivable, net

A reconciliation of the allowance for uncollectible accounts follows:

Balance, beginning of year
Provision for bad debts

Write-offs

Balance, end of year

2019 2018

$ 1,397,194 $ 1,386,791
75.586 197.976

1,472,780
1235.6501

1,584,767
1254.0971

$ 1.237.130 $ 1.330.670

2019 2018

$  254,097 $ 233,455
398,544 354,460
(416.9911 (333.8181

$  235.650 $ 254.097
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. Primary payers representing 10% or more of
the Organization's gross patient accounts receivable are as follows:

2019 2018

Medicare 17% 18%
Medicaid 19 <>/, 140/^
Anthem Blue Cross Blue Shield * 13%

* less than 10%

4. Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following:

2019 2018

Land and improvements $ 1,154,753 $ 1,154,753
Building and improvements 11,048,899 10,943,714
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1.799.636 1.723.627

Total cost 14,003,288 13,822,094
Less accumulated depreciation 6.667.847 6.237.171

7,335,441 7,584,923
Construction in progress 273.137 -

Property and equipment, net $ 7.608.578 $ 7.584.923

During 2019, the Organization began to make renovations to the clinical building in Newmarket,
New Hampshire. The project is estimated to cost approximately $780,000 and is expected to be
completed and placed in service in December 2019. The project has been funded primarily
through donor restricted contributions and debt.

The Organization has made renovations to certain buildings with federal grant funding. In
accordance with the grant agreements, a Notice of Federal Interest (NFI) was filed in the
appropriate official records of the jurisdiction in which the property is located. The NFI is designed
to notify any prospective buyer or creditor that the Federal Government has a financial interest in
the real property components acquired under the aforementioned grant; that the property may not
be used for any purpose inconsistent with that authorized by the grant program statute and
applicable regulations; that the property may not be mortgaged or otherwise used as collateral
without the written permission of the Associate Administrator of the Office of Federal Assistance
Management (OFAM), Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA); and that the
property may not be sold or transferred to another party without the written permission of the
Associate Administrator of OFAM and HRSA.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

5. Line of Credit

The Organization has an available $1,000,000 revolving line of credit from a local bank through
May 31 2021, with an interest rate of 5.50%. The line of credit is collateralized by all business
assets. There was no outstanding balance as of September 30, 2019 and 2018.

6. Lono-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:

2019 2018

Promissory note payable to local bank; see terms outlined
below. $ 851,934 $ 875,506

5.375% promissory note payable to United States Department of
Agriculture, Rural Development (Rural Development), paid in
monthly installments of $4,949, which includes interest,
through June 2026. The note Is collateralized by all tangible
property owned by the Organization. The note was paid off
through refinancing that is effective in October 2019; see
details below. 335,509 371,976

4.75% promissory note payable to Rural Development, paid in
monthly installments of $1,892, which includes interest,
through November 2033. The note is collateralized by all
tangible property owned by the Organization. The note was
paid off through refinancing that is effective in October 2019;
see details below. 231,091 242,438

4.375% promissory note payable to Rural Development, paid in
monthly installments of $5,000, which includes interest,
through December 2036. The note is collateralized by all
tangible property owned by the Organization. The note was
paid off through refinancing that is effective in October 2019;
see details below. 718.732 746.431

Total long-term debt 2,137,266 2,236,351
Less current maturities 106.190 102.014

Long-term debt, less current maturities $ 2,031,076 $ 2,134,3^

The Organization has a promissory note with a local bank which is a ten-year balloon note to be
paid at the amortization rate of 30 years, with monthly principal payments of $1,345 plus interest at
85% of the one-month LIBOR rate plus 2.125% through January 2022 when the balloon payment
is due. The note is collateralized by the real estate. The Organization has an interest rate swap
agreement for the ten-year period through 2022 that limits the potential interest rate fluctuation
and essentially fixes the rate at 4.13%. The fair value of the interest rate swap agreement was an
asset of $13,512 and a liability of $13,404 at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

-16-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3D59E1B0-883B-4830-B17C-0F280E479742

LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Effective October 2, 2019, the Organization obtained a $2,100,000 note payable with a local bank,
which repaid the notes payable due to Rural Development in the amount of $1,285,332, and the
additional financing was used to renovate the Organization's Newmarket clinical building as
discussed in Note 4. The note has a ten-year balloon and is to be paid at the amortization rate of
30 years, with monthly principal payments plus interest at the greater of the Wall Street Journal
Prime rate or the weighted average of the rate of overnight Federal funds with members of the
Federal Reserve Bank of New York plus 0.5% through October 2029 when the balloon payment is
due. The note is collateralized by the real estate. The Organization has an interest rate swap
agreement for the ten-year period through 2029 that limits the potential interest rate fluctuation
and essentially fixes the rate at 3.173%.

The Organization is required to meet certain administrative and financial covenants under various
loan agreements included above. The Organization failed to meet one of those loan covenants at
September 30, 2019 and has received a waiver of default from the bank.

Maturities of long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter {adjusted for the refinancing as
discussed above) are as follows;

2020 $ 106,190
2021 50,783
2022 832,321
2023 28,439
2024 29,264
Thereafter 1.090.269

Total $ 2.137.266

7. Net Assets

Net assets without donor restrictions are designated for the following purposes:

2019 2018

Undesignated $ 7,019,181 $ 7,377,112
Repairs and maintenance on the real property collateralizing
Rural Development loans 142,092 142,092

Board-designated for
Transportation 16,982 16,982
Working capital 1,391,947 1,391,947
Building improvements 1.162.006 1.132.896

Total $ 9.732.208 $10.061.029

-17-



DocuSign Envelope ID; 3D59E1B0-8B3B-4830-B17C-0F280E479742

LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Net assets with donor restrictions were restricted for the following specific purposes:

2019 2018

Temporary in nature:
Capital improvements $  326,567 $  231,436
Community programs 181,151 54,643

Substance abuse prevention 28.388 25.067

Total S  536.106 $  311.146

Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue was as follows for the years ended September 30:

2019 2018

Gross charges $13,786,408 $13,683,357
340B contract pharmacy revenue 1.139.085 1.327.156

Total gross revenue 14,925,493 15,010,513

Contractual adjustments (4,793,060) (4,534,268)
Sliding fee discounts (964,485) (1,030,666)
Other discounts (24.1801 (19.3941

Total patient service revenue $ 9.143.768 $ 9.426.185

The mix of gross patient service revenue from patients and third-party payers was as follows for

the years ended September 30:

2019 2018

Medicare 17% 17 %

Medicaid 31 % 27 %

Blue Cross Blue Shield 17 % 18 %

Other payers 21 % 24 %

Self pay and sliding fee scale patients 14% 14 %

100 % 100 %

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare, Medicaid and 340B programs are complex and
subject to interpretation. The Organization believes that it is in compliance with all laws and
regulations. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare, Medicaid and 340B programs. Differences between amounts
previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or payable are
included in patient service revenue in the year that such amounts become known.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payers foliows:

Medicare

The Organization is reimbursed for the care of qualified patients on a prospective basis, with
retroactive settlements related to vaccine costs only. The prospective payment is based on a
geographically-adjusted rate determined by federal guidelines. Overall, reimbursement was and
continues to be subject to a maximum allowable rate per visit. The Organization's Medicare cost
reports have been audited by the Medicare administrative contractor through September 30, 2018.

Medicaid and Other Pavers

The Organization Is reimbursed by Medicaid for the care of qualified patients on a prospective
basis. Overall, reimbursement is subject to a maximum allowable rate per visit. The Organization
also has entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers, health
maintenance organizations and preferred provider organizations. Under these arrangements, the
Organization is reimbursed based on contractually obligated payment rates which may be less
than the Organization's public fee schedule.

Charity Care

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its sliding fee discount
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Organization does
not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net
patient service revenue. The Organization estimates the costs associated with providing charity
care by calculating the ratio of total cost to total charges, and then multiplying that ratio by the
gross uncompensated charges associated with providing care to patients eligible for free care. The
estimated cost amounted to approximately $1,053,562 and $1,041,596 for the years ended
September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Organization is able to provide these services with a component of funds received through
local community support and federal and state grants.

9. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a defined contribution plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b).
The Organization contributed $300,572 and $157,605 for the years ended September 30, 2019
and 2018, respectively. The Organization's Board of Directors voted to suspend the employer
contributions to the plan in April 2018 and resume contributions in January 2019 subsequent to the
adoption of revisions to the employer contribution component of the plan documents.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

10. Medical Malpractice

The Organization is protected from medical malpractice risk as an FQHC under the Federal Tort
Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional medical malpractice insurance, on a claims-
made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the FTCA. As of September 30,
2019, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of management,
will be settled for amounts in excess of both FTCA and medical malpractice insurance coverage,
nor are there any unasserted claims or incidents which require loss accrual. The Organization
intends to renew medical malpractice insurance coverage on a claims-made basis and anticipates
that such coverage will be available.

11. Litigation

From time-to-time certain complaints are filed against the Organization in the ordinary course of
business. Management vigorously defends the Organization's actions in those cases and utilizes
insurance to cover material losses. In the opinion of management, there are no matters that will
materially affect the Organization's consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Balance Sheet

September 30, 2019

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, net
Grants receivable

Other receivables

Inventory
Other current assets

Total current assets

Investment in limited liability company
Assets limited as to use

Fair value of interest rate swap
Property and equipment, net

Total assets

ASSETS

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey
Health Care, Health Care,

Inc. Inc.

$  453,924 $ 968,483
1,237,130

2019

Eliminations Consolidated

452,711

236,798

81,484

78.405

59,797

2,540,452 1,028,280

19,101
2,861,010

13,512
5.718.217

82,704

1.890.361

$11.152.292 $ 3.001.345

(59,797)

$ 1,422,407
1,237,130

452,711

236,798

81,484

78.405

(59,797) 3,508,935

19,101

2,943,714
13,512

:  7.608.578

S  (59.7971 $14.093.840

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 701,615 $
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

961,024

85,418

$  (59,797) $ 641,818
961,024

85,418

40.773

Total current liabilities 1,813,474 40,773 (59,797) 1,794,450

Long-term debt, less current maturities 1.122.027 909.049 _ 2.031.076

Total liabilities 2.935.501 949.822 f59.7971 3.825.526

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

7,680,685

536.106

2,051,523 - 9,732,208
536.106

Total net assets 8.216.791 2.051.523 10.268.314

Total liabilities and net assets $11,152,292 $ 3.001.345 $ f59.7971 $14,093,840
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Consolidating Balance Sheet

September 30, 2018

ASSETS

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey
Health Care, Health Care, 2018

Inc. Inc. Consolidatec

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $  656,379 $  684,636 $ 1,341,015
Patient accounts receivable, net 1,330,670 _ 1,330,670
Grants receivable 228,972 _ 228,972
Other receivables 172,839 - 172,839
Inventory 72,219 _ 72,219
Other current assets 139.568 - 139.568

Total current assets 2,600,647 684,636 3,285,283

Investment in limited liability company 22,590 . 22,590
Assets limited as to use 2,920,876 284,474 3.205,350
Property and equipment, net 5.585.290 1.999.633 7.584.923

Total assets $11,129,403 $ 2.968.743 $14,098,146

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $  438,830 $ $  438,830
Accrued payroll and related expenses 919,690 - 919,690
Deferred revenue 117,696 _ 117,696
Current maturities of long-term debt 63.027 38.987 102.014

Total current liabilities 1,539,243 38,987 1,578,230

Long-term debt, less current maturities 1,184,455 949,882 2,134,337
fair value of interest rate swap 13.404 - 13.404

Total liabilities 2.737.102 988.869 3.725.971

Net assets

Without donor restrictions 8,081,155 1,979,874 10,061,029
With donor restrictions 311.146 - 311.146

Total net assets 8.392.301 1.979.874 10.372.175

Total liabilities and net assets $11,129,403 $ 2.968.743 $14,098,146
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2019

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue

Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue

Rental income

Grants, contracts and contributions
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restrictions for

operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages

.  Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other operating expenses
Insurance

Depreciation
Interest expense

Total operating expenses

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over
expenses

Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restrictions for

capital acquisition

(Decrease) increase in net assets
without donor restrictions

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey
Health Care Health Care,

Inc. Inc.

$ 9,143,768 $
f398.544)

8,745,224

6,104,270
1,637,475

75.197

16.562.166

10.584,157

1,993,787
646,774

1,731,860

808,327
694,558
145,114
351,790
64.197

17.020.564

(458,398)

26,916

31.012

227,916

103

228.019

128

300

3,012

109,272
43.658

156.370

71,649

2019

Eliminations Consolidated

(227,916)

$ 9,143,768
(398.544)

8,745,224

6,104,270
1,637,578

75.197

(227.916) 16.562.269

-  10,584,157
1,993,787

646,774

1,731,988
(227,916) 580,711

697,570

145,114

461,062
;  107.855

(227.916) 16.949.018

(386,749)

26,916

-  31.012

$  (400.470) $ 71.649 $. $  (328.821)
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue

Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue

Rental income

Grants, contracts and contributions
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restrictions for

operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other operating expenses
Insurance

Depreciation
Interest

Total operating expenses

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over
expenses

Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restrictions for

capital acquisition

(Decrease) increase in net assets
without donor restrictions

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey
Healthcare, Healthcare, 2018

Inc. Inc. Eliminations Consolidated

9,426,185 $
(354.4601

9,071,725

5,538,925
769,148

118.447

15.498.245

9,941,188
1,688,571

715,784

1,569,171

816,102
535,414
143,338
353,293
60.447

15.823.308

(325,063)

365

16.651

227,916

92

228.008

78

156

6,169
2,000

106,423

35.984

150.810

77,198

(227,916)

(227,916)

$ 9,426,185
(354.4601

9,071,725

5,538,925
769,240

:  118.447

(227.9161 15.498.337

9,941,188
1,688,571

715,862
1,569,327
594,355
537,414

143,338

459,716
96.431

(227.9161 15.746.202

(247,865)

365

-  16.651

$  (308.0471 $ 77.198 $. $  (230.8491
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended September 30, 2019

Lamprey
Health Care,

Inc.

Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care,

Inc.

2019

Consolidated

Net assets without donor restrictions

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restrictions for capital

acquisition

$  (458.398)
26,916

31.012

$  71,649 $  (386,749)
26,916

31.012

(Decrease) increase in net assets without donor
restrictions M00.4701 71.649 f328.8211

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions

Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restrictions for capital

acquisition

205,027
126,142

(75,197)

^31.0121

-

205,027
126,142

(75,197)

f31.0121

Increase in net assets with donor restrictions 224.960 224.960

Change in net assets (175,510) 71,649 (103,861)

Net assets, beginning of year 8.392.301 1.979.874 10.372.175

Net assets, end of year $ 8.216.791 $ 2.051.523 $10,268,314
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Lamprey
Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care, Health Care,

Inc. Inc.

2018

Consolidated

Net assets without donor restrictions

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restrictions for capital

acquisition

$  (325,063)
365

16.651

$  77,198 $  (247,865)
365

16.651

(Decrease) Increase in net assets without
donor restrictions f308.0471 77.198 (230.8491

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions

Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restrictions for capital

acquisition

71,205

16,651

(118,447)

(16.651^

-

71,205

16,651
(118,447)

(16.6511

Decrease in net assets with donor restrictions f47,242) (47.2421

Change in net assets (355.289) 77,198 (278,091)

Net assets, beginning of year 8.747.590 1.902.676 10.650.266

Net assets, end of year $ 8.392.301 $ 1.979.874 $10,372,175
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I^BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care. Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc., which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of
September 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated statements of operations, functional
expenses, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

r Moine • New Hampshire • Mossochusetts • Connecticut ■ West Virginia • Arizona ^
berrydunn.com X I



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3D59E180-«B3B-4830-Bl7C-0F280E479742

Board of Directors

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, and the results of their operations, changes in their net assets and
their cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

Other Matter

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying consolidating balance sheets as of September 30, 2020
and 2019, and the related consolidating statements of operations and changes in net assets for the
years then ended, are presented for purposes of additional analysis rather than to present the financial
position, results of operations and changes in net assets of the individual entities, and are not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

LL-C^

Portland, Maine

January 28, 2021
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 30, 2020 and 2019

ASSETS

2020 2019

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,504,514 $ 1,422,407
Patient accounts receivable, net 1,277,013 1,237,130
Grants receivable 658,568 452,711
Other receivables 130,004 236,798
Inventory 129,591 81,484
Other current assets 147.799 78.405

Total current assets 5,847.489 3,508,935

Investment in limited liability company 19,101
Assets limited as to use 2,953,580 2,943,714
Fair value of interest rate swap . 13,512
Property and equipment, net 7.795.861 7.608.578

Total assets $16,596,930 $14,093,840

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $  578,888 $  641,818
Accrued payroll and related expenses 1,322,364 961,024
Deferred revenue 72,421 85,418
Provider Relief Funds 196,549 _

COVID-19 Emergency Healthcare System Relief Fund refundable
advance 250,000 -

Current maturities of long-term debt 88.027 106.190

Total current liabilities 2,508,249 1,794,450

Long-term debt, less current maturities 2,821.023 2,031,076
Fair value of interest rate swaps 217.657 -

Total liabilities 5.546.929 3.825.526

Net assets

Without donor restrictions 10,579,230 9,732,208
With donor restrictions 470.771 536.106

Total net assets 11.050.001 10.268.314

Total liabilities and net assets S16.596.930 $14,093,840

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue

Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue

Rental Income

Grants, contracts and contributions

Paycheck Protection Program
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restriction for operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other operating expenses
Insurance

Depreciation
Interest

Total operating expenses

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition

Increase (decrease) in net assets without donor restrictions

2020 2019

$10,206,803 $ 9,424,048
(497.961) (398.544)

9,708,842 9,025,504

176,353 194,443

5,663,601 6,104,270
2,152,212 .

410,309 1,162,855

242.945 75.197

18.354.262 16.562.269

11,106,208 10,583,987

2,096,040 2,056,956

747,665 646,620

1,691,285 1,752,050
574,422 580,711

474,659 614,501

140,572 145,114

462,768 461,062
111.808 108.017

17.405.427 16.949.018

948,835 (386,749)

(231,169) 26,916

129.356 31.012

$  847.022 $  (328.821)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Total Program Administration

Healthcare Services and Support
Services AHEC/PHN Transoortation Services Total

Salaries and wages $  8,372.143 $  498.707 S  69.857 $  8,940,707 $  2,165,501 $ 11,106,208
Employee benefits 1.567.514 93.157 12,726 1,673,397 422,643 2,096,040
Supplies 708,447 7,255 - 715,702 31,963 747,665
Purchased services 879,416 114,614 - 994,030 697,255 1,691,285
Facilities 23,488 402 8,652 32,542 541.880 574,422
Other 166,743 61,261 - 228.004 246.655 474,659
Insurance - - 7,673 7.673 132.899 140,572
Depreciation - - 26,400 26,400 436,368 462,768
Interest - - . 111,808 111,808
Allocated program support 754.724 74.216 14,538 843,478 (843,478) -

Allocated occupancy costs 817.796 35.153 4 641 857,590 (857,5901

Total S  13.290.271 S  884.765 $  144.487 $  14.319.523 S  3.085.904 $ 17.405.427

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC.

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended September 30, 2019

Total Prooram Administration

Healthcare Services and Support
Services AHEC/PHN TransDortation Services Total

Salaries and wages $  8,599,552 $  418,785 $  127,054 $  9,145.391 S  1.438.596 5;  10.583.987
Employee benefits 1,531,182 76,015 23.346 1.630.543 426.413 2.056.956
Supplies 614,474 12.839 47 627.360 19.260 646.620
Purchased services 912,746 225.590 407 1.138.743 613.307 1,752,050
Facilities 4,020 477 23.155 27.652 553.059 580.711
Other 264.063 157.524 120 421,707 192.794 614,501
Insurance - - 8.922 8,922 136,192 145,114
Depreciation - - 27.509 27,509 433.553 461,062
Interest - - - - 108,017 108,017
Allocated program support 886.269 - - 886,269 (886,269) .

Allocated occupancy costs 714.331 34.319 4.531 753.181 (753.181) ♦

Total J  13.526.637 S  925.549 S  215.091 $  14.667.277 $  2.281.741 S,  16.949018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

Net assets without donor restrictions

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ 948,835 $ (386.749)
Change in fair value of Interest rate swaps (231,169) 26,916
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition 129.356 31.012

Increase (decrease) in net assets without donor restrictions 847.022 (328.8211

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions 224,245 205,027
Grants for capital acquisition 82,721 126,142
Net assets released from restriction for operations (242,945) (75,197)
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition (129.3561 (31.0121

(Decrease) increase in net assets with donor restrictions (65.3351 224.960

Change in net assets 781,687 (103,861)

Net assets, beginning of year 10.268.314 10.372.175

Net assets, end of year $11.050.001 $10,268.314

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Equity in earnings of limited liability company
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Grants for capital acquisition
(Increase) decrease in the following assets;

Patient accounts receivable

Grants receivable

Other receivable

Inventory
Other current assets

(Decrease) increase in the following liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

Provider Relief Funds

COVID-19 Emergency Healthcare System Relief Fund
refundable advance

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Equity distribution from limited liability company

Capital acquisitions

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Grants for capital acquisition
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Principal payments on long-term debt

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year

2020 2019

;  781,687 :5  (103,861)

462,768 461,062

6,877 3,489

231,169 (26,916)
(82,721) (126,142)

(39,883) 93,540

(205,857) (223,739)
106,794 (63,959)
(48,107) (9,265)
(69,394) 61,163

(3,984) 25,215

361,340 41,334

(12,997) (32,278)
196,549 -

250.000 _

1.934.241 99.643

12,224

1708.997) (306.944)

1696.773) (306.944)

82,721 126,142

2,100,000 -

(1.328.216) (99.085)

854.505 27.057

2,091,973 (180,244)

4.366.121 4.546.365

$ 6.458.094 S 4.366.121
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Concluded)

Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

Breakdown of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash,
end of year
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,604,514 $ 1,422,407
Assets limited as to use 2.953.580 2.943.714

$ 6.458.094 S 4.366.121

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid for interest $ 111 .8M $ 108.017
Capital expenditures included in accounts payable $ 118,827 $ 177,773

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Organization

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (LHC) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in the State of New
Hampshire. LHC is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) whose primary purpose is to provide
high quality family health, medical and behavioral health services to residents of southern New
Hampshire without regard to the patient's ability to pay for these services.

Subsidiary

Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (FLHC) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in the State of
New Hampshire. FLHC's primary purpose is to support LHC. FLHC is also the owner of the property
occupied by LHC's administrative and program offices in Newmarket. New Hampshire. LHC is the sole
member of FLHC.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP), which require the Organization to
report information in the consolidated financial statements according to the following net asset
classifications;

Net assets without donor restrictions; Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity, of which there
were none.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of LHC and Its subsidiary, FLHC
(collectively, the Organization). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Income Taxes

Both LHC and FLHC are public charities under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As
public charities, the entities are exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned in
accordance with their tax-exempt purposes. Unrelated business income is subject to state and
federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded
that the Organization has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.

COVID-19

In March 2020 the World Health Organization declared coronavirus disease (COVID-19) a global
pandemic and the United States federal government declared COVID-19 a national emergency.
The Organization implemented an emergency response to ensure the safety of its patients, staff
and the community. The school based dental health program has been suspended until schools
reopen and are able to provide adequate space for the services in accordance with regulatory
guidelines. The Organization's senior transportation program was suspended due to the pandemic
and has since been permanently discontinued with other local transportation programs providing
these services to the communities. In adhering to guidelines issued by the State of New Hampshire
and the Center for Disease Control, the Organization took steps to create safe distances between
both staff and patients. These efforts resulted in the temporary furlough and reduction of hours for
17% of staff and a temporary reduction in clinic hours. All providers received the necessary
equipment to allow for medical and behavioral health visits using telehealth. Facility modifications
included installation of plexi-glass partitions, restructuring of work stations to allow for 6 feet
between staff, heating, ventilation, and air conditioning systems were modified to improve air
exchange rates and the tents and awnings were setup to allow screening, testing and vaccine
administration outside of the four walls of the clinics. In addition, the Organization created infection
control wings at all sites for positively screened patients.

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act and the Paycheck Protection
Program and Health Care Enhancement Act (PPPHCE) Act established the Provider Relief Fund
(PRF) to support healthcare providers in the battle against the COVID-19 outbreak. The PRF is
being administered by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS). The
Organization received PRF in the amount of $196,549 during the year ended September 30, 2020.
These funds are to be used for qualifying expenses and to cover lost revenue due to COVID-19
through June 30, 2021. The PRF are considered contributions and are recognized as income when
qualifying expenditures have been incurred. The Organization has not incurred qualifying expenses
or lost revenue necessary to recognize these contributions during the year ended September 30,
2020 and as a result the funds are recorded as a refundable advance on the consolidated balance

sheet. Management expects to fully expend the funds prior to June 30, 2021.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

On April 19, 2020, the Organization qualified for and received a loan in the amount of $2,152,212
pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP), a program implemented by the U.S. Small
Business Administration (SBA) under the CARES Act and the PPPHCE Act. The principal amount
of the PPP is subject to forgiveness, upon the Organization's request, to the extent that the
proceeds are used to pay qualifying expenditures, including payroll costs, rent and utilities,
incurred by the Organization during a specific covered period. The Organization is follov\/ing the
conditional contribution model to account for the PPP and management believes the Organization
has met the conditions for forgiveness and has recognized the full amount of the PPP as revenue
for the year ended September 30, 2020. The Organization has not yet applied for forgiveness and
is required to do so no later than May 2021.

The SBA has indicated it will review PPP loans in excess of $2,000,000 to determine whether the

Organization can support the good-faith certification made when applying for the PPP that
economic uncertainty made the loan request necessary to support ongoing operations.
Management believes there is sufficient evidence to support the Organization's necessity of the
PPP to support ongoing operations due to the economic uncertainty at the time of the loan
application. Any difference between amounts previously estimated to be forgiven and amounts
subsequently determined to be forgivable will be reflected in the year that such amounts become
known.

On May 10, 2020, the Organization qualified for and received a loan in the amount of $250,000
from the COVID-IS Emergency Healthcare System Relief Fund (Relief Loan), a program
implemented by the State of New Hampshire (the State), Department of Health and Human
Services. The principal amount of the Relief Loan has the potential to be converted to a grant at
the sole discretion of the State. The Relief Loan was converted to a grant subsequent to
September 30, 2020.

During 2020, the Organization was awarded cost reimbursable grants from HHS to support the
Organization in preventing, preparing for, and responding to COVID-19 in the amount of
$1,237,052, of which $856,195 has not been recognized at September 30, 2020 because
qualifying expenditures have not yet been incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of business checking and savings accounts as well as petty
cash funds.

The Organization maintains cash balances at several financial institutions. The balances are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. At various times
throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances may exceed FDIC insurance. The
Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and management believes it is not
exposed to any significant risk.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible
accounts. In evaluating the collectibility of patient accounts receivable, the Organization analyzes
its past collection history from insured and uninsured patients and identifies trends for all funding
sources in the aggregate. Management regularly reviews revenue and payer mix data in evaluating
the sufficiency of the allowance for uncollectible accounts. Amounts not collected after all
reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted are applied against the allowance for
uncollectible accounts.

Grants and Other Receivables

Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. All such amounts are considered collectible.

the Organization receives a significant amount of grants from HHS. As with all government
funding, these grants are subject to reduction or termination in future years. For the years ended
September 30. 2020 and 2019, grants from HHS (including both direct awards and awards
passed through other organizations) represented approximately 80% and 76%, respectively, of
grants, contracts and contributions revenue.

A portion of the Organization's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable grants, which are
conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying
expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has met the
performance requirements or incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant
provisions, as applicable. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported
as deferred revenue. The Organization has been awarded cost reimbursable grants in the amount
of $4,233,420, the majority of which are available through May and June 2021, that have not been
recognized at September 30, 2020 because qualifying expenditures have not yet been incurred.

Investment in Limited Liability Company

The Organization was one of eight partners in Primary Health Care Partners (PHCP), a limited
liability company organized in New Hampshire. The Organization's investment in PHCP was
reported on the equity method due to the Organization's ability to exercise significant influence
over reporting and financial policies. The Organization's investment in PHCP amounted to $19,101
at September 30, 2019. PHCP was terminated on December 31, 2019 due to changes in the
regulatory environment in New Hampshire. The Organization's capital balance was distributed to
the Organization during 2020 in the amount of $12,224, resulting in a recognized loss of $6,877.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are
expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are capitalized. Provision for depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the related assets. The
Organization's capitalization policy is applicable for acquisitions greater than $5,000.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payers, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as
final settlements are determined.

340B Drug Pricing Program

LHC, as an FOHC, is eligible to participate in the 340B Drug Pricing Program. The program
requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHCs and other identified entities at a
reduced price. LHC contracts with local pharmacies under this program. The local pharmacies
dispense drugs to eligible patients of LHC and bill insurances on behalf of LHC. Reimbursement
received by the pharmacies is remitted to LHC net of dispensing and administrative fees.

Contributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as net assets with donor
restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit use of the donated assets. When a
donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the consolidated statements of operations as net assets released from
restriction. Contributions whose restrictions are met in the same period as the support was
received are recognized as net assets without donor restrictions.

The Organization has adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) No. 2018-08, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958), Clarifying the Scope and the
Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions l^ade. ASU No. 2018-08
applies to all entities that receive or make contributions and clarifies the definition of transactions
accounted for as an exchange transaction subject to applicable guidance for revenue recognition,

and transactions that should be accounted for as contributions (non-exchange transactions)
subject to the contribution accounting model. Further, ASU No. 2018-08 provides criteria for
evaluating whether contributions are unconditional or conditional. Conditional contributions specify
a barrier that the recipient must overcome and a right of return that releases the donor from its
obligation if the barrier is not achieved, otherwise the contribution is unconditional. The adoption of
ASU No. 2018-08 had no impact on the Organization's net assets, results of its operations, or cash
flows.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Functional Expenses

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to
more than one program or supporting function of the Organization. Expenses which are allocated
between program services and administrative support include employee benefits which are
allocated based on direct wages and facilities and related costs which are allocated based upon
square footage occupied by the program.

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations reflect the excess (deficiency) of revenue over
expenses. Changes in net assets without donor restriction which are excluded from this measure
include contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions which, by
donor restriction, were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets) and changes in fair
value of an interest rate swap that qualifies for hedge accounting.

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements, management has
considered transactions or events occurring through January 28, 2021, the date that the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated
subsequent events after that date for inclusion in the consolidated financial statements.

2. Availability and Liquidity of Financial Assets

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. The Organization has various sources of liquidity at its disposal,
including cash and cash equivalents and a line of credit.

The Organization had working capital of $3,339,240 and $1,714,485 at September 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively. The Organization had average days cash and cash equivalents on hand (based
on normal expenditures) of 75 and 31 at September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year as of September 30 were as
follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, net
Grants receivable

Other receivables

Financial assets available

2020

3,504,514
1,277,013

658,568
130.004

2019

1,422,407

1,237,130
452,711
236.798

$  5.570.099 $ 3.349.046
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

The Organization has certain board-designated assets limited as to use which are available for
general expenditure within one year in the normal course of operations upon obtaining approval
from the Board of Directors and other assets limited as to use for donor-restricted purposes, which
are more fully described in Note 4. Accordingly, these assets have not been included in the
quantitave information above.

The Organization's goal is generally to have, at the minimum, the U.S. Health Resources and
Services Administration recommended days cash and cash equivalents on hand for operations of
30 days.

The Organization has a $1,000,000 line of credit, as discussed in more detail in Note 6.

3. Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable consisted of the following at September 30:

2020 2019

Patient accounts receivable $ 1,587,492 $ 1,397,194
Contract 340B pharmacy program receivables 178.003 75.586

Total patient accounts receivable 1,765,495 1,472,780

Allowance for doubtful accounts (488.4821 (235.6501

Patient accounts receivable, net $ 1.277.013 $ 1.237.1_^

A reconciliation of the allowance for uncollectible accounts follows:

2020 2019

Balance, beginning of year $ 235,650 $ 254,097
Provision for bad debts 497,961 398,544

Write-offs (245.1291 (416.9911

Balance, end of year $ 488.482 $ 235.650

The provision for bad debts and allowance for uncollectible accounts increased for the year ended
and at September 30, 2020, respectively, as a result of complications in the collection process
during the COVID-19 pandemic.

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. Primary payers representing 10% or more of
the Organization's gross patient accounts receivable are as follows at September 30:

2020 2019

Medicare 15% 17%

Medicaid 19% 19%
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

4. Assets Limited as To Use

Assets limited as to use are made up of cash and cash equivalents which are to be used for the
following purposes at September 30:

2020 2019

Repairs and maintenance on the real property collateralizing
loans with the United States Department of Agriculture,
Rural Development (Rural Development) $ $  142.092

Board-designated for
Transportation
Working capital
Capital improvements

16,982
1,391,947
1.139.165

16,982

1,391,947

951.717

Total board-designated 2.548.094 2.360.646

Donor restricted 405.486 440.976

Total $ 2.953.580 $ 2.943.714

Propertv and Eauioment

Property and equipment consists of the following at September 3D:

2020 2019

Land and improvements
Building and improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

$ 1.154,753
11,661,674

1.887.073

$ 1,154,753
10,970.378

1.799.636

Total cost

Less accumulated depreciation
14,703,500

7.115.614

13,924,767

6.667.847

Construction in progress and assets not in service
7,587,886
207.975

7,256,920
351.658

Property and equipment, net $ 7.795.861 $ 7.608.578

Property and equipment acquired with Federal grant funds are subject to specific federal standards
for sales and other dispositions. In many cases, the Federal government retains a residual
ownership interest in the assets, requiring prior approval and restrictions on disposition.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

6. Line of Credit

The Organization has an available $1,000,000 revolving line of credit from a local bank through
May 31 2021, with an interest rate at Prime, but not less than 3.25% (3.25% at September 30,
2020). The line of credit is collateralized by all business assets. There was no outstanding balance
as of September 30, 2020 and 2019.

7. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following at September 30:

2020 2019

Promissory note payable to local bank; see terms outlined
below. (1) $ 829,242 $ 851,934

Promissory note payable to local bank; see terms outlined
below. (2) 2,079,808

5.375% promissory note payable to Rural Development, paid in
monthly installments of $4,949, which includes interest,
through June 2026. The note was collateralized by all tangible
property owned by the Organization. The note was paid in full
through refinancing on October 2, 2019; see (2) below. - 335,509

4.75% promissory note payable to Rural Development, paid in
monthly installments of $1,892, which includes interest,
through November 2033. The note was collateralized by all
tangible property owned by the Organization. The note was
paid in full through refinancing on October 2, 2019; see (2)
below. - 231,091

4.375% promissory note payable to Rural Development, paid in
monthly installments of $5,000, which includes interest,
through December 2036. The note was collateralized by all
tangible property owned by the Organization. The note was
paid in full through refinancing on October 2, 2019; see (2)
below. : 718.732

Total long-term debt 2,909,050 2,137,266
Less current maturities 88.027 106.190

Long-term debt, less current maturities $ 2,821,0^ $ 2,031,076
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

(1) The Organization has a promissory note with a local bank which is a ten-year balloon note to be
paid at the amortization rate of 30 years, with variable monthly payments of principal and interest
at 85% of the one-month LIBOR rate plus 2.125% through January 2022 when the balloon
payment is due. The note is collateralized by the real estate. The Organization has an interest rate
swap agreement for the ten-year period through 2022 that limits the potential interest rate
fluctuation and substantively fixes the rate at 4.13%.

(2) On October 2, 2019, the Organization obtained a $2,100,000 promissory note with a local bank,
which repaid the notes payable due to Rural Development in the amount of $1,285,332 and
included additional financing to renovate the Organization's Newmarket clinical building. The note
has a ten-year balloon and is to be paid at the amortization rate of 30 years, with variable monthly
principal payments plus interest at the one-month LIBOR rate plus 1.5% through October 2029
when the balloon payment is due. The note is collateralized by the real estate. The Organization
has an interest rate swap agreement for the ten-year period through 2029 that limits the potential
interest rate fluctuation and substantially fixes the rate at 3.173%.

The fair value of the interest rate swap agreements and a previous swap agreement in 2019 was a
liability of $217,657 and an asset of $13,512 at September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The Organization is required to meet certain administrative and financial covenants under the loan
agreements included above. In the event of default, the bank has the option to terminate the
agreement and immediately request payment of the outstanding debt without notice of any kind to
the Organization. The Organization was in compliance with all loan covenants at September 30,
2020.

Maturities of long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter are as follows at September 30:

2021 $ 88,027
2022 829,785
2023 46,465
2024 47,812

2025 49,543

Thereafter 1.847.418

Total $ 2.909.050

8. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Organization participates in certain fixed-payor swap contracts related to underlying, variable
rate debt obligations. The purpose of these contracts is to protect the Organization against rising
interest rates related to the variable rate debt. These contracts qualify for hedge accounting as a
cash flow hedge and are reported at fair value as an asset or a liability. The change in fair value of
the contracts are reported as change in net assets without donor restrictions. The Organization
expects to hold the swap contracts until their respective maturities.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

The Interest swap contract terms are summarized as follows at September 30:

Entity

LHC

FLHC

Fixed

Rate

Paid

4.1300 %

3.1730 %

Variable

Rate

Received

Notional

Amount

2020

Fair Value

Asset

(Liabllitv)

2019

Fair Value

Asset

(Liability)

Cumulative unrealized loss

2.2578 % $ 829,242 $ (18,241) $ 13.512
1.6568 % 2.061,527 (199.416) :

$ (217.657) $ 13.512

Termination

Date

11-19-2021

10-02-2029

Counterparty

TD Bank

TO Bank

U.S. GAAP establish a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between market participant
assumptions based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity
(observable inputs that are classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting
entity's own assumptions about market participant assumptions (unobservable inputs classified
within Level 3 of the hierarchy).

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2 — Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other Inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 — Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The Organization uses inputs other than quoted prices that are observable to value the interest
rate swaps. The Organization considers these inputs to be Level 2 inputs in the context of the fair
value hierarchy. These values represent the estimated amounts the Organization would receive or
pay to terminate agreements, taking into consideration current interest rates and the current
creditworthiness of the counterparty.

9. Net Assets

Net assets without donor restrictions are designated for the following purposes at September 30:

2020 2019

Undesignated
Board-designated

Total

$ 8,031,136 $ 7,371,562
2.548.094 2.360.646

$10.579.230 $ 9.732.208
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Net assets with donor restrictions were restricted for the following specific purposes at September
30:

2020 2019

Temporary in nature:
Capital improvements $ 214,647 $ 231,437
Community programs 170,745 181,151
Substance abuse prevention 20,094 28,388
Grants for capital acquisitions not in service 65.285 95.130

Total $ 470.771 $ 536.106

10. Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue was as follows for the years ended September 30:

2020 2019

Gross charges $13,852,130 $13,786,408
340B contract pharmacy revenue 1.617.196 1.139.085

Total gross revenue 15,469,326 14,925,493

Contractual adjustments (5,010,816) (4,793,060)
Sliding fee discounts (811,423) (964,485)
Other patient related revenue 559.716 256.100

Total patient service revenue $10.206.8^ S 9.424.048

The mix of gross patient service revenue from patients and third-party payers was as follows for
the years ended September 30:

2020 2019

Medicare 14% 17%
Medicaid 34% 31%
Blue Cross Blue Shield 17% 17%

Other payers 22% 21 %

Self-pay and sliding fee scale patients 13% 14%

100% 100%
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare. Medicaid and 340B programs are complex and
subject to interpretation. The Organization believes that it is in compliance with alt laws and
regulations. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare, Medicaid and 340B programs. Differences between amounts
previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or payable are
included in patient service revenue in the year that such amounts become known.

A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payers follows:

Medicare

The Organization is primarily reimbursed for medical and ancillary services based on the lesser of
actual charges or prospectively set rates for an encounter furnished to a Medicare beneficiary.
Certain other services are reimbursed based on fee-for-service rate schedules.

Medicaid

The Organization is primarily reimbursed for medical and ancillary services based on prospectively
set rates for an encounter furnished to a Medicaid beneficiary. Certain other services, including
most dental services, are reimbursed based on fee-for-service rate schedules.

Other Pavers

The Organization has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance
carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. Under these
arrangements, the Organization is reimbursed for services based on contractually obligated
payment rates for each Current Procedural Terminology code, which may be less than the
Organization's public fee schedule.

Uninsured Patients

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its sliding fee discount
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Organization does
not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net
patient service revenue. The Organization estimates the costs associated with providing this care
by calculating the ratio of total cost to total charges, and then multiplying that ratio by the gross
uncompensated charges associated with providing care to patients eligible for the sliding fee
discount program. The estimated cost of providing services to patients under the Organization's
sliding fee discount program amounted to $1,041,631 and $1,053,562 for the years ended
September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The Organization is able to provide these services
with a component of funds received through federal grants.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

11. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a defined contribution plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b).
The Organization contributed $292,808 and $300,572 for the years ended September 30, 2020
and 2019, respectively.

12. Medical Malpractice

The Organization is protected from medical malpractice risk as an FQHC under the Federal Tort
Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional medical malpractice insurance, on a claims-
made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the FTCA. As of September 30,
2020, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of management,
will be settled for amounts in excess of either FTCA or medical malpractice insurance coverage,
nor are there any unasserted claims or incidents which require loss accrual. The Organization
intends to renew medical malpractice insurance coverage on a claims-made basis and anticipates
that such coverage will be available.

13. Litigation

From time-to-time certain complaints are filed against the Organization in the ordinary course of
business. Management vigorously defends the Organization's actions in those cases and utilizes
insurance to cover material losses. In the opinion of management, there are no matters that will
materially affect the Organization's consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC.

Consolidating Balance Sheet

September 30, 2020

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, net
Grants receivable

Other receivables

Inventory
Other current assets

Total current assets

Assets limited as to use

Property and equipment, net

Total assets

ASSETS

Lamprey
Health Care,

Inc.

$  2,205,696
1.277,013
658,568
130,004

129,591
147.799

4,548,671

2,953,580
6.009.215

Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care.

Inc.

2020

Eliminations Consolidated

$  1,298.818 $

1,298,818

1.786.646

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

Due to affiliate

Provider Relief Funds

COVID-19 Emergency Healthcare System
Relief Fund refundable advance

Due to (from) affiliate
Current maturities of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current maturities
Fair value of interest rate swap
Due to (from) affiliate

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$ 13.511.466 S 3.085.464 S.

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$  - $578,888
1,322,364

72,421

196,549

$  3,504,514
1,277,013
658,568
130,004
129,591

147.799

5,847,489

2,953,580
7.795.861

$ 16.596.930

578,888
1,322,364

72,421

196,549

250,000
22,604
44.453

(22,604)
43.574

250,000

88.027

2,487,279 20,970 2,508,249

784,789
18,241

1.104.410

2,036,234

199,416
f1.104.4101

2,821,023

217,657

4.394.719 1.152.210 5.546.929

8,645,976
470.771

1,933,254 10,579,230
470.771

9.116.747 1.933.254 11.050.001

1  13.511.466 $  3.085.464 $ -  $ 16.596.930
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC.

Consolidating Balance Sheet

September 30, 2019

ASSETS

Lamprey
Friends of

Lamprey
2019

Inc. Inc. Eliminations Consolidated

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, net
Grants receivable

Other receivables

Inventory
Other current assets

$  453,924
1,237,130
452,711

236.798
81,484
78.405

$  968;483

59,797

$

(59,797)

S  1,422,407

1,237,130
452,711
236,798
81,484
78.405

Total current assets 2,540,452 1,028,280 (59,797) 3,508,935

Investment in limited liability company
Assets limited as to use

Fair value of interest rate swap
Property and equipment, net

19,101
2,861,010

13,512
5.718.217

82,704

1.890.361

■ 19,101
2,943,714

13,512
7.608.578

Total assets $ 11.152.292 $  3.001.345 $  f59.7971 $ 14.093.840

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

Current maturities of long-term debt

$  701,615
961,024
85,418
65.417

$

40.773

$  (59,797) $  641,818
961,024
85,418
106.190

Total current liabilities 1,813,474 40,773 (59,797) 1,794,450

Long-term debt, less current maturities 1.122.027 909.049 . 2.031.076

Total liabilities 2.935.501 949.822 (59.797) 3.825.526

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

7,680,685
536.106

2,051,523 - 9,732,208
536.106

Total net assets 8.216.791 2.051.523 10.268.314

Total liabilities and net assets S 11.152.292 $  3.001.345 $  (59.797) $ 14.093.840
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue

Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue

Rental income

Grants, contracts and contributions
Paycheck Protection Program
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restriction for

operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other operating expenses
Insurance

Depreciation
Interest expense

Total operating expenses

Excess of revenue over expenses

Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restriction for

capital acquisition

Increase (decrease) in net assets
without donor restrictions

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey
Health Care Health Care,

Inc. Inc.

$10,206,803 $
(497.961)

9,708,842

176,353

5,663,601
2,152,212
410,188

242.945

18.354.141

11,106,208

2,096,040

747,665
1,691,103
798,038

474,659

140,572

352,880

79.288

17.486.453

867,688

(31,753)

129.356

227,916

121

228.037

2020

Eliminations Consolidated

182

4,300

109,888

32.520

146.890

81,147

(199,416)

(227,916)

(227,916)

(227.916)

$10,206,803
(497.961)

9,708,842

176,353

5,663,601

2,152,212

410,309

242,945

(227.916) 18.354.262

11,106,208

2,096,040

747,665

1,691,285
574,422

474,659

140,572

462,768
111.808

$  965.291 $ (118.269) $.

17.405.427

948,835

(231,169)

129.356

$  847.022
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC.

Consolidating Statement of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2019

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue

Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue

Rental income

Grants, contracts and contributions
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restriction for

operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other operating expenses
Insurance

Depreciation
Interest

Total operating expenses

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over
expenses

Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restriction for

capital acquisition

(Decrease) increase in net assets
without donor restrictions

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey
Health Care, Health Care,

Inc. Inc.

$ 9,424,048 $

(398.544)

2019

Eliminations Consolidated

9,025,504

194,443

6,104,270
1,162,752

75.197

16.562.166

10,583,987
2,056,956

646,620

1,751,922
808,327

611,489
145,114

351,790

64.359

17.020.564

(458,398)

26,916

31.012

227,916

103

228.019

128

300

3,012

109,272
43.658

156.370

71,649

(227,916)

$ 9,424,048

(398.544)

9,025,504

194,443

6,104,270

1,162,855

75.197

(227.916) 16.562.269

-  10,583,987

2,056,956

646,620

1,752,050

(227,916) 580,711
614,501

145,114

461,062

;  108.017

(227.916) 16.949.018

(386,749)

26,916

31J312

S  (400.470) $ 71.649 $. $  (328.821)
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Changes In Net Assets

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Lamprey
Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care,

Inc.

Health Care,

Inc.

2020

Consolidated

Net assets without donor restrictions

Excess of revenue over expenses
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restriction for capital

acquisition

$  867,688
(31,753)

129.356

$  81,147

(199,416)
$  948,835

(231,169)

129.356

Increase (decrease) in net assets without donor
restrictions 965.291 (118.2691 847.022

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions

Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restriction for operations

Net assets released from restrictions for capital
acquisition

224,245

82.721

(242,945)

n29.3561

- 224,245

82,721

(242,945)

(129.3561

Decrease in net assets with donor restrictions f65.3351 (65.3351

Change in net assets 899,956 (118,269) 781,687

Net assets, beginning of year 8.216.791 2.051.523 10.268.314

Net assets, end of year $ 9.116.747 $ 1.933.254 $11,050,001
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC.

Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended September 30, 2019

Lamprey
Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care, Health Care, 2019

Inc. Inc. Consolidated

Net assets without donor restrictions

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restriction for capital

acquisition

$  (458,398)
26,916

31.012

$  71.649 $  (386,749)
26,916

31.012

(Decrease) increase in net assets without donor
restrictions (400.4701 71.649 (328.8211

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions

Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restriction for capital

acquisition

205,027

126,142

(75,197)

(31.0121

- 205,027

126,142

(75,197)

(31.0121

Increase in net assets with donor restrictions 224.960 224.960

Change in net assets (175,510) 71,649 (103,861)

Net assets, beginning of year 8.392.301 1.979.874 10.372.175

Net assets, end of year $ 8.216.791 $ 2.051.523 $10,268,314
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I^BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc., which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of
September 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of operations, functional
expenses, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Moine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona

berrydunn.com



DocuSign Envelope ID; 3D59E1BO-8B3B-4B3O-817C-OF280E479742

Board of Directors

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, and the results of their operations, changes in their net assets
and their cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, during the year ended September 30,
2021, Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. adopted new accounting
guidance, Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-09, Revenue
from Contracts witti Customers (Topic 606), and related guidance. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Other Matter

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying consolidating balance sheets as of September 30, 2021
and 2020, and the related consolidating statements of operations and changes in net assets for the
years then ended, are presented for purposes of additional analysis rather than to present the financial
position, results of operations and changes in net assets of the individual entities, and are not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

L.L-C-

Portland, Maine

January 26, 2022
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 30, 2021 and 2020

ASSETS

2021 2020

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,777,557 $ 3,504,514
Patient accounts receivable 1,389,692 1,396,652
Grants receivable 724,399 658,568
Other receivables 137,513 130,004
Inventory 177,384 129,591
Other current assets 262.941 147.799

Total current assets 6,469,486 5,967,128

Assets limited as to use 4,003,423 2,953,580
Property and equipment, net 7.507.299 7.795.861

Total assets $17,980,208 $16,716,569

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $  540,324 $  578,888
Accrued payroll and related expenses 1,306,202 1,322,364
Due to third party payers 241,394 119,639
Deferred revenue 423,922 72,421
Provider Relief Fund refundable advance _ 196,549
COVID-19 Emergency Healthcare System Relief Fund
refundable advance _ 250,000

Current maturities of long-term debt 90.068 88.027

Total current liabilities 2,601,910 2,627.888

Long-term debt, less current maturities 2,749,747 2,821,023
Fair value of interest rate swaps 67.441 217.657

Total liabilities 5.419.098 5.666.568

Net assets

Without donor restrictions 11,947,776 10,579,230
With donor restrictions 613.334 470.771

Total net assets 12.561.110 11.050.001

Total liabilities and net assets $17,980,208 $16,716,569

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Operating revenue
Net patient service revenue
Rental income

Grants, contracts and contributions
Paycheck Protection Program
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restriction for operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other operating expenses
Insurance

Depreciation
Interest

Total operating expenses

Excess of revenue over expenses

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition

Increase In net assets without donor restrictions

$10,386,518 $ 9,708,842
181,128

8,644,519

634,309
364.248

11,309,801
2,258,427
954,094

2,504,470
667,034
860,344

140,849
476,470
102.602

19.274.091

936,631

150,216
216,414
65.285

176,353

5,663,601

2,152.212
410,309

242.945

20.210.722 18.354.262

11,106,208

2,096,040
747,665

1,691,285

574,422

474,659
140,572

462,768

111.808

17.405.427

948,835

(231,169)

129.356

$ 1.368.546 $ 847.022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended September 30, 2021

Healthcare

Services AHEC/PHN

Total

Program
Services

Administration

and Support
Services Total

Salaries and wages $  9,107,974 $ 453,641 $ 9,561,615 $ 1,748,186 $ 11,309,801
Employee benefits 1,627,746 83,428 1,711,174 547,253 2,258,427
Supplies 924,304 6.075 930,379 23,715 954,094
Purchased services 1.062,898 418,398 1,481,296 1,023,174 2,504,470
Facilities 475.941 26,042 501,983 165,051 667,034
Other 379,745 57,277 437,022 423,322 860,344
Insurance - . - 140,849 140,849
Depreciation - - - 476,470 476,470
Interest - - - 102,602 102,602
Allocated program support 1.373.345 93217 1.466.562 (1.466.5621

Total S  14.951.953 S 1.138.078 $ 16.090.031 S 3.184.060 S 19.274.091

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Healthcare

Total Program
Services

Administralion

and Support
Services AHEC/PHN Transoortation Services Total

Salaries and wages $ 8,372.143 $  498,707 $  69.857 S 8.940,707 $ 2,165,501 $ 11.106,208
Employee benefits 1.567.514 93,157 12.726 1.673,397 422.643 2,096,040
Supplies 708.447 7,255 - 715,702 31.963 747.665
Purchased services 879,416 114,614 - 994,030 697,255 1,691.285
Facilities 23,488 402 8.652 32,542 541,880 574.422
Other 166,743 61,261 - 228,004 246,655 474,659
Insurance - - 7,673 7.673 132,899 140,572
Depreciation - - 26,400 26.400 436,368 462,768

Interest - . - - 111,808 111,808
Allocated program support 754.724 74.216 14,538 843,478 (843.478) -

Allocated occupancy costs 817.796 35,153 4 641 857.590 t857.5901 .

Total S 13.290.271 $  884.765 $  144.487 $ 14.319.523 S 3.085.904 $ 17.405.427

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Changes In Net Assets

Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Net assets without donor restrictions

Excess of revenue over expenses $ 936,631 $ 948,835
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps 150,216 (231,169)
Grants for capital acquisition 216,414
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition 65.285 129.356

Increase In net assets without donor restrictions 1.368.546 847.022

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions 572,096 224,245
Grants for capital acquisition - 82,721
Net assets released from restriction for operations (364,248) (242,945)
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition 165.2851 (129.356)

Increase (decrease) in net assets with donor restrictions 142.563 (65.335)

Change in net assets 1,511,109 781,687

Net assets, beginning of year 11.050.001 10.268.314

Net assets, end of year $12.561.110 $11.050.001

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Equity in earnings of limited liability company
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Grants for capital acquisition
(Increase) decrease in the following assets:

Patient accounts receivable

Grants receivable

Other receivable

Inventory
Other current assets

(Decrease) increase in the following liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Due to third-party payers
Deferred revenue

Provider Relief Fund refundable advance

COVID-19 Emergency Healthcare System Relief Fund
refundable advance

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Equity distribution from limited liability company
Capital acquisitions

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Grants for capital acquisition
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Principal payments on long-term debt

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year

2021 2020

;  1,511,109 $  781,687

476,470 462,768
- 6,877

(150,216) 231,169
(216,414) (82,721)

6,960 (39,883)
(65,831) (205,857)
(7.509) 106,794

(47,793) (48,107)
(115.142) (69,394)

80,263 (3,984)
(16,162) 361,340

121,755 -

351,501 (12,997)
(196,549) 196,549

(250.000) 250.000

1.482.442 1.934.241

12,224

(306.735) (708.997)

(306.735) (696.773)

216,414 82,721
- 2,100,000

(69.235) (1.328.216)

147.179 854.505

1,322,886 2,091,973

6.458.094 4.366.121

7.780.980 $ 6.458.094

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-8-



DocuSign Envelope 10: 3D59E1B0-8B3B^B3O-B17C-0F280E479742

LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Concluded)

Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Breakdown of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash,
end of year
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets limited as to use

$ 3,777,557
4.003.423

$ 3,504,514
2.953.580

$ 7.780.980 $ 6.458.094

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid for interest

Capital expenditures included in accounts payable

$  102.602

$

$  111.808

$  118.827

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

Organization

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (LHC) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in the State of New
Hampshire. LHC is a Federally Qualified Health Center {FQHC) whose primary purpose is to provide
high quality family health, medical and behavioral health services to residents of southern New
Hampshire without regard to the patient's ability to pay for these services.

Subsidiary

Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (FLHC) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in the State of
New Hampshire. FLHC's primary purpose is to support LHC. FLHC is also the owner of the property
occupied by LHC's administrative and program offices in Newmarket, New Hampshire. LHC is the sole
member of FLHC.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles {U.S. GAAP), which require the Organization to
report information in the consolidated financial statements according to the following net asset
classifications;

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose In performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met
by actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity, of
which there were none in 2021 or 2020.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of LHC and its subsidiary, FLHC
(collectively, the Organization). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

Income Taxes

Both LHC and FLHC are public charities under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As
public charities, the entities are exempt from state and federal income taxes on Income earned in
accordance with their tax-exempt purposes. Unrelated business income is subject to state and
federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded
that the Organization has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.

COVID-19

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared coronavirus disease (COVID-19) a global
pandemic and the United States federal government declared COVID-19 a national emergency.
The Organization implemented an emergency response to ensure the safety of its patients, staff
and the community. In adhering to guidelines issued by the State of New Hampshire and the
Center for Disease Control and Prevention, the Organization took steps to create safe distances
between both staff and patients. All providers received the necessary equipment to allow for
medical and behavioral health visits using telehealth. Facility modifications included installation of
plexi-glass partitions, restructuring of work stations to allow for 6 feet between staff, heating,
ventilation, and air conditioning systems were modified to improve air exchange rates and tents
and awnings were setup to allow screening, testing and vaccine administration outside of the four
walls of the clinics. In addition, the Organization created contained infection control wings at all
sites to evaluate and treat patients that screen positive for COVID-19 and deployed a mobile
health van to provide testing, vaccination and other service capacity to other areas of the
community.

The Organization received a loan in the amount of $2,152,212 in April 2020 pursuant to the
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP), a program implemented by the U.S. Small Business
Administration (SBA) under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act and
the Paycheck Protection Program and Health Care Enhancement (PPPHCE) Act. The PPP was
subject to forgiveness, upon the Organization's request, to the extent that the proceeds were used
to pay qualifying expenditures, including payroll costs, rent and utilities, incurred by the
Organization during a specific covered period. The Organization determined the conditions for
forgiveness were substantially met during the year ended September 30, 2020 and recorded
revenue equal to the full amount of the PPP. The Organization was notified in June 2021 the PPP
was fully forgiven by the SBA and the lender. The PPP can be audited by the SBA for up to six
years from the date of forgiveness.

The CARES Act and the PPPHCE Act established the Provider Relief Fund (PRF) to support
healthcare providers in the battle against the COVID-19 outbreak. The PRF is being administered
by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS). The Organization received PRF in
the amount of $196,549 during the year ended September 30, 2020, incurred qualifying
expenditures of $196,549 during the year ended September 30, 2021 and recorded grant revenue
equal to the qualifying expenditures in 2021. Due to the complexity of the reporting requirements
and the continued issuance of clarifying guidance, the amount of income allowed to be recognized
may change. Any difference between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently
determined to be recoverable or payable will be included in income in the year that such amounts
become known.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

During May 2020, the Organization received a loan in the amount of $250,000 from the COVID-19
Emergency Healthcare System Relief Fund (Relief Loan), a program implemented by the State,
Department of Health and Human Services and available for use through December 30, 2020. The
Relief Loan had the potential to be converted to a grant at the sole discretion of the State. The
Relief Loan was converted to a grant on October 9, 2020 and recognized as revenue at that time.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of business checking and savings accounts as well as petty
cash funds.

The Organization maintains cash balances at several financial institutions. The balances are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. At various times
throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances may exceed FDIC insurance. The
Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and management believes it is not
exposed to any significant risk.

Revenue Recognition and Patient Accounts Receivable

During the year ended September 30, 2021, the Organization has adopted Financial Accounting
Standards Board Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09. Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Topic 606), and related guidance, which supersedes accounting standards that
previously existed under U.S. GAAR and provides a single revenue model to address revenue
recognition to be applied by all companies. Under the new standard, organizations recognize
revenue when a customer obtains control of promised goods or services in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the organization expects to be entitled In exchange for those goods and
services. Topic 606 also requires organizations to disclose additional information, including the
nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with
customers. The Organization elected to adopt this ASU retrospectively with the cumulative effect
recognized at the date of initial application; therefore, the consolidated financial statements and
related notes have been presented accordingly.

The adoption of Topic 606 had no impact on the Organization's net assets, results of its
operations, or cash flows. The adoption of Topic 606 did change how implicit price concessions
are presented in the consolidated financial statements. Under the previous standards, the estimate
for amounts not expected to be collected based upon historical experience was reflected as a
provision for doubtful accounts, and presented separately as an offset to net patient service
revenue. Under the new standards, the estimate for amounts not expected to be collected based
on historical experience continues to be recognized as a reduction to net revenue, but not
reflected separately as provision for doubtful accounts.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

The impact of the adoption on the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
September 30, 2020 was as follows;

Patient service revenue

Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue

As

Originally
Reported

$ 10,206,803 $
(497.9611

$  9.708.842 $.

Adjustments
due to

Topic 606
Adoption

Revised

Balance

(497,961) $ 9,708,842
497.961 :

£  9.708.842

Patient sen/ice revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Organization expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due
from patients and third-party payers (including commercial insurers and governmental programs).

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the
Organization. The Organization measures the performance obligation for medical, behavioral
health and ancillary services from the commencement of a face-to-face encounter with a patient to
the completion of the encounter. Ancillary services provided the same day as the face-to-face
encounter are considered to be part of the performance obligation and are not deemed to be
separate performance obligations. The Organization measures the performance obligation for
contract pharmacy services based on when the prescription is dispensed to the patient as reported
to the Organization by the third-party administrator. The Organization's performance obligations
are satisfied at a point in time.

The Organization determines the transaction price based on standard charges for goods and
services provided, reduced by contractual adjustments provided to third-party payers, discounts
provided to uninsured patients in accordance with the Organization's sliding fee discount program,
and implicit price concessions provided to uninsured patients. The Organization determines its
estimates of contractual adjustments and discounts based on contractual agreements, its discount
policies, and historical experience. The Organization determines its estimate of implicit price
concessions based on its historical collection experience.

Consistent with the Organization's mission and FQHC designation, care Is provided to patients
regardless of their ability to pay. Therefore, the Organization has determined it has provided
implicit price concessions to uninsured patients and patients with uninsured balances (for example,
copays and deductibles). The implicit price concessions included in estimating the transaction
price represent the difference between amounts billed to patients and amounts the Organization
expects to collect based on its collection history with those patients.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

The Organization has determined that the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows are affected by the payer. In assessing collectability. the Organization has elected the
portfolio approach. The portfolio approach is being used as the Organization has a large volume of
similar contracts with similar classes of customers (patients). The Organization reasonably expects
that the effect of applying a portfolio approach to a group of contracts would not differ materially
from considering each contract separately. Management's judgment to group the contracts by
portfolio is based on the payment behavior expected in each portfolio category. As a result,
aggregating all the contracts (which are at the patient level) by the particular payer or group of
payers will result in the recognition of the same amount of revenue as applying the analysis at the
individual patient level. Payer concentrations are disclosed in Note 9.

The Organization bills the patients and third-party payers several days after the services are
performed. A summary of payment arrangements follows:

Medicare

The Organization is primarily reimbursed for medical, behavioral health and ancillary services
based on the lesser of actual charges or prospectively set rates for all FQHC services furnished to
a Medicare beneficiary on the same day when an FQHC furnishes a face-to-face FOHC visit.
Certain other services are reimbursed based on fee-for-service rate schedules.

Medicaid

The Organization is primarily reimbursed for medical, behavioral health and ancillary services
based on prospectively set rates for an encounter furnished to a Medicaid beneficiary on the same
day when an FQHC furnishes a face-to-face FQHC visit. Certain other services are reimbursed
based on fee-for-service rate schedules.

Other Pavers

The Organization has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance
carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. Under these
arrangements, the Organization is reimbursed for services based on contractually obligated
payment rates for each Current Procedural Terminology code, which may be less than the
Organization's public fee schedule.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

Patients

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its sliding fee discount
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Organization does
not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net
patient service revenue. The Organization estimates the costs associated with providing charity
care by calculating the ratio of total cost to total charges, and then multiplying that ratio by the
gross uncompensated charges associated with providing care to patients eligible for free care. The
estimated cost of providing services to patients under the Organization's sliding fee discount policy
amounted to $1,000,557 and $1,041,631 for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The Organization Is able to provide these services with a component of funds
received through local community support and federal grants.

For uninsured patients who do not qualify under the Organization's sliding fee discount program,
the Organization bills the patient based on the Organization's standard rates for services provided.
Patient balances are typically due within 30 days of billing; however, the Organization does, in
certain instances, enter into payment agreements with patients that allow payments in excess of
one year. For those cases, the financing component is not deemed to be significant to the
contract.

3408 Contract Pharmacv Program Revenue

The Organization, as an FQHC, is eligible to participate in the 3408 Drug Pricing Program. This
program requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHCs and other covered
entities at a reduced price. The Organization contracts with local pharmacies under this program.
The contract pharmacies dispense drugs to eligible patients of the Organization and bill
commercial insurances on behalf of the Organization. Reimbursement received by the contract
pharmacies is remitted to the Organization, less dispensing and administrative fees. The
dispensing and administrative fees are costs of the program and not deemed to be implicit price
concessions which would reduce the transaction price.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare, Medicaid and 3408 programs are complex and
subject to interpretation. Management believes that the Organization is in compliance with all laws
and regulations. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare, Medicaid, and 3408 programs. Differences between amounts
previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or payable are
included In patient service revenue in the year that such amounts become known.

-15-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3D59E1B0-8B3B-4B3O-B17C-OF280E479742

LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances and consisted of the following at September 30;

2021 2020

Medical and dental patient accounts receivable $ 1,210,952 $ 1,099,010
Contract 340B pharmacy program receivables 178.740 297.642

Total patient accounts receivable $ 1.389.692 $ 1.396.6^

Accounts receivable at October 1, 2019 were $1,237,130.

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. The accounts receivable from patients and
third-party payers, net of allowances, were as follows at September 30:

2021 2020

Governmental plans
Medicare 22 % 20 %
Medicaid 35% 33 %

Commercial payers 21 % 24 %
Patient 22 % 23 %

Total 100 % 100 %

Grants and Other Receivables

Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. All such amounts are considered collectible.

The Organization receives a significant amount of grants from HHS. As with all government
funding, these grants are subject to reduction or termination in future years. For the years ended
September 30, 2021 and 2020, grants from HHS (including both direct awards and awards
passed through other organizations) represented approximately 78% and 80%, respectively, of
grants, contracts and contributions revenue.

A portion of the Organization's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable grants, which are
conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying
expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has met the
performance requirements or incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant
provisions, as applicable. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported
as deferred revenue. The Organization has been awarded cost reimbursable grants in the amount
of $3,779,537 and $2,968,196, which are primarily available through May and June 2022 and
March 2023, respectively, that have not been recognized at September 30, 2021 because
qualifying expenditures have not yet been incurred.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

The Organization also received a capital grant, Health Center Infrastructure Support, in the
amount of $671,534, which is available for use for approved capital projects through September
14, 2024. The Organization intends to use this grant for renovations of the Organization's Nashua,
New Hampshire facility. See Note 4 for further discussion regarding the project.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use include cash and cash equivalents designated by the Board of Directors
for specific projects or purposes as discussed further in Note 3.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are
expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are capitalized. Provision for depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the related assets. The
Organization's capitalization policy is applicable for acquisitions greater than $5,000.

Contributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as net assets with donor
restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit use of the donated assets. When a
donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the consolidated statements of operations as net assets released from
restriction. Contributions whose restrictions are met in the same period as the support was
received are recognized as net assets without donor restrictions.

Functional Expenses

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to
more than one program or supporting function of the Organization. Expenses allocated between
program services and administrative support include employee benefits which are allocated based
on direct wages, facilities which are based upon square footage occupied by the program, human
resources and information technology which Is based upon employee worked hours attributed to
the program.

Excess of Revenue over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations reflect the excess of revenue over expenses. Changes
in net assets without donor restrictions, which are excluded from this measure include
contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions which, by donor
restriction, were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets) and changes in fair value of
an interest rate swap that qualifies for hedge accounting.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements, management has
considered transactions or events occurring through January 26, 2022, the date that the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated
subsequent events after that date for inclusion in the consolidated financial statements.

2. Availability and Liquidity of Financial Assets

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. The Organization has various sources of liquidity at its disposal,
including cash and cash equivalents and a line of credit (Note 5).

The Organization had working capital of $3,867,576 and $3,339,240 at September 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively. The Organization had average days cash and cash equivalents on hand
(based on normal expenditures) of 73 and 75 at September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year as of September 30 were as
follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, net
Grants receivable

Other receivables

Financial assets available

2021

3.777,557
1,389,692
724,399
137.513

2020

3,504,514

1,396,652
658,568
130,004

$  6.029.161 $ 5.689.738

The Organization has certain board-designated assets limited as to use which are available for
general expenditure within one year in the normal course of operations upon obtaining approval
from the Board of Directors and other assets limited as to use for donor-restricted purposes, which
are more fully described in Note 3. Accordingly, these assets have not been included in the
quantitative information above.

The Organization's goal is generally to have, at the minimum, the U.S. Health Resources and
Services Administration recommended days cash and cash equivalents on hand for operations of
30 days.
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September 30, 2021 and 2020

3. Assets Limited as To Use

Assets limited as to use are made up of cash and cash equivalents which are to be used for the
following purposes at September 30:

Board-designated for
Transportation
Working capital
Capital improvements
Other

Total board-designated

Donor restricted

Total

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following at September 30:

Land and improvements
Building and improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Total cost

Less accumulated depreciation

Construction in progress and assets not in service

Property and equipment, net

2021

$  27,059
1,641,947
1,677,051

79.755

3,425,812

577.611

2020

$  16,982
1,391,947

1,139,165

2,548,094

405.486

$ 4.003.423 $ 2.953.580

2021

$ 1,154,753
11,831,191
1.835.579

14,821,523
7.397.168

7,424,355
82.944

2020

$ 1,154,753
11,661,674
1.887.073

14,703,500
7.115.614

7,587,886

207.975

$ 7.507.299 S 7.795.861

The construction in progress at September 30, 2021 primarily relates to the renovations of the
Organization's Nashua, New Hampshire facility to expand clinical space and reconfigure existing
space for improved workflows for increased patient access and improved patient experience. The
total project cost is estimated at $2,548,439 and anticipated to be funded by a capital grant, board
designated and donor restricted cash and debt financing. The renovation is projected to be
completed before the expiration of the capital grant in September 2024.

Property and equipment acquired with Federal grant funds are subject to specific federal
standards for sales and other dispositions. In many cases, the Federal government retains a
residual ownership interest in the assets, requiring prior approval and restrictions on disposition.
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5. Line of Credit

The Organization has an available $1,000,000 revolving line of credit from a local bank through
May 2022, with an interest rate at Prime, but not less than 3.25% {3.25% at September 30, 2021).
The line of credit is collateralized by all business assets. There was no outstanding balance as of
September 30, 2021 and 2020.

6. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following at September 30:

2021 2020

Promissory note payable to local bank; see terms outlined
below. (1) $ 811,195 $ 829,242

Promissory note payable to local bank; see terms outlined
below. (2) 2.028.620 2.079.808

Total long-term debt 2,839,815 2,909,050
Less current maturities 90.068 88.027

Long-term debt, less current maturities $ 2.749.747 $ 2.821.0^

(1) The Organization has a promissory note with a local bank which is a ten-year balloon note to
be paid at the amortization rate of 30 years, with variable monthly payments of principal and
interest at 85% of the one-month LIBOR rate plus 2.125% through February 2022 when the
balloon payment is due. The note is collateralized by the real estate. The Organization has an
interest rate swap agreement for the ten-year period through 2022 that limits the potential interest
rate fluctuation and substantively fixes the rate at 4.13%. On December 17, 2021, the Organization
received a commitment from a local bank to refinance the debt with a ten-year balloon note to be
paid at the amortization rate of 30 years, with variable monthly payments of principal and interest
and will obtain another interest rate swap agreement resulting in a fixed rate of 3.46%. Maturities
have been presented based on the terms of the refinancing.

(2) The Organization has a promissory note with a local bank which is a ten-year balloon note to
be paid at the amortization rate of 30 years, with variable monthly principal payments plus interest
at the one-month LIBOR rate plus 1.5% through October 2029 when the balloon payment is due.
The note is collateralized by the real estate. The Organization has an interest rate swap
agreement for the ten-year period through 2029 that limits the potential interest rate fluctuation
and substantially fixes the rate at 3.173%.
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The Organization is required to meet certain administrative and financial covenants under the loan
agreements included above. In the event of default, the bank has the option to terminate the
agreement and immediately request payment of the outstanding debt without notice of any kind to
the Organization. The Organization was in compliance with all loan covenants at September 30,
2021.

Maturities of long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter are as follows at September 30:

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Thereafter

Total

$ 90,068
92,538
94,909
97,686
100,374

2.364.240

$ 2.839.815

7. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Organization participates in certain fixed-payer swap contracts related to underlying, variable
rate debt obligations. The purpose of these contracts is to protect the Organization against rising
interest rates related to the variable rate debt. These contracts qualify for hedge accounting as a
cash flow hedge and are reported at fair value as an asset or a liability. As a perfectly effective
cash flow hedge, the change in fair value of the contracts is reported in the change in net assets
without donor restrictions. The Organization expects to hold the swap contracts until their
respective maturities.

The interest swap contract terms are summarized as follows at September 30:

LHC

FLHC

Fixed

Rate

Paid

4.1300 %

3.1730 %

Variable

Rate

Received

2.1993 %

1.5825 %

Notional

Amount

$ 805,486
2,017,954

2021

Fair Value

Asset

(Liability)

$ (2,632)
(64.809)

2020

Fair Value

Asset

(Liability)

$  (18,241)
(199.416)

Termination

Date

01-19-2022

10-02-2029

Counterparty

ID Bank

TO Bank

Cumulative unrealized loss $  (67.441) S (217.657)

U.S. GAAP establish a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between market participant
assumptions based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity
(observable inputs that are classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting
entity's own assumptions about market participant assumptions (unobservable inputs classified
within Level 3 of the hierarchy).

-21 -



DocuSign Envelope ID; 3D59E1B0-8B3B-4B30-B17C-0F280E479742

LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2 — Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 — Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The Organization uses inputs other than quoted prices that are observable to value the interest
rate swaps. The Organization considers these inputs to be Level 2 inputs in the context of the fair
value hierarchy. These values represent the estimated amounts the Organization would receive or
pay to terminate agreements, taking into consideration current interest rates and the current
creditworthiness of the counterparty (present value of expected cash flows).

8. Net Assets

Net assets without donor restrictions are designated for the following purposes at September 30:

2021 2020

Undesignated $ 8,521,964 $ 8,031,136
Board-designated (Note 3) 3.425.812 2.548.094

Total $11.947.776 $10.579.230

Net assets with donor restrictions were restricted for the following specific purposes at September
30:

2021 2020

Temporary in nature:
Capital improvements $ 214,647 $ 214,647
Community programs 382,817 170,745
Substance abuse prevention 15,870 20,094
Grants for capital acquisitions not in service - 65.285

Total $ 613.334 $ 470.771
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

9. Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue was as follows for the years ended September 30;

2021 2020

Gross charges
340B contract pharmacy revenue

$14,780,770
1.853.873

$13,852,130
1.617.196

Total gross revenue 16,634,643 15,469,326

Contractual adjustments and implicit price concessions
Sliding fee discounts
Other patient related revenue

(5,684,212)
(777,588)
213.675

(5,514,248)
(811,423)
565.187

Total patient service revenue $10,386,518 $ 9.708.842

The mix of net patient service revenue from patients and third-party payers was as
years ended September 30:

follows for the

2021 2020

Medicare

Medicaid

Other payers
Self-pay and sliding fee scale patients

14%

42%

41 %

3%

16 %

46 %

36 %

2%

100% 100 %

10. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a defined contribution plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b).
The Organization contributed $281,223 and $292,808 for the years ended September 30, 2021
and 2020, respectively.

11. Medical Malpractice

The Organization is protected from medical malpractice risk as an FQHC under the Federal Tort
Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional medical malpractice insurance, on a claims-
made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the FTCA. As of September 30,
2021, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of management,
will be settled for amounts in excess of either FTCA or medical malpractice insurance coverage,
nor are there any unasserted claims or incidents which require loss accrual. The Organization
intends to renew medical malpractice insurance coverage on a claims-made basis and anticipates
that such coverage will be available.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

12. Litigation

From time-to-time certain complaints are filed against the Organization in the ordinary course of
business. Management vigorously defends the Organization's actions in those cases and utilizes
insurance to cover material losses. In the opinion of management, there are no matters that will
materially affect the Organization's consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Balance Sheet

September 30, 2021

ASSETS

Lamprey
Health Care,

Inc.

Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care,

Inc.

2021

Consolidated

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable

Grants receivable

Other receivables

Inventory
Other current assets

$  2,297,060
1,389,692
724,399
137,513

177,384
262.941

$  1,480,497 $ 3,777,557
1,389,692
724.399
137,513
177,384
262.941

Total current assets 4,988,989 1,480.497 6,469,486

Assets limited as to use

Property and equipment, net
4,003,423
5.830.543 1.676.756

4,003,423
7.507.299

Total assets $ 14.822.955 $  3.157.253 $ 17.980.208

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Due to third party payers
Deferred revenue

Due to affiliate

Due to (from) affiliate
Current maturities of long-term debt

$  537,394
1,306,202
241,394
423,922

21,985
45.072

$  2,930 $

(21,985)
44.996

540,324
1,306,202
241,394

423,922

90.068

Total current liabilities 2,575,969 25,941 2,601,910

Long-term debt, less current maturities
Fair value of interest rate swap
Due to (from) affiliate

766,123
2,632

1.073.876

1,983,624

64,809
f 1.073.8761

2,749,747
67,441

Total liabilities 4.418.600 1.000.498 5.419.098

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions
9,791,021
613.334

2,156,755 11,947,776
613.334

Total net assets 10.404.355 2.156.755 12.561.110

Total liabilities and net assets $ 14.822.955 $  3.157.253 S 17.980.208
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Balance Sheet

September 30, 2020

ASSETS

Lamprey
Health Care,

Inc.

Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care,

Inc.

2020

Consolidated

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable

Grants receivable

Other receivables

Inventory
Other current assets

$  2,205,696
1,396.652
658,568
130,004
129,591
147.799

$  1,298,818 $  3,504,514
1,396,652
658,568
130,004
129,591
147.799

Total current assets 4,668,310 1,298,818 5,967,128

Assets limited as to use

Property and equipment, net
2,953,580
6.009.215 1.786.646

2,953,580
7.795.861

Total assets $ 13.631.105 $  3.085.464 $ 16.716.569

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Due to third party payers
Deferred revenue

Provider Relief Fund refundable advance

COVID-19 Emergency Healthcare System
Relief Fund refundable advance

Due to (from) affiliate
Current maturities of long-term debt

$  578.888
1,322,364

119,639
72,421
196,549

250.000
22,604
44.453

$

(22,604)
43.574

$  578,888
1,322,364

119,639
72,421
196,549

250,000

88.027

Total current liabilities 2.606,918 20,970 2,627,888

Long-term debt, less current maturities
Fair value of interest rate swap
Due to (from) affiliate

784,789
18,241

1.104.410

2,036.234

199,416
n.104.4101

2,821,023
217,657

Total liabilities 4.514.358 1.152.210 5.666.568

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions
8,645.976
470.771

1,933,254 10,579,230
470.771

Total net assets 9.116.747 1.933.254 11.050.001

Total liabilities and net assets $ 13.631.105 $  3.085.464 $ 16.716.569
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2021

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey
Health Care Health Care,

Inc. Inc.

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue

Rental income

Grants, contracts and contributions
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restriction for

operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other operating expenses
Insurance

Depreciation
Interest expense

Total operating expenses

Excess of revenue over expenses

Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restriction for

capital acquisition

Increase in net assets without donor

restrictions

$10,386,518 $
181,128

8,644,519
634.169

364.248

20.210.582

11,309,801
2,258,427
954,094

2,504,395

885,776

856,309

140,849

366,581
86.613

19.362.845

847,737

15,609
216,414

65.285

227,916

140

228.056

75

9,174

4,035

109,889
15.989

139.162

88,894

134,607

2021

Eliminations Consolidated

(227,916)
$10,386,518

181,128
8,644,519
634,309

364.248

(227.9161 20.210.722

-  11,309,801
2,258,427

954,094
2,504,470

(227,916) 667,034
860,344
140,849
476,470

:  102.602

(227.9161 19.274.091

936,631

150,216

216,414

-  65.285

S 1.145.045 $ 223.501 $ S 1.368.546
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Lamprey
Friends of

Lamprey

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue

Rental income

Grants, contracts and contributions
Paycheck Protection Program
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restriction for

operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other operating expenses
Insurance

Depreciation
Interest

Total operating expenses

Excess of revenue over expenses

Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restriction for

capital acquisition

Health Care, Health Care,

Inc. Inc.

2020

Eliminations Consolidated

$ 9,708,842 $
176.353

5,663,601
2,152,212

410,188

242.945

18.354.141

11,106,208

2,096,040
747,665

1,691,103

798,038
474,659
140,572
352,880
79.288

17.486.453

867,688

(31,753)

129.356

-  $ - $ 9,708,842
227,916 (227,916) 176,353

5,663,601

2,152,212
121 - 410,309

-  - 242.945

182

4,300

109,888

32.520

146.890

81,147

(199,416)

228.037 (227.9161 18.354.262

-  11,106,208

2,096,040
747,665

1,691,285

(227,916) 574,422
474,659

140,572

462,768
:  111.808

(227.9161 17.405.427

948,835

(231,169)

-  129.356

Increase (decrease) in net assets
without donor restrictions $ 965.291 $ (118.2691 $. $  847.022
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended September 30, 2021

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey
Health Care, Health Care, 2021

Inc. Inc. Consolidated

Net assets without donor restrictions

Excess of revenue over expenses
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restriction for capital

acquisition

$  847,737

15,609

216,414

65.285

$  88,894
134,607

$  936,631

150,216

216,414

65.285

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions 1.145.045 223.501 1.368.546

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions

Net assets released from restriction for operations
Net assets released from restrictions for capital

acquisition

572,096
(364,248)

f65.2851

- 572,096

(364,248)

f65.2851

Increase in net assets with donor restrictions 142.563 142.563

Change in net assets 1,287,608 223,501 1,511,109

Net assets, beginning of year 9.116.747 1.933.254 11.050.001

Net assets, end of year $10,404,355 $ 2.156.755 $12,561,110
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Lamprey
Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care, Health Care,

Inc. Inc.

2020

Consolidated

Net assets without donor restrictions

Excess of revenue over expenses
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restriction for capital

acquisition

$  867,688
(31,753)

129.356

$  81,147
(199,416)

$  948,835

(231,169)

129.356

Increase (decrease) in net assets without donor
restrictions 965.291 (118.2691 847.022

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions

Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restriction for capital

acquisition

224,245

82,721

(242,945)

(129.3561

-

224,245

82.721

(242,945)

(129.3561

Decrease in net assets with donor restrictions (65.3351 (65.3351

Change in net assets 899,956 (118,269) 781,687

Net assets, beginning of year 8.216.791 2.051.523 10.268.314

Net assets, end of year $ 9.116.747 $ 1.933.254 $11,050,001
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Lamprey
Health Care
Where Excellence and Caring go Hand in Hand

2021-2022 Board of Directors

Frank Goodspccd (President/Chair) Michelle Boom

Temi Ends 2023

Affiliation: Tropic Star Development
Years of Service: S

Arvind Ranade, (Vice President)

Temi Ends 2024

Affiliation: SymbioSys Solutions, inc.
Years of Ser\'ice: 6

Thomas "Chris" Drew (Treasurer)

Term Ends 2022

Affiliation: Seacoast Mental Health Center

Years of Ser\'ice: 23

Laura Valencia (Secretary)

Term Ends 2024

Affiliation: Student

Years of Service: 3

Audrey Ashton-Savage (Immediate Past
Chair/President)

Tenn Ends 2024

Affiliation: University of New Hampshire
Years of Service; 31

Term Ends 2022

Affiliation: Homemaker

Years of Ser\'ice: 2

James Brewer

Term Ends 2022

Affiliation: Kennebunk Savings Bank
Years of Service: 2

Michael Chouinard

Term Ends 2022

Affiliation: Retired

Years of Ser\'ice: 2

Elizabeth Ore eau

Temi ends 2024

Affiliation: Retired

Years of Service: 15

Raymond Goodman, III

Tenn ends 2024

Affiliation: Children's Trust

Years of Service: 9
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Todd J Hfltbaway

Lamprey
Health Care
Wliere Excellence iind Caring go Hand in Hand

2021-2022 Board of Directors

Michael Reiiike

Teiiu Ends 2023

Affiliaiiou: Wadleigh, Starr & Peters, PLLC
New Board Member

Carol LaCross

Tenn Ejids 2024

Afniiation: Retired

Years of Service: 33

Andrea Laskey

Term Ends 2022

AfGliaiion: Retired

Years of Service: 2

Mark Marandola

Tenn Ends 2023

Affiliation: Fidelity
Years of Service: 1

Tenn Ends 2023

Affiliation: Nashua Soup Kitchen & Slielter
Years of Semce: I

Samantha Stainas

Tenn Ends 2023

Affiliation: Rivier University
New Board Member

Wllberto Torres

Term Ends 2022

Affiliation: Tones Management and Research
Coiporation
Years of Semce: 4

Robert S. Woodward

Tenn Ends 2022

Affiliation: Retired

Years of Service: 5
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Gregory A. White, CPA

Summary

Senior Level Executive with extensive hands-on experience in management, business leadership, and
working with boards, banks and other external stake holders. A CPA with an established record of success
in Community Health Center management. Strong in budgets, cash forecasts, grants, and team leadership.

Profcssional Experience

Lamprey Health Care - Newmarket, NH 2013 to present

Chief Executive Officer

•  Responsible for the leadership, operation and overall strategic direction of New Hampshire's
largest Federally Qualified Health Center.

•  Ensuring continuity and high quality primary medical care in three sites, both urban rural, ser\'ing
over 16,000 patients in 40 communities.

•  Leading a high perfomiing senior management team in the direction of over 150 staff and
providers.

•  Engaging with leaders and stakeholders at the local, state and national levels to ensure that
Lamprey is at the forefront of innovative, high quality health care delivery.

Lowell Community Health Center - Lowell, MA 2009 to 2013

Chief Financial Officer

•  Responsible for the integrity of financial information and systems for this Federally Qualified
Health Center, employing 315 staff and providing over 120,000 visits annually. Upgraded
financial and administrative infrastructure to meet requirements during a time of rapid expansion.

•  Lead the financing and budget development for a $42 million capital facility project to include;
traditional debt, multiple tax credit sources, federal grants, loan guarantees, and private funds.

•  Directed key projects for: 340(b) pharmacy implementation; 403(b) lax deferred savings plan;
multiple federal stimulus grants; and revised operating budget development.

•  Representative to the Lowell General PHO for managed care contract negotiation

•  Recruited and managed a team of five directors to oversee and manage four support and one
programmatic department

Manchester Community Health Center - Manchester, NH 1999 to 2009

Chief Financial Officer

•  Recruited by the CEO to bring structure and process to the functional areas of the Center's
financial operations. Provided direction and oversight to key business areas; General
Administration, Patient Registration, Human Resources, FTCA/Legal and Medical Records.

J  o ̂  Gregory White Resume
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Gregory A. White, CPA

•  Responsible for the development of key programs, Coiporate Compliance, HiPAA, selection of a
new practice management system. Supported Joint Commission accreditation and the
implementation of an electronic medical record system.

•  Led the development of financing for the Center's new facility.

Greater Lawrence Family Health Center - Lawrence, MA 1993 to 1998

Controller 1997 to 1998

Accounting Manager 1995 to 1997

Senior Accountant/Analyst 1993 to 1995

•  Progressively responsible for all day to day financial operations of a Federally Qualified Health
Center, including: Accounts Payable, Payroll, General Ledger, Cash Management, Cost
Reporting, Patient Accounts, and Financial Reporting. Presented budgets, analysis, projections and
periodic reporting to the Board of Directors.

•  Key leader for projects involving: selection of new financial accounting software; selection of new
practice management system; provider productivity measurement and analysis and group
purchasing. Oversaw budget of S5 million construction project.

•  Developed reimbursement model for an innovative Family Practice Residency program.

Alexander, Aronson, Finning & Co., CPA's - Westborougli, MA 1990 to 1993

Staff Accountant/Auditor

Education & Professional Affiliations

Babson College, Wellesley, MA

BS, Accounting - 1990

Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Certified Public Accountant- 1996

Healthcare Financial Management Association

Certified Healthcare Financial Professional - 2008

National Association of CHC's

Excel Leadership Program - 2003

National Registry of Emergency Medical Technicians

EMT -N.H. license number 18991-1

Boards, Advisory & Volunteer Experience

Massachusetts League of Community Health Centers - Special Finance Committee

2 I P a g e Gregory White Resume
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Gregory A. White, CPA

NH Heailh Access Network - Administrative & Training Committee

Community Health Access Network - Board of Directors, Finance Committee

Bi-Siale Primary Care Association - Capital Finance & Sustainability, Prospective Payment

The Way Home - Manchester, NH - Board of Trustees - Treasurer

Manchester Sustainable Access Project - Data Sub-group

Milford Ambulance Service - Volunteer EMT, Staff Officer, Treasurer, Building Advisoiy Committee

Milford Educational Foundation - 1999 to 2010 - Treasurer

Heritage United Way - Manchester - Community Investment Committee

Milford Community Athletic Association - Coach

Lasell College-Co-Resident Director

3 1 P a g e Gregory White Resume
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VASUKI NAGARAJ m.d., m.p.h.

SPECIALITY Family Medicine

EDUCATION Master of Public Health, Aug 2001 - Dec 2003
Environmeuial ami Occupational Heahh
Texas A&M University-HSC, College Station, Texas
Bachelor of Medicine and Surgery (M.B.B.S) Aug 1995 - Apr 2000
J.J.M. Medical College, Davangere, India Kuventpu University

HONORS Financed 75% of entire Medical Education through Government based
merit, and 100% of my MPM degree through graduate assisiantships.
Ranked in the top 5% of the graduating class or200l in Medical School.

Inducted into the Alpha Tau chapter of the Delta Omega Public Health
Honor Society in April, 2004.

The Delta Omega Society recognizes scholarship merit (top 10% of
students) and reflects dedication to (juality in the field of Public Health.

RESEARCH Texas A&M University, Research Assistant Aug 2001- Aug 2003
Rio Bravo Child Pesticide Ingestion Project. P.I. - K.C. Donnelly. PhD.

•  The primary focus of this study is to develop a methodology to estimate

childhood exposure to pesticide through the sampling of house dust and
children's hand rinse and urine samples. My duties included Coordinating
research communication; Leading a team involved in generating reports,
writing protocols, and handling sampling tools; Analyzing and
maintaining a database from the results of the study.

EXPERIENCE Lamprey Health Care, Nashua, New Hampshire
Chief Medical Officer May 2018-Prcsent
Nashua Site Medical Director A ugust 2012-May 2018
Family Physician August 2008-Prescnt

Southern New Hampshire Medical Center/Foundation Medical

Partners, Nashua, New Hampshire
Hospitalist Jan 2009 - Present

EHA Consulting Group, Inc.
Infectious Disease Epidemiologist Jan 2004 - June 2006
Epidemiology: Offered specialized consultation, remediation, interaction
with regulatory agencies and expert testimony. Assessing and managing
risks, corporate crisis inter\'ention and allocating liabilities.
Food Safety: Provide ser\'ices in the areas of investigation, planning,
compliance, education, and crisis management.
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VASUKI NAGARAJ mdmph

•  Indoor air and mold: Provides strategies for the identification and
resolution of problems involving Toxic Molds (Bioaerosols) and Indoor
Air Quality (lAQ), including bioierrorisi agents.

Chigatcri General Hospital, Iiucrn Apr 2000 - Apr 2001
•  Rotation Internship for a duration of one year in all departments.

•  Responsible for inpatient care on the wards, making decisions
independently, ensuring timely invcstigations/inter\'entions and assisting
in surgical procedures whenever necessary.

•  Participated in ambulatory clinics/community health check ups,
immunization programs and development of peripheral health centers.

• Worked for a period of three months during the Internship in rural and
underdeveloped areas.

RESIDENCY Central Maine Medical Center, Lewiston, ME July 2005-June 2008
A 250 - bed non profii hospital

•  Gained hands on experience in patient care of children, adolescents, adults,
older adults, pregnant women and acute care/ emergency settings.

•  Responsible for independently evaluating and treating patients in the
Outpatient Family Medicine Clinic, ordering labs, scheduling follow ups
and perfomiing necessary procedures in a timely fashion.

•  Responsible for inpatient care on the floors, making decisions
independently, ensuring timely investigations/inier\'entions and assisting in
surgical procedures whenever necessary.

•  Responsible for teaching and super\'ising interns, and third/ fourth year
medical students.

•  Member of residency curriculum committee and Residency didactics
committee

Co-chiefResident, Family Practice Residency, March 2007 - June 2008
• Work to enhance communication between the resident staff, the attending

staff/faculty, and the technical staff.

•  Advocate for the resident staff and promotes resident interests in
conjunction with program needs and functions.

•  Fomiulate resident rotation schedules, resident orientation programs,
resident social functions, resident applicant inter\'iews, and resident morale
issues.
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VASUKI NAGARAJ m d m p h

STANDARDIZED TESTS

•  USMLE Step I Passed 08/03

•  USMLE Step 2 CS Passed 01/04

•  USMLE Step 2 CK Passed 02/04

•  USMLE Step 3 Taken 03/07

LICENSURE/BOARD CERTIFICATION

Licensed in Maine during Residency EC-05-041
Licensed in New Hampshire
American Board of Family Medicine

REFERENCES Avuilablc on request
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Sue Durkin

Lamprey Health Care Ociober 2018 - Present

Chief of Clinical Sen'ices June 2019 - Preseni

Provide oversiglu of operations and quality within all clinical sen'ices including primary care, prenatal
care, behavioral health, Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT), Breast and Cervical Cancer Program
(BCCP), diabetes education, care coordination and psychiatry. Responsible for program development:
preparing grant applications and reports; and assuring cotnpliance with state, federal, and funding
requirements within these programs. Provide oversight of the quality department, risk management, and
NCQA Patient Centered Medical Home recognition process. Oversee the activities of the safety
committee and the emergency preparedness plan.

Director of Quality Improvement and Population Health Ociober 2018 - June 2019
Responsible for the overall leadership and administration of the perfonnance improvement and quality
program of ihe organization, including: supported the Board of Director's strategic organizational
initiatives: developed appropriate strategies for evidence based practices for improving clinical operations
and outcomes measures related to Unifomi Data Systems (UDS) and NCQA Patient Centered Medical
Home.

Families First Health and Support Center September 1998 - August 2019

Clinical /J/rec/or January 2015 - August 2019

Responsible for the development and oversight of all clinical programs including primary care. Health
Care for the Homeless, prenatal, well child, Medication Assisted Treatment (MA T), care coordination.
Breast and Cervical Cancer Program (BCCP), Hepatitis C treatment, and the integration of psychiatry
within primary care. Oversaw quality improvement, reporting, risk managemetii, policy development,
systems development and management. Assured cotnpliance with state and federal regulations. Facilitated
training and staff development. Developed and maintained interagency collaborations. Participated in the
organization's tnanagemenl team, NCQA Patient Centered Medical Home work group, and the quality
improvement committee of the Board of Directors. Participated in grant development and management.

Health Care for the Homeless Program Director May 201 1 - Januar>' 2015

Provided overall organization, management, and delivery of quality patient care for the progratn.
Supervised staff. Participated in the organization's management team.

Health Care for the Homeless Proj'ram iS'urse September 2005 - May 2011
Provided primary nursing care to homeless patients in a mobile health setting.

Quality Improvement Director kmc 2001 • September 201 1
Responsible for the organization's quality improvement program. Coordinated activities of the quality
improvement committee of the Board of Directors.

Clinical Operations Director September 1998 - June 2001
Provided oversight of clinical operations for the health center. Responsible for the organization's quality
improvement program. Participated in grant proposal development and reporting. Responsible for clinical
staffing and supervision.

1  I P a g e Sue Durkin - Resume



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3O59E1B0-8B3B-4B30-B17C-0F280E479742

Wcntworth-Douglass Hospital June 1997 - April 1999
StaffNurse/Charge Nurse/Per Diem Nurse
Provided priinaiy nursing care to pedialric, adoicsccni, and adult patients. Perfomicd and assisted in
outpatient procedures. Assumed charge nurse responsibilities as of November 1997.

Education:

Rivier Collcgc~St. Joseph's School of Nursing September 1995 - May 1997
A.D. Nursing, CPA 4.0

College of the Holy Cross September 1987 - May 1991
B.A. Sociology

Certifications/ Licenses:
Certified Profession in Healthcare Quality (CPHQ)
Registered Nurse in State of NH (RN)
Certified Asthma Educator (AE-C)
CPR Cenified

Certified Yoga Teacher (RYT 200)

Boards of Directors:
Seacoast Women's Giving Circle 2016 - Present
Prcscott Park Arts Festival 2005- 2007

2 I P a g e Sue Durkin - Resume
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Patricia A, Mason, LPN
Summary

Over 17 years of experience in Women's Health and Prenatal patient care. Extensive
experience with independent audits, patient management and Adolescent Health
issues. Extensive experience in emergency care either on site or as Fire Dept. responder.

Professional Experience

Lamprey Health Care - Nashua NH 2002 - Present

Women's Health & Prenatal Supervisor, Nurse

• Administrative officer for Women's Healtli Services.

•  Responsible for the administrative supervision, program development and
budget management of the Family Planning and Teen Clinic programs. Outreach
and Prenatal care services. ($462,602)

•  Assure compliance with state and federal standards, policies and guidelines
along with grant conditions.

• Assist with grant writing and submission.
•  Responsible for staff education and training in Women and Adolescent health

issues.

• Administer the Breast and Cervical Cancer program for the Nashua site.
•  Perform office nurse duties as needed,

•  Triage patients.
•  Coordinated Emergency Preparedness training for staff with in house drills.

Disaster Medical Assistance Team - DMAT MA-2 2006 - present

Nurse

• Deploy as needed to locations in or out of the United States that are in need of
rapid-response medical care or casualty decontamination during a terrorist
attack, natural disaster or other incident

•  Provide direct care to patients in a hospital setting, temporary medical tent or in
the field.

•  Enter patient information into an Electronic Medical Record.
•  Sustain long hours and be self-contained for 24 hours without food or shelter.
• Able to deploy for minimum of 2 weeks.
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Boston Marathon Medical Tent 2007 - present

•  Set up cots and medical supplies in tent
•  Assess and care for wounds, medical issues and fatigue. Monitor vitals, start IV

and prepare for transport or release back to race.

Bridges, Nashua NH 2003 - 2010

Crisis Intervention Advocate

•  Answer crisis phone lines 12 hours per month
• Meet victims of domestic violence/sexual assault at the hospital if needed
•  Attend meetings and training

Town of Hudson NH Fire Department

Firefighter/Emergency Medical Technician - Intermediate 1984 - 2006

•  Perform emergency medical care and transportation of patients.
•  Respond to fires and emergencies as a call firefighter
•  Attend monthly trainings and ride along

Education

St. Joseph's School of Nursing, Nashua, NH 2001

Licensure/Certifications

State of NH Licensed Practical Nurse

American Heart Association, CPR Instructor

Certified in IV Therapy, Phlebotomy and Emergency Pharmacology
Lactation Consultant

State of NH Notary, Justice of the Peace
Cosmetology - State of NH



DocuSign Envelope ID; 3D59E1BO-8B3B-4B30-B17C-0F280E479742

COiNTR/\CTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salar)' % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract
Gregory White, CPA Chief Executive Officer 213,696.60 0 0

Vasuki Nagaraj, MD Medical Director 265.137.34 0 0

Susan Durkin. RN Chief of Clinical Services 139,720.88 0 0
Patricia Mason, LPN Family Planning Coordinator 60,060.00 74% 44,444,40
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Lorl A. Shibtneue

Cemminioner

Patricia M. Tilley
Director '

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD. NH 03301
603.271^501 1-800-852.3345 Ext. 4501

Fax: 603-271-1827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.tlhhs.nh.gov

December 7, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampishire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into contracts with the Contractors listed below in an amount- not to exceed
$2,055,498 to provide reproductive and sexual health services to individuals in need with a
heightened focus on vulnerable and/or low-income populations, with two (2) renewals options for
two (2) years each, effective January 1, 2022, or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever
is later, through December 31, 2023. 54% Genera) Funds. 46% Federal Funds!

Contractor Name Vendor Code Area Served Contract Amount

Amoskeag Health 157274-8001 Manchester, NH $335,512

Coos County Family Health 155327-8001 Berlin. NH $268,152

Concord Feminist Health
Center d/b/a Equality

Health Center
257562-8001 Concord, NH $558,395

Joan G. Lovering Health
Center

175132-R001 Greenland, NH $336,934

Lamprey Health Care 177677-R001 Nashua. NH $431,505

Planned Parenthood of

Northern New England 177528-R002

Claremont,
Manchester,

Keene, Derry, and
Exeter

$125,000

$ 2,055,498

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, and
are anticipated to be available in Stale Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The Deparlmenl of Heallh and Ihi man Services' Mission is lo join eommiiiiilies and families
in providing opportunities for ciluens to achieve health and independenee.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

The purpose of this request is provide family planning clinical services. STD and HIV
counseling and testing, and health education materials to lov^-income individuals in need of sexual
and reproductive health care services. All services shall adhere to the Title X Family Planning
Program regulations, which is a federal grant program dedicated to providing individuals with
comprehensive family planning and related preventive health services.

Approximately 15,000 individuals wilt be served from January 1. 2022 through December
31.2023

Reproductive health care and family planning are critical public health services that must
be affordable and easily .accessible v/ithin communities throughout the State. Through this
contract, the Department is partnering with health centers located in rural and urban areas to
ensure that access to affordable reproductive health care is available in all areas of the State.
Family Planning services reduce the health and economic disparities associated with lack of
access to high quality, affordable health care. Individuals with lower levels of education and
income, uninsured, underinsured. individuals of color, and other minority individuals are less likely
to have access to quality family planning services.

The Contractors will provide family planning and reproductive health services to
individuals in need, with a heightened focus on vulnerable and low-income populations including,
but not limited to the uninsured: underinsured; individuals who are eligible for and/or are receiving
Medicaid services. adolescents; lesbian gay bisexual transgender. and/or questioning (LGBTQ);
individuals in need of confidential services; individuals at or below 250 percent federal poverty
level; refugees; and individuals at risk of unintended pregnancy due to substance abuse.

The effectiveness of the services delivered by the Contractors listed above will be
measured by monitoring the percentage of:

•  Clients in the family planning caseload who respectively were under 100% Federal
Poverty Level (FPL), were under 250% FPL. and under 20 years of age.

•  Clients served in the family planning program who were uninsured or Medicaid
recipients at the time of their last visit.

Family , planning clients less than 18 years of age who received education that
abstinence is a viable method of birth control.

Family planning clients who received STD/HIV reduction education.

Individuals under age 25 screened for Chlamydia and tested positive.

•  Family planning clients of reproductive age who receive preconception counseling.

• Women ages 15 to 44 at risk of unintended pregnancy who are provided a mostly or
moderately effective contraceptive method.

The Department selected the Contractors through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from October 8. 2021
through November 4. 2021. The Department received six (6) responses that were reviewed and
scored by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the attached agreements, the parties have the option to
exercise two (2) renewals options, for two (2) years each, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
sen/ices, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request the sustainability of New
Hampshire's reproductive health care system will be negatively impacted. Not authorizing this
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

request could remove the safety net of services that improves birth outcomes, prevents unplanned
pregnancy and reduces health disparities, which could increase the cost of health care for New
Hampshire citizens.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number CFDA #93.217, FAIN
FPHPA006407 and CFDA #93.558. FAIN 2001NHTANF.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General
Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

r  DocuSIgn*^ &y:

2«SAB}7EOeEa<U...

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET
Family Planning

SFY 22-23-24 Contract*

05-98.90.M2010.6630 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH OIV, BUREAU OF COMM A HEALTH SERV, FAMILY PLANNING PROGRAM
FAIN f FPHPA0OA407

CFDA993.217 100% Fadaral.Funda

FUNDER: 'U-S. Dapartmant of Health and Human
Sarvicaa, Office of Asalatant Socretary of Health
100% Federal Fund

Fiscal

Year

Clata 1

Account Clata Title Job Number Budget

SFY 22 074-500385

Grants for Pub Assi

and Rel 90080206 $32,308

SFY 23 074-500585

Grants for Pub Aast

and Rel 90080206 $32,308

SFY 24 074-500585

Grants for Pub Aast

and Rel 90080206 $16,154

Subtotal: $80,770

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account Class Title Job Number Budget

SFY22 ■ 074-500585

Grants for Pub Assi

and Rol 90060206 $26,733

SFY 23 074-500585

Grants for Pub Assi

and Rel 90080206 $26,733

SFY 24 074-500585

Grams for Pub Asst

and Rel 90080206 $13,366

Subtotal: $66,832

Fiscal

Year

Class 1

Account Class Title Job Number Budget

SFY 22 074-500585

Grants for Pub Asst

and Rel 90080206 $39,244

SFY 23 074-500585

Grants for Pub Asst

and Rel 90080206 $39,244

SFY 24 074-500585

Grants for Pub Asst

ar>d Rel 90080206 $19,622

Subtotal: $98,110
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LAMPRE

Flecal

' HEALTH Wt

Claea/

Clata Title Job Number
Budget

074.500585

Grams for Pub Asst

and Rel 90080206 $33,775

SFY 23

1

o

Grants for Pub Asst

arid Rat 90080206
$33,775

SFY 24 074-500585

Grants for Pub Asst

and Rel 90080206

Subtotal:

$16,868

$84,438

JOAN G.

Fiscal

Year

.OVtKINU n

Class 1

Account Class Title Job Number
Budget

074-500585

Grants for Pub Asst
and Rel 90080206 $29,697

074*500585

Grants for Pub Asst
and Rel 90080206 $29,697

SFY 24 074-500585

Grants (or Pub Asst
and Rel 90080206 $14,850

$74,244

Total Federal

Funds
$404,394

05-9S-M.902010-6830 HEALTH AND.SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH *^0 HUM>^ SVS
HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF COMM & HEALTH SERV, FAMILY PLANNING PROGRAM
100% General Fund

AMOSKb

Fiscal Class /

Account Class Title Job Number Budget

SFY 22 102-500731

Contracts for Prog

Serv. 90080207 $66,303

SFY 23 102-500731

Contracts lor Prog

Serv. 90080207 $66,303

SFY 24 102-500731

Contracts for Prog

Serv. 90080207

Subtotal:

$33,151

$166,757

COOS cc

Fiscal

UNIT rAMIL

Class /

Class THle Job Number Budget

SFY 22 102-500731

Contracts for Prog

Serv. 90080207 $52,398

SFY 23 102-500731

Contracts for Prog

Serv. 90080207 $52,398

SFY 24 102-500731

Contracts for Prog
Serv. 90080207

Subtotal:

$26,199

$130,996
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FItcal

Yaar

Class'

Account Class Titia Job Numbar Budget

SFY 22 102-500731

Contracts for Prog

Sorv. 90060207 S119.601

SFY 23 102-500731

Contracts (or Prog
Sarv. 90080207 S116.601

SFY 24 102-500731

Contracts for Prog

Sorv. 90060207 $56,901

Subtotal: $299,603

LAMPREY HEALTH HEALTH CARE • VENCX>R ilTTeTT-ROOl

Flacai

Yaar

Class 1

Account Class THJa Job NumtMr Budget

SFY 22 102-500731

Contracts for Prog
Sorv. 90080207 $90,333

SFY 23 102-500731

Contracts for Prog
Sorv. 90060207 $90,333

SFY 24 102-500731

Contracts for Prog

Sorv. 90060207 $45,167

Subtotal: $226,633

JOAN G. LOVERING HEALTH CENTER • VENDOR 9176132-R001

Fiscal

Yaar

Class /

Account Class Tttia Job Number Budget

SFY 22 102-500731

Contracts for Prog

Sorv. 60060207 $66,372

SFY 23 102-500731

Contracts for Prog
Sorv. 90060207 $68,372

SFY 24 102-500731

Contracts for Prog
Sorv. 90060207 $34,166

Subtotal: $170,930

PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF NORTHERN NEW ENGLAND - VENDOR 9177628-R002

Fiscal

Yaar

Class 1

Account Class TKIa Job Number Budget

SFY 22 102-500731

Contracts for Prog
Serv. 90060213 $50,000

SFY 23 102-500731

Contracts for Prog
Serv. 90060213 $50,000

SFY 24 102-500731

Contracts for Prog
Sorv. 90060213 $25,000

Subtotal: $126,000.0

Total General

Fund: 1,118,017

TOTAL AU

6630 1,622,411
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05-96-4$-4S0010-6148 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,

TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE. AND TEMPORARY

ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

FAIN9 1801NHTANF

CF0A9 S3.658

FUNOER: US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, ADMINISTRATION FOR

CHILDREN

& FAMILIES. TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE FOR NEEDY FAMILIES (ACF. TANFl
100*A Federal Fund*

AMOSKEAG HEALTH • VENDOR f167274^001

Fiscal

Year

CIssa /

Account Class Title Job Number Budoet

SFY22 074-SO0S85

Grants for Pub Asst

ar>d Rel 45030203 S35.S94

SFY23 074-5OO58S

Grants (or Pub Asst

and Rel 45030203
S35.594

SFY 24 074-500565

Grants for Pub Asst

end Rsl 45030203 $17,797

Subtotal: $88,986



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3D59E1B0-8B3B-4B30-B17C-0F280E479742

FIlCAl

Yoor

Ci«n/

Account Cta«t Title Job Number Budget

SFY 22 074-500583

G/ant»rorPu5Aut

and Rai 45030203 $28.t30

SPY 23 074-500585

Grants lor Pub Asst

and Rel 45030203 $28,130

SFY 24 074-500585

Grants for Pub AssI

and Rel 45030203 S14.065

Subtotal: $70,325

Concord Pomlnlit Health Centdf dJbiB Equality Heatth Center - VENDOR >2$7562-BQ01

Fiecal

Year

Claie/

Account Claet Title Job Numt>er Budget

SFY 22 074-500585

Grants for Pub Asst

artd Rel 45030203 $S4.313

SFY 23 074-500389

Grants lor Pub Asst

and Ret 45030203 S64.313

SFY 24 074-500985

Grants for Pub Asst

and Rel 45030203 $32,156

Subtotal: $160,782

r

LAMPREY HEALTH HEALTH CARE • VENDOR «177677R001

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account Class Title Job NumlMr Butlgat

SFY 22 074-500585

Grants for Pub Asst

arxl Rel 45030203 $46,404

SFY 23 074-500585

Grants (or Pub Asst

and Rel 45030203 $48,404

SFY 24 074-500585

Grants for Pub Asst

end Rel 45030203 $24,247

Subtotal: $121,236

JOAN G. LOVERING HEALTH CENTER • VENDOR «175132-R001

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account Class Title Job Number Budget

SFY 22 074-500585

Grants for Pub Assi

ar>d Rel 45030203 S36.704

SFY 23 074-500585

Grants for Pub Aut

end Rel 45030203 $36,704

SFY 24 074-500585

Grants for Pub Asst

and Rel 45030203 $18,352

Subtotal: $91,760

TOTAL AU

6146 $633,087

GRAND

TOTAL $2,066,498

J
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subjcc!:_Reproductive and Sexual Health Services (RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietaty must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Stale of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

CENER^VL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord,NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Lamprey Health Care, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

207 S [ytain Street
Newmarket, NH 03857

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)659-2494

1.6 Account Number

05-095-090-902010-5530

05-095-045-450010-6)46

1.7 Completion Date

December 31, 2023

1.8 Price Limitation

$431,505

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

l.ll Contractor Signature

.12/3/2021

IHlHv ^

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory .

Greg white cEO

1.13 StaR:^cncjrSignalure

12/3/2021

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Patricia m. Tilley Director

1.15 Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (i/applicable)

By; Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and E.xecution) (ifapplicoble)
OacuSlQntd by:

I J. (WUl
1.17 Approval Bj^llietiovcrnor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C.hcm number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
Contractor Initials

Date
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New

Hampshire, acting through Ihe agency identified in block 1.)
("State"), engages contractor identified jn block 1,3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrar>', and subject to the approval of the Governor and
E.xecutive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and E.xecutive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the .Agreement
shall become efTcctive on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("EfTcctive Date").
3.2- If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
Ihe Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the Slate shall have no liability to the Contractor,
Including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriatior^or availabilit)' of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to (he Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRJCE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Stale of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature Incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and (he complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The Slate reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA.80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision In this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding une.xpectcd circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AiND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 in connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreentent is
funded in any pan by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal e.xecutive orders, rules, regulations-'
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the

j State or the United States issue to implement these regulations..
'The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex. handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6,3, The Contractor agrees to permit the Stale or United Stales
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and ihe-covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide oil personnel
neccssarj' to perform the Services. The Contractor wart:an($ that
all personnel engaged in (he Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless othcrNvisc authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effon to
perform the Senhces to hire, any person who is a Slate employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Ofllccr specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning, the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting OITicer's decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute on event of default hcreundcr ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Scrvicc.s satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hcreunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
•8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the Slate to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent- Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the pan of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Slate may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, nt the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, M the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and
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submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.
10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for (hat purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and.
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RS A
chapter 91 -A or other e.xisting law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor-an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Stoic or receive any benefits, workers* compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor .shall not a.ssign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the Stole. For pur^ses
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its afTiliatcs, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or subsiamialiy all
of the assets of the Contractor.
12.2 None of the Ser\'lccs shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontract.s and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unlessothcru'isc exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Slate, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (o^^vhich
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or
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Coniractor, or subconiraciors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or inienilonal conduct. The Stale shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by ihe Contracior arising under
this paragraph 13. Notuithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability in.surancc against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause ofloss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80®/o of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall fumish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ccnificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fumish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccnificatc(s) of insurance
for all rcnewa!(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are Incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, "the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or c.xcmpt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to (he requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undenake pursuant to this
Agreement. ThcContractorshall fumish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable'rcncwal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers" Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Slates
Post OfTice addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only afler approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the Stale of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective succes.sors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to expre.ss their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hamp.shire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panics hereto do not intend to
benefit any third panics and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held,to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any stale or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE ACREEM ENT. This Agreement, which may be
c.xccutcd in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the panics, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reproductive and Sexual Health Services

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows;

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) times for two (2)
additional years each time, from the Completion Date, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties, and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/SubcOritracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions, The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall, be managed If the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

1.3 Add Paragraph 25, Requirements for Family Planning Projects, as follows:

25. The Contractor shall comply with all of the following provisions:

25.1 No state funds shall be used to subsidize abortions, either directly
or indirectly. The family planning project will permit the
Commissioner of the Department of Health and Human Services,
or his or her designated agent or delegate, to inspect the financial
records of the family planning project to monitor compliance with
this requirement.

25.2 At the end of each fiscal year, the Commissioner shall certify, in
writing, to the Governor and Council that he or she personally, or
through a designated agent or delegate, has reviewed the
expenditure of funds awarded to a family planning project and that
no state funds awarded by the Department have been used to
provide abortion services.

25.3 If the Commissioner fails to make such certification or if the

Governor and Executive Council, based on evidence presented by
the Commissioner in his or her certification, find that state funds
awarded by the Department have been used to provide abortion — D9
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reproductive and Sexual Health Services

EXHIBIT A

services, the grant recipient shall either: (a) be found to be in
breach of the terms of such contract, grant or award of funds and
forfeit all right to receive further funding; or (b) suspend all
operations until such time as the slate funded family project is
physically and financially separate from any reproductive health
facility, as defined in RSA 132:37.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reproductive and Sexual Health Services

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. GeneralTerms

1.1. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Contractor shall provide all services in
accordance with the Title X Family Planning Program, which is a federal grant
program dedicated to providing individuals with comprehensive family planning
and related preventive health services. .

1.2. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days shall mean business
days.

1.3. The Contractor shall not utilize any funds provided under this Agreement for
abortion services.

2. Statement of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall provide family planning and reproductive health services
to individuals in need of reproductive and sexual health services with a
heightened focus on vulnerable and low-income populations including, but not
limited to:

2.1.1. Uninsured.

2.1.2. Underinsured.

2.1.3. Individuals who are eligible and/or are receiving Medicaid services.

2.1.4. Adolescents.

2.1.5. Lesbian Gay Bisexual Transgender Questioning (LGBTQ).

2.1.6. Those in need of Confidential Services, as defined in 42 C.F.R. §
59.11.

2.1.7. Individuals at or below 250 percent federal poverty level.

2.1.8. Refugees.

2.1.9. Persons at risk of unintended pregnancy due to substance abuse.
)

2.2. The Contractor shall provide services to a minimum of 1,250 individuals each
State Fiscal Year of the Agreement.

2.3: The Contractor shall provide family planning and reproductive health services •
that include, but are not limited to:

2.3.1. Clinical services.

2.3.2. Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD) and Human Immunodeficiency
Virus (HIV) testing.

2.3.3. STD and HIV counseling.

2.3.4. Sexual health education materials including topics on sterilization, STI
•OS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reproductive and Sexual Health Services

EXHIBIT B

2.3.5. Preconception Health for all individuals of childbearing age.

2.4. The Contractor shall make reasonable efforts to collect charges from clients
without jeopardizing client confidentiality in accordance with Attachment 1. Title
X Sub-Recipient Fee Policy and Sliding Fee Scales.

2.5. The Contractor shall determine the eligibility of individuals for services under
this Agreement in accordance with applicable federal and state laws,
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2.6. The Contractor shall update their sliding fee scales/discount of services in
accordance with the release of Health Resources and Services
Administration's (HRSA's) annual Federal Poverty Guidelines, effective every
February 1 of year each or as posted by the U.S. Department of Health &
Human Services. New sliding fee scales/discount of services must be
submitted every March of this Agreement.- in accordance with the reporting
calendar.

2.7. The Contactor shall provide documentation verifying proof of an established
Electronic Medical Record (EMR) to the Department within thirty (30) days of
Governor and Council approval of this Agreerhent.

2.8. The Contractor shall work directly with the Department's database Contractor
to ensure full integration of their EMR with the Department's FPAR 2.0
compliant Family Planning database no later than June 30. 2022.

2.9. The Contactor shall manually enter FPAR 2.0 data elements as required by
federal and any stale required data elements into the Department's Family
Planning database starting January 1, 2022 until their EMR is fully integrated,
but no later than the June 30. 2022.

2.10. The Contractor shall work with the Department's Contractor for the technical
assistance required to meet integration requirements between the EMR and
the NH Family Planning Program data base system for FPAR 2.0.

2.11. Clinical Services

2.11.1. The Contractor shall provide reproductive and sexual health clinical
services in compliance with all applicable federal and state guidelines
including the New Hampshire Title X Family Planning Clinical Services
Guidelines (Attachment 2).

2.11.2. The Contractor shall follow and maintain established written internal
protocols, policies, practices and clinical family planning guidelines that
comply with Title X rules, and will provide copies of said materials to
the Department upon request.

2.11.3. The Contractor shall ensure all MDs, APRNs, PAs, nurses and/or any
staff providing direct care and/or education to clients read and sign the

O)
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EXHIBIT 8

New Hampshire Family Planning Clinical Services Guidelines prior to
providing any, services under this Agreement.

2.11.4. The Contractor shall submit the New Hampshire Family Planning
Clinical Services Guidelines signed signature page to the Department
for review and signature within thirty (30) days of Governor and Council
approval of this Agreement, and on an annual basis by August 31.

2.11.5. The Contractor shall ensure any staff subsequently added to provide
Title X services also sign the New Hampshire Family Planning Clinical
Services Guidelines signature page prior to providing direct care and/or
education.

2.11.6. The Contractor shall ensure reproductive and sexual health medical
services are performed under the direction of a Medical Director who is
a  licensed physician with special training or experience in family
planning in accordance with 42 CFR §59.5 (b)(6}.

2.11.7. The Contractor shall provide a broad range of contraceptive methods
including, but not limited to:

2.11.7.1. Intrauterine device (lUD).

2.11.7.2. Contraceptive Implant (Nexplanon).

2.11.7.3. Contraceptive pills.

2.11.7.4. Contraceptive injection (Depo-Provera).

2.11.7.5. Condoms.

2.11.7.6. Fertility awareness based methods (FABM).

2.11.8. The Contractor shall provide STD and HIV counseling and testing in
■  compliance with the most up-to-date Centers for Disease Control and

Prevention (CDC) STD Treatment Guidelines in Attachment 2. New
Hampshire Title X Family Planning Clinical Services Guidelines.

2.11.9. The Contractor shall provide sterilization counseling and referral
services to individuals seeking sterilization services.

2.12. Health Education and Outreach

2.12.1. The Contractor shall provide health information" and educational
materials in accordance with Attachment 3, Title X Community
-Participation. Education and Project Promotion, Section 1. Advisory
Committee and Information & Educational (l&E) Materials.

2.12.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department an l&E policy for their
agency by August 31 of each SFY or as directed by the Department.

2.12.3. The Contactor must sign and return the* Community Participation,
Education and Project Promotion Agreement in Attachment 3 to the
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Department within thirty (30) days of Governor and Council approval of
this Agreement.

2.12.4. The Contractor shall ensure l&E materials are suitable for the
populations and communities for which they are irttended. Health
education material topics may'include, but are not limited to:

2.12.4.1. Sexually transmitted diseases (STD).

2.12.4.2. Contraceptive methods.

2.12.4.3. Pre-conception care.

2.12.4.4. Achieving pregnancy/infertility.

2.12.4.5. Adolescent reproductive health.

2.12.4.6. Sexual violence.

2.12.4.7. Abstinence.

2.12.4.8. Pap tests/cancer screenings.

2.12.4.9. Substance misuse services.

2.12.4.10.Mental health.

2.12.5. The Contractor shall establish an l&E Committee and Advisory Board
comprised of individuals within the targeted population or/or
communities for which the materials are intended. The l&E Committee
and Advisory Board, which may be the same group of individuals, must
be broadly representative in terms of demographic factors including:

2.12.5.1. Race;

2.12.5.2. Color;

2.12.5.3. National origin; .

2.12.5.4. Handicapped condition;

2.12.5.5. Sex, and

2.12.5.6. Age.
j

2.12.6. The Contractor shall ensure the l&E Committee reviews all information
and educational materials at a minimum of two (2) times per year to
verify:

2.12.6.1. Materials are up to date on medical accuracy; and

2.12.6.2. Materials are relevant and suitable for to the targeted
populations identified in Subsection 1.1, in accordance with
the Title X Family Planning l&E Advisory and Community
Participation Guidelines/Agreement (Attachment 3).
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2.12.7. The Contractor shall ensure the Advisory Board assesses the Title X
Reproduction and Sexual Health Program .at a minimum of two (2)
times a year to ensure the program is meeting all goals and objectives
in accordance with the Title X Family Planning l&E Advisory and
Community Participation Guidelines/Agreement.

2.12.8. The Contractor shall ensure:

2.12.8.1. The" l&E Committee and Advisory Board meet two (2) times
per year at a minimum.

2.12.8.2. Health education and information materials are reviewed by
the Advisory Board in accordance with Title X Family
Planning l&E Advisory and Community Participation
Guidelines/Agreement (Attachment 3).

2.12.8.3. Health education materials meet current medical standards

and have a documented process for discontinuing any out-
of-date materials.

2.12.9. The Contractor shall submit a listing of the l&E materials to the
Department annually on a set date as determined by the Department.
Information listed must include, but is not limited to:

2.12.9.1. Title of the l&E material.

2.12.9.2. Subject.

2.12.9.3. Advisory Board approval date.

2.12.9.4. Publisher.

2.12.9.5. Date of publication.

2.12.10. The Contractor shall support program outreach and promotional
activities utilizing .Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)
funds to recruit eligible clients to family planning clinics per Attachment
8, NHFPP TANF Policy.

2.12.11. The Contractor shall provide program outreach and promotional
activities or events utilizing the Temporary Assistance for Needy
Families (TANF) funding included in this Agreement. Outreach and
promotional activities/events may include, but are not limited to:

2.12.11.1.Outreach coordination.

2.12.11.2.Community table events.

2.12.11.3.Social media.

2.12.11.4.Outreach to schools.

2.13. Work Plan

RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05 Lamprey Health Care, Inc. Contractor Initials
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2.13.1. The Contractor shall develop a Reproductive and Sexual Health
Services Work Plan for Year One (1) of the Agreement utilizing the Title
X Reproductive and Sexual Health Services Work Plan Template
(Attachment 4), and submit the Work Plan to the Department for
approval within thirty (30) days of the Effective Date of this Agreement.

2.13.2. " The Contractor shall:

2.13.2.1. Track and report Reproductive and Sexual Health Services
Work Plan Outcomes;

2.13.2.2. Revise the Work Plan accordingly; and

2.13.2.3. Submit an updated Work Plan to the Department no later
than August 31, 2022 for Year Two (2) of the Agreement.

2.14. Site Visits

2.14.1. The Contractor shall permit the Department to conduct Site Visits upon
request but no less frequently than annually in order to monitor full
compliance with Title X Program regulations, which includes but is not
limited to ensuring abortion services are not provided as a method of
family planning under this Agreement. The Contractor shall:

2.14.1.1. Complete the pre-site visit form to be provided by the
Department in advance of each scheduled visit;

2.14.1.2. Pull medical charts; and

2.14.1.3. Pull financial documents for auditing purposes.

2.15. Training

2.15.1. The Contractor shall ensure the Director attends in-persdn and/or web-
based meetings and trainings facilitated by the Department upon
request. Meetings will include, but are not limited to, a minimum of two
(2) Family Planning Agency Directors Meetings per calendar year.

2.15.2. The Contractor shall ensure all family planning staff complete the Title
X Orientation e-learning courses, including: .

2.15.2.1. "Title X Orientation: Program Requirements for Title X
Funded Family Planning Projects," and

2.15.2.2. "Introduction to Reproductive Anatomy and Physiology."

2.15.3. The Contractor shall ensure all family planning staff complete yearly
Title X training(s) on topics including:

2.15.3.1. .Mandatory Reporting for abuse, rape, incest, and human
trafficking;

Oi
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2.15.3.2. Family Involvement and Coercion;

2.15.3.3. Non-Discriminatory Services; and

2.15.3.4. Sexually Transmitted Disease.

2.15.4. The Contractor shall ensure all family planning clinical staff participate
in the yearly STD webinar training conducted by the Department and
keep records of staff participation.

2.15.5. The Contractor shall ensure staff providing STD and HIV counseling
are trained utilizing CDC models or tools.

2.15.6. The Contractor shall ensure all family planning clinical staff participate
in the yearly STD webinar training conducted by the Department and
keep records of staff participation, The training can be utilized for HRSA
Section 318 eligibility requirements, if applicable. The Contractor shall;

2.15.6.1. Ensure a minimum of two (2) clinical staff attend the "live"
webinar on the scheduled date, and

2.15.6.2. Ensure clinical staff who did not attend the "live" webinar
view a recording of the training within thirty (30) days of the
"live" webinar, as available.

2.15.6.3. Submit an Attendance Sheet that includes attendee
signatures to the Department within thirty (30) days of the
"live" webinar, as available.

2.15.7. The Contractor shall keep and maintain staff training logs available to
the Department upon request.

2.16. Staffing

2-M6.1. The Contractor shall ensure employees and subcontractors providing
direct services to clients under this Agreement have undergone a
criminal background.check and have no convictions for crimes that
represent evidence of behavior that could endanger clients served
under this Agreement.

2.16.2. The Contractor shall have at a minimum one (1) clinical provider on
staff, available on-site at each clinic location, who is proficient in the
insertion and removal of Long Acting Reversible Contraception (LARC),
lUD and Implant; and provide documentation verifying proficiency to the
Department within thirty (30) days of Governor and Council approval of
this Agreement and on an annual basis no later than August 31, or as
directed by the Department.

2.16.3. The Contractor shall provide and maintain qualified staffing to perform
and carry out all services in this Exhibit B. Scope of Work. The
Contractor shall: —OS

O)
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2.16.3.1. Ensure staff unfamiliar with the NH Family Planning
Program data system currently in use by the NH Family
Planning Program (FPP) attend a required one (1) day
orientation/training Webinar conducted by the Department's
database Contractor.

2.16.3.2. Ensure staff are supervised by a Medical Director, with
specialized training and experience in family planning, in
accordance with Section 1.10.6 above.

2.16.3.3. Ensure staff have received appropriate training and possess
the proper education, experience and orientation to fulfill the
requirements in this RFP and maintain documentation
verifying this requirement is met.

2.16.3.4. Maintain up-to-date records and documentation for staff
requiring licenses and/or certifications and submit
documentation to the Department upon request and no less
than annually.

2.16.4. The Contractor shall notify the Department in writing, via a written letter
submitted on agency letterhead, when:

2.16.4.1.1. Hiring new, staff essential to carrying out
contracted services within thirty (30) days of
hire. Include a copy of the individual's resume.

2.16.4.1.2. A critical position is vacant for more than thirty
(30) days; and

2.16.4.1.3. There is not adequate staffing available to
perform required services for more than thirty
(30) days.

2.16.4.1.4. If a clinical site is closed for more than thirty (30)
days and/or is permanently closed.

3. Exhibits Incorporated

3.1. The Contractor shall use 'and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

3.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security
Requirements.
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3.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K. which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4. Reporting and Deliverables

4.1. The Contractor shall develop and submit the reports as specified in Attachment
5. Family Planning Reporting Calendar to the Department on time, in
accordance with the dates in the Reporting Calendar. Reports and reporting
activities include but are not limited to;

4.1.1. Tracking and reporting Family Planning and Sexual Health Services
performance indicators and measures using Data Trend Tables (DTT)
and work plans.

4.1.2. Developing and submitting an Outreach and Education Report to the
Department on an annual basis no later than August 31. or as specified
by the Department, which outlines the program promotion activities and
■events including, but not limited to:

4.1.2.1. Outreach to schools.

4.1.2.2. Community resource programs.
4.1.2.3. Social media.

4.1.2.4. Community table events.
4.1.3. Collecting and reporting general data consistent with current Title X

Federal requirements through the NH FPP data system.
4.1.4. Collecting FPAR 2.0 Data Elements as required by the Office of

Populations Affairs and the Department beginning January 1, 2022 or
the date the ofTicial elements are released. (See Attachment 6, FPAR
Data Elements - SAMPLE DRAFT).

4.1.5. Submitting the required FPAR Data Elements to the FPP Data System
Contractor electronically through a secure platform on an ongoing
basis, but no less frequently than monthly by the tenth (10th) day of
each month.

4.1.6. Submitting any requested FPAR documents to the Department.each
State Fiscal Year of the Agreement, in accordance with the Reporting
Calendar, in order for the Department to monitor and report program
performance to the Office of Population Affairs (45 CFR §742 and 45
CFR §923).

4.2. The Contractor shall develop and submit an Annual Performance Measure
Outcomes Report to the Department on an annual basis no later than August
31, or as directed by the Department.
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4.3. The Contractor shall provide records of employee salaries and wages that
accurately reflect all work performed to the Department upon request. Such
records shall include, but are not limited to;

4.3.1. All activity(s) for which each employee is compensated: and

4.3.2. The total amount of time spent performing each activity.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Department will monitor Contractor performance through the required
Reporting and Deliverables in Section 3, and the Performance Measures
included in Attachment 7. Family Planning Performance Indicators and
Performance Measures Definitions.

5.2. The Contractor shall provide other key data and metrics including client-level
demographic, performance, and service data upon Department request.

6. Additional Terms

•6.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

6.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

6.1.2.'Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

6.1.3. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
•  Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access and

language assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful
access to programs and/or services to individuals with limited English
proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals
who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who have speech
challenges.

6.2. Credits and Copyright Ownership

6.2.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."
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6.2.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

6.2.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, Including, but not limited to:

6.2.3.1. Brochures.

6.2.3.2. Resource directories.

6.2.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

6.2.3.4. Posters.

6.2.3.5. Reports.

6.2.4. The Contractor'shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

6.3. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

6.3.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty
upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the,
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said
license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions "of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities shall comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the Slate Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

7. Records

7.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

7.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

7.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, — OS
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and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, b.ooks; records, and
original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders,
vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind
contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested
or required by the Department.

7.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all

invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

7.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

7.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon'
payment of the price limitation hereunder. the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 48%. Federal Funding from the Family Planning Services Grants, as
awarded on March 26. 2021, by the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Office of Assistant Secretary of Health. NH Family
Planning (Title X) Program. CFDA #93.217, FAIN FPHPA006407 and
from U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for
Children & Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (AGF,
TANF) as awarded by the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. Administration for Children & Families. Temporary Assistance
for Needy Families (TANF). CFDA #93.558, FAIN 2001NHTANF.

1.2. 52% State General funds.

2. The Contractor shall n^ utilize any funds provided under this Agreement for
abortion services.

3. For the purposes of this Agreement:

3.1. The Department has Identified the Corltraclor as a Subrecipient, in
accordance vvith,2 CFR 200.331.

3.2. The Department has identified this Agreement as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3.3. The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with
2 CFR §200.414.

4. Payment shall be made on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the Department approved budget line items in Exhibit C-1 - Family Planning
Funds Budget through Exhibit C-6, TANF Budget.

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department
by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment.

[Z
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6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to DPHSContractBillinQfS)dhhs.nh.qov. or invoices may be mailed to;

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and
if sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General
Provisions Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

The final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37. General Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in.
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

Should the Contractor not meet the approximate number of clients served in
Year One (1) of the Contract Period, as specified in Subsection 1.2 of Exhibit
B. Scope of Services, the Department may adjust the State Fiscal Year funding
amount for Year Two (2) of the Contract Period through a Contract Amendment
subject to Governor and Councifapproval.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compljance with any Federal or Slate law. rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

13. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11

12,

14. Audits

14.1. The . Contractor must email an annual audit to
melissa.s.morinf9)dhhs.nh.QOv if any of the following conditions exist:
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14.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subreciplent pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

14.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28. Ill-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000.000 or more.

14.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual fmancial audit.

T4.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's'fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

14.3. If Condition 8 or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
arinual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

14.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

14.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

14.6. The Contractor shall allow the Department to conduct financial audits
on an annual basis, or upon request by the Department, to ensure
compliance with the funding requirements of this Agreement. The
Contractor shall make available documentation and staff as necessary
to conduct such audits, including but not limited to policy and
procedure manuals, financial records and reports, and discussions
with management and finance staff.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 el seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of lhe May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal Fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below Is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by;
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
Workplace Requirements 12/3/2021
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Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. fRequiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3,1.4.1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

12/3/2021

Date

Vendor Name:

I  OJ(uft
NarS'e^^'e^d'^ite
Title:

CU43KHS'n07l3
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sut>-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is.a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

12/3/2021

-OocuSlgntd bjr:

Date Nar«¥Wef"«hiteJITRiW

IPLk

CEO

Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbyir^g Vendor Iniiials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certificalion. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certificalion in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certificalion, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant teams
that Its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction." "principal," "proposal," and
'voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction lie entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by OHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that It is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge andf

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor initlais^
And Other Responsibility Matters 12/3/2021
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informalion of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debanment. declared ineligible, or

.  voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11 .A. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective Ipwer tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenl, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

12/3/2021 ^

Date >raWWhite
TiUe:

CEO

Exhlbil F - Certification Roflardiog Debarment. Suspension Contractor Initials^
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS ^

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgraniees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act ©12002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);
- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131 -34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681. 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
empbyment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and'community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C, §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle btowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Extiibrt G
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

*0ecu31gn*4 if.

12/3/2021

Date te

Title: ^£0

\Exhibit G I
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that srnoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library sen/ices to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to-comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
SIOOO per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

Oocu9lcn«tf by:

12/3/2021 (Wufu
Dili BrarwrET

Title: CEO

Exhibit H - Cerlification Regarding Contractor Initials
Environmental Tobacco Smoke 12/3/2021
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
witH'the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160,103 of Title 45, Code,
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity." has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aooreoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
/Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receiv^by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. \ ^

3/2014 Exhibit I Conlraclor Irtilials^—
Health Insurance Portability Act
Bifsiness Associate Agreement 12/3/2021
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I- "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. '"Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o- "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, Including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III.' For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered '

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure. (1)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as riequlred by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (II) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under. Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busifiess

3^2014 Exhibit I Contfactof initials^
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement 12/3/2021
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies. y.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured .
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business assgpiate
agreements with Contractor's intended busiriess associates, who will be receiviji^

3^2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions {P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in.a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make suet) PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. ■ Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the •
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th&s®>3
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business ^

3/2014 Exhibll I Coniractof tnlilals^"
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any-changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's •
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either Immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged tpreach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
•from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended,

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownershio. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be rBeotved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 ExWbii l Contractof initials^-—"—
Health InsurarKe Ponabliity Act
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-.37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services Lamprey Health care

JheoSiateitFy: Contractor

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Patricia m. Tilley Greg white

Name of Authorized Representative
Director

Name of Authorized Representative

ceo

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

12/3/2021 12/3/2021

Date Date

3/2014 ExNbil I
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCQUNTABILrTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act {FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity-
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (OUNS ff)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
-the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal F.unding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

fry:.

12/3/2021 lUU,

Diii
Title:

Exhibh J - Cflrtificalion RegarUinfl the Federal Fundif>g Contfoctof Inltlab^
Accountability And Transparer^cy Act (FFATA) Compliance 12/3/2021
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FORM A

As the Conlraclor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is;
040254401

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgranis. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2. above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

CU4)HHS/n07l3

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document:

1. "Breach"- means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than" authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to

' Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),.
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or- its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V5. Lasl update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Coniraclor Initials^
DHHS Inlormatlon
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19, blometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHj") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C F.R §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart 0, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

• A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

— OS
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional, restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract. \

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to ■
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol, if
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure, of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States, This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HlTECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware. and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation_^with the Slate's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. -Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or its
• sutvcontractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards, and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated,. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this -
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information llfecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (I.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

-OS
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Departnient confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sut>-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and rriaintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
. Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when' the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or toss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response, and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Paris 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to" only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data- to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as • referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from. loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that Is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media, as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand" that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided In
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents.as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and deterrnine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer'

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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TITLE X SUB-RECIPIENT FEE POLICY AND SLIDING FEE SCALES
Section: Maternal & Child Health Sub Section(s): Family Planning Program Version: 1.0
Effective Date: 01/28/21 Next Review Date: 01/01/2022

Approved by: HALEY JOHNSTON

Authority PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES ACT 45 CFR PART 59

I. Fee Policy

Federal Poverty Level, Third Party Billing, and Income Verification
Client income and eligibility for a discount should be assessed, documented in the client record,
and re-evaluated at least annually. Reasonable measures should be taken to verify client income,
without burdening clients from low income families. Documentation of income may include a
copy of a pay stub or some other form of documentation of family income; however clients who
cannot present documentation of income must not be denied services and are allowed to self-
report income. Sub-recipients that have lawful access toother valid means of Income verification
because of the client's participation in another program may use those data rather than re-verify
income or rely solely on the client's self-report. If a client's incomc-cannol be verified after
reasonable attempts to do so, charges are to be based on the client's self-reported income.
Whenever possible, there should be separate charts for client records and medical records.

Clients whose documented Income is at or below 100% of the Federal Poverty Level (FPL) must
not be charged, although the agency must bill all third parties legally obligated to pay for the
sendees (Section 1006(c)(2), PHS Act. 42 CFR 59.5(a)(7)). Bills to third parties may not be
discounted.

•Clients who are responsible for paying any fees for services received must directly receive a bill
at the time services are received. Bills to clients must show total charges minus any allowable
discounts. Fees charged to clients must reflect true costs to a sub-recipient agency.'

Agencies must offer by federal mandate a broad range of acceptable and effective medically
approved family planning methods (including natural family planning methods) and services
(including pregnancy testing and counseling, assistance to achieve pregnancy, basic infertility
services, STI services, preconception health services, and adolescent-friendly health) either on-
sile or by referral (42 CFR 59.5(a)(1)). For the purposes of considering payment for
contraceptive services only, where a client has health insurance coverage through an employer
that does not provide the contraceptive services sought by the client because the employer has
a sincerely held religious or moral objection to providing such coverage, the project director
may consider the client's insurance coverage status as a good reason why they are unable to
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pay for contraceptive services (42 CFR 59.2).

Discount Schedules/Reasonable Cost

A discount schedule (schedule of discounts or sliding fee scale) must be developed and
implemented with sufFicient proponional increments so that inability to pay is never a barrier to
receiving services. The discount schedule must be based on family size, family income, and
other.specified economic considerations and is required for individuals with family incomes
between 101% and 250% of the FPL (42 CFR 59.5(a)(8)). For clients from families whose
income exceeds 250% of the FPL, charges must be made in accordance with a schedule of fees
designed to recover the reasonable cost of providing services (42 CFR 59.5(a)(8)). j

The schedule of discounts should include charges for a new client, an established client,
counseling and education, supplies, and laborator)' costs. The schedule of discounts must .be
updated annually and be in accordance with the current Federal Poverty Guidelines (FPG). Sub-
recipient agencies may choose to apply alternative funds to the cost of services in order to
provide more generous discounts than what is required under the Title X project.

I

On an annual basis, sub-recipient agencies must submit to the grantee (New Hampshire
Department of Health & Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, New Hampshire
Family Planning Program (NH FPP)) a copy of their most current discount schedule that reflects
the most recently published FPG.

Third Party Faymeats

Sub-recipient agencies are required to bill all possible third party payers, including public and
private sources, without the application of any discounts, to ensure that Title X funds will be
used only on clients without any other sources of payments. Sub-recipient agencies are
encouraged to have written agreements with NH Medicaid Plans, as appropriate. Title X funds
will be used onlv as the paver of last resort.

Where the co§t of services is to be reimbursed under title XIX, XX, or XXI of the Social Security
Act, a uTitien agreement with the title XIX, XX or XXI agency is required.

Family income of insured clients should be assessed before determining whether copayments or
additional fees are charged. Clients whose family income is at or below 250% of the FPL should
not pay more (in copayments or additional fees) than what they would olhenvise pay when the
schedule of discounts is applied.

Fee Waiver

Fees must be waived for individuals with family incomes above 100% of the FPL who, as
determined by the site director, are unable, for good reasons, to pay for family planning services
provided through the Title X project. Clients must not be deniedsen>ices or be subjected to any
variation in quality of ser\>ices because ofthe inability to pay.
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Voluntary Donations

Voluntarydonations from clients are permissible; however, clients must not be pressured to
make donations, and donations must not be a prerequisite to the provision of services or supplies.
If a sub-rccipient agency chooses to ask for donations, then donations must be requested from
all clients, including clients using public or private insurance. In such a case, it may be-helpful
to display signs at check-out or have a financial counseling script available for project staff who
will be tasked with collecting donations.

Donations from clients do not waive the billing/charging requirements set out above (i.e.. if a
client is unable to pay the fees for services received, any donations collected should go towards
the cost ofservices received.

Discount Eligibility for Minors

■Eligibility for discounts for unemancipaied minors who receive confidential senhces must be
based on the resources ofthe minor, provided that the Title X provider has documented its efforts
to involve the minor'sfamily in the decision to seek family planning services (absent abuse and.
if so. with appropriate reporting) (42 CFR 59.2).

A minor is an individual under eighteen years of age. Unemancipated minors who wish to
receive services on a confidential basis must be considered solely on the resources of that minor.
If a minor with health insurance requests confidential services, charges for services must be
based on the minor's own resources. Income available to a minor client, such as wages from
part-time employment and allowances transferred directly to the minor, niusi.be considered in
determining a minor's ability to pay for services. Basic provisions (e.g., food, shelter,
transportation, tuition, etc.) supplied by the minor's parents/guardians must not be included in
the determination ofa minor's income.

Under certain conditions where confidentiality is restricted to limited members ofa minor's
family (e.g., there is parental disagreement regarding the minor's use of family planning
services), the charge must be based solely on the minor's income if the minor client's
confidentiality could be breached in seeking the full charge. It is not allowable for sub-recipient
agencies to have a general policy of no fee or flat fees for the provision of services to minor
clients. Nor is it allowable for sub-recipient agencies to have a schedule of fees for minors that
is different from all others receiving services.

If a minor is unemancipated and confidentiality is not a concern, the minor's family income
must be considered in determining the fee for services as with all other clients. Health insurance
plans covering a minor under a parent/guardian's policy should be billed, if the minor docs not
need or requesi.confidential services. In such a case, a written consent form permitting the billing
of the health insurance plan, signed by the minor, must be included in the minor's client record.

Confidential Collections

Sub-recipient agencies must inform clients about the existence of the discount schedule and the

12/3/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID; 3D59E1BO-8B3B-4B30-B17C-OF280E479742

OocuSign Envelope ID: 70F0683F-DCDO^CEE-8C3D-E07E689F5D1E

Attachmeni 1 - Tiile X Sul>-Redpleni Fee Policy and Sliding Fee Scales

fact that services will not be denied due to inability to pay, Sub-recipient agencies must make
reasonable .efforts to collect bills, but they must in no way jeopardize client confidentiality in
the process. Sub-recipient agencies must inform the client of any potential for disclosure of their
confidential health information to policyholdcrs where the policyholder is someone other than
the client. Sub-recipient agencies must also obtain a client's permission befo.re sending bills or
making phone calls to the client's home and/or place of employment.

Sub-recipient Fee Policy Documentation Requirements

The NH FPP will collect documentation described below as required or as necessary in order
to monitor sub-recipient agencies to ensure compliance with the Title Xproject as it relates to

the Fee Policy detailed above.

Sub-recipient agencies must have written documentation (policies and procedures) of the
following processes, which must be consistent and demonstrated throughout sub-
recipient service sites (e.g., in client records, clinic operations);

•  A process that will be used for determining and documenting the client's eligibility for
discounted services.

•  A process for ensuring that client income verification procedure(s) will not present a
barrier to receipt of sen'ices.

•  A process for updating poverty guidelines and discount schedules.
•  A process for annual assessment of client income and discounts.
•  A process for informing clients about the availability of the discount schedule.
•  A process used for determining the cost of services (e.g., using data on locally

prevailing rates and actual clinic costs to develop and update the schedule of fees;
frequency for updating the costs of services).

•  A process for assuring that financial records indicate client income.is assessed and that
charges are applied appropriately to recover the cost of services.

•  A process for how donations are requested and/or accepted.
•  Documentation that demonstrates clients are not pressured to make donations and that

donations are not a prerequisite to the provision of services or supplies (e.g., scripts).
•  A process for determining whether a minor is seeking confidential services (e.g.,

question on intake form).
•  A process for assessing minor's resources (e.g., income).
•  A process for alerting all clinic and billing staff about minor clients who are seeking

and receiving confidential services.
•  A process for obtaining and/or updating contracts with private and public insurers.

•  A process used to assess family income before determining whether copayments or
additional fees are charged.

•  A process for ensuring that financial records indicate that clients with family incomes
between IOI%-250% of the FPL do not pay more in copayments or additional fees
than they would otherwise pay when the discount schedule is applied.

•  A process for identifying third party payers the sub-recipient will bill to collect
reimbursements for cost of providing services.
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•  A description of safeguards that protect client confidentiality, particularly in cases
where sending an explanation of benefits could breach client confidentiality.

II. Definition of A Family Planning Visit

According to the current (2020) Title X Family Planning Annual Report (FPAR), a family
planning client is an individual who has at least one family planning encounter during the
reporting period (i.e., visits with a medical or other health care provider in which family
planning services were provided). The NH FPP considers individuals ages 1 1 through 64 years
to be potentially eligible for family planning services. However, visit definitions are needed to
determine who is a family planning client.

Family Plaooing Visit: a documented contact (either face-to-face in a Title X service site or
virtual using telehealth technology) between an individual and a family planning provider of
which the primary purpose is to provide family planning and related health services to clients
who want to avoid unintended pregnancies or achieve intended pregnancies services.

A virtual family planning encounter uses telecommunications and information technology to
provide access to Title Xfamily planning and related preventive health sendees, including
assessment, diagnosis, intervention, consultation, education and counseling, and supemision.
at a distance. Telehealth technologies include telephone, facsimile machines, electronic mail
systems, videoconferencing, store-and-fonvard imaging, streaming media, remote monitoring
devices, and terrestrial and wirpless communications.

Types of Family Planning Visits

I. Family Planning Encounter With A Clinical Service Provider: a documented, face-

to-face or virtual encounter between a family planning client and a Clinical Services
Provider (e.g., physicians, physician assistants, nurse practitioners, certified nurse
midwives, and registered nurses with an expandcd scope of practice who are
appropriately trained in family planning) in which the client is provided (in association
with the proposed or adopted method of contraception or treatment for infertility) one
or more of the following medical services related to family planning:

• Pap Smear * Blood Pressure Reading
* Pelvic Examination • HIV/STI Testing
• Rectal Examination • Sterilization

* Tcsiicular Examination * Infertility Treatment
* Hemoglobin or Hematocrit * Preconception Counseling
• Pregnancy options counseling

Family Planning Encounter With An Other Health Care Provider a documented,

face-to-face or virtual encounter between a family planning client and an Other
Services Provider (e.g., registered nurses, public health nurses, licensed vocational or

Q
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licensed practical nurses [LPNs], ccnified nurse assistants, health educators, social
workers, or clinic aides) in which family planning education or counseling scr\'ices are
provided in relation to contraception (proposed or adopted method), infertility or
sterilization. The counseling should include a thorough discussion of the following:

•  Reproductive anatomy and physiology

•  Infertility, as appropriate

•  HIV/STI's

•  The variety of family planning methods available, including abstinence and
fertility-awareness based methods

•  The uses, health risks, and benefits associated with each,family planning
method

•  The need to return for evaluation on a regular basis and as problems are
identified

Education and/or counseling related to contraception, infertility or sterilization, which may
occur in a group setting on an individual basis, must be face-to-face or virtual contact and
documented in the client's medical record in order to be counted as a family planning client.

Laboratory tests, in and of themselves, do not constitute visits of any type. If laboratory testing
is performed and there is no other face-to-face or virtual contact between a provider and a
client, then the visit cannot be counted. However, if the tests are accompanied by other
medical services involving family planning related to contraception (proposed or adopted),
infertility, preconception counseling; or sterilization and/or family planning counseling and/or
education related to contraception (proposed or adopted), infertility or sterilization, an
individual will have had a medical or any other health care provider visit by virtue of such
medical seivices or counseling and/or education and is considered a family planning medical
visit.

Pap smears and pelvic examinations in and of themselves constitute a medical visit but not a
family planning medical visit. However, if a pap smear and pelvic examination are.
accompanied by other medical services involving family planning (related to contraception
(proposed or adopted), infertility, preconception counseling, or sterilization) and/or family
planning counseling and/or education related to contraception (proposed or adopted),
infertility, preconception counseling, or sterilization, an individual is considered to have had a
family planning medical visit.

Once an individual has been determined to be a family planning client, there are a number of
required services that must be provided to that client. See the NH FPP Family Planning
Clinical Semices Guidelines for detailed Information on the minimum required clinical services.

r—DS
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Examples of Clients Who Are Family Planning Clients

•  An eleven-year old who is not sexually active, but is provided with counseling and
education regarding reproductive anatomy and physiology can be considered as a family
planning client. Counseling and education regarding contraceptive methods and
HI V/STI counseling and education should also be provided to such clients ifappropriate.
According to the Title X legislative mandates and conditions in the notice of grant award
(NOA), Title X providers must counsel minors on how to resist sexual coercion;
encourage minors to include their family in the decision to seek family planning services,
and follow all state reporting laws on child abuse, child molestation, sexual abuse, rape,
or incest. In Title X and as with the provision of all medical services, discussions between
the provider and the client are confidential and based on the provider's expertise in
assessing what each clients's needs are, and are indicated in the notes within the client's
medical chart.

•  An adolescent male who comes in for contraceptive methods education and counseling
with his adolescent girlfriend can be counted as a family planning client as long as the
client is encouraged to receive other documented Title X required services for males in
the future (e.g., sexual history, partner history, and HIV/Sti education, testicular self-
exam (TSE) education, etc.). According to the Title X legislative mandates and
conditions in the NOA, Title X providers must counsel minors on how to resist sexual
coercion; encourage minors to include their family in the decision to seek family
planning services, and follow all state reporting laws on child abuse, child molestation,
sexual abuse, rape, or incest. In Title X and as with the provision of all medical services,
discussions between the provider and the client are confidential and based on the
provider's expertise in assessing what each client's needs are, and are indicated in the
notes within the client's medical chart.

•  An adult male under 65 years old coming in for a comprehensive preventive health visit
can be counted as a family planning client if the client receives contraceptive method
education and/or counseling (i.e., condoms) and receives other documented Title X
required services for males (e.g., sexual history, partner history, HIV/STI education,
testicular exam, etc.).

•  An adult male under 65 years old coming in for an HIV/STI visit can be counted as a
family planning client if the client receives contraceptive method counseling and/or
education (i.e., condoms) and receives other documented Title X required services for
males (e.g., sexual history, partner history, and HIV/STI education, etc.). Required

, testicular exam screening may not occur during the HIV/STI visit, but should be
performed if the client comes back for other health care services in the future. The
message that condoms can prevent both unintended pregnancy and HIV/STIs must be
included as part of the counseling and/or education provided to the client.
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•  A male who relies on his partner's method for contraception can be counted as a family

planning client if the client receives contraception and preconception counseling, and
education on the partner's contraceptive method.

•  Sterilized individuals can be counted as family planning clients as long as they are under
65 years old and receive other Title X required services, since such individuals have

selected a method of birth control (sterilization). All sub-grantees offering sterilization
must obtain informed consent at least 30 days, but no more than 180 days, before the
date of sterilization..

•  Individuals who are abstinent can be counted as family planning clients as long as they
are under 65 years old and receive other Title X required services, since such clients have

' selected a method of contraception (abstinence).

•  A female under 65 years old can be counted as a family planning client if they receive

contraception education or counseling and other documented Title X required services

for females as appropriate (e.g., sexual history, partner history, HIV/STI education, etc.).

•  Pregnant individuals or those who are seen for their late stage pregnancy or post-partum

visit can be counted as a family planning client if the client receives contraception

education and counseling and/or HIV/STI testing as part of their care. •

•  Individuals who have a positive pregnancy test result can be counted as a family planning
client as long as they receive pregnancy diagnosis and counseling services. Pregnant

individuals may be provided with information and counseling regarding each of the
following options: prenatal care and delivery; infant care, foster care, or adoption; and

pregnancy termination.

•  Individuals with a negative pregnancy test can be counted as a family planning client if
the client receives contraception education and counseling. In addition, any cause of

delayed menses should be investigated.

Examples of Visits That Arc Not Considered Family Planning Encounters

•  An individual who receives anonymous HIV counseling, testing, and referral services
cannot be counted as a family planning client since the visit cannot be documented and

the client does not have a medical record.

•  An individual whose reasons for visit docs not indicate the need for services related to

preventing or achieving pregnancy.

III. Core (Minimum) Family Planning Services

The following services must be charged for on a sliding fee scale, which includes a zero pay
category for clients with incomes < 100% of the FPL, and a discount schedule for clients with

G
12/3/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3D59E1B0-8B3B-4B3O-B17C-OF280E479742

DocuSign Envelope 10; 70FD683F-DCDO^CEE-8C3O-E07E889F5D16

AnachfTieni 1 - THie X Sub-Redpieni Fee Policy and Sliding Fee Scales

family incomes >101% and < 250% of the FPL.

1. Client education must provide all clients with the information needed to: make
informed decisions about family planning, use specific methods of contraception and
identify adverse effects, perform a breast/testicular self-examination, reduce the risk of
HiV/STl transmission, understand the range of available services and the purpose and
sequence of clinic procedures, and understand the importance of recommended
screening tests and other procedures involved in the family planning visit. Client
education must be documented in the client record. All clients should receive education
as a part of an initial visit, an annual revisit, and any medically indicated revisits
related to family planning. Education can occur in a group or individual setting.

2. Counseling to assist clients in reaching an informed decision regarding their
reproductive health and the choice and continued use of family planning methods and
services must be provided for all clients. In addition all clients must receive counseling
on, at a minimum, education about HIV infection and STIs, information on risks and
HlV/STI infection prevention, and referral services. Documentation of counseling must
be included in the client's record. The client's written informed voluntary consent to
receive services must be obtained prior to the client receiving any clinical services. In
addition, if a client chooses a prescription method of contraception, a method-specific
consent form must be obtained and updated routinely at subsequent visits to reflect
current information about the method. The signed informed consent form must be kept
in the client's record. All clients should receive counseling as a part of an initial visit,
an annual revisit, and any medically indicated revisits related to family planning.

3. Comprehensive history for all clients at initial visit, with updates at subsequent visits,
must be obtained. Histories for all clients must include at least the following areas:
significant illnesses, hospitalizations, surgery, blood transfusion or exposure to blood
products, and acute or chronic medical conditions; allergies; current use of prescription
and over-the counter medications; extent of use of tobacco, alcohol, and other drugs;
immunization and rubella status; review of systems; pertinent history of immediate
family members; and partner history (including injectable drug use, multiple partners,
risk history for HIV/AIDs, and sexual orientation). Histories of reproductive
functioning in female clients must include at least the following: contraceptive use
(past and present); menstrual history; sexual history; obstetrical history; gynecological
conditions; history of HIV/STIs; pap smear history; and in utero exposure to DBS for
clients born between 1940 and 1970. Histories of reproductive function in male clients
must include at least the following: sexual history; hisiorj' of HIV/STIs; and urological
conditions.

4. Complete Physical Exam for all clients, for clients, the exam should include (but not
required) height and weight, examination of the thyroid, heart, lungs, extremities,
breasts, abdomen, and blood pressure evaluation. For female clients, the exam musi
Include blood pressure evaluation, breast examination, pelvic examination including
vulvar evaluation and bimanual exam, pap smear (for those 21 years old and older),
and HlV/STI screening, as indicated. All physical examination and laboratory test
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requirements stipulated in the prescribing infomialion for specific methods of
contraception must be followed.

5. Laboratory Tests are required for the provision of specific methods of contraception.
Pregnancy testing must be provided onsite and HIV, Chlamydia, Gonorrhea, and
Syphilis testing must be provided for all clients upon request or if indicated. The
following laboratory procedures must be provided to clients if required in the provision
of a contraceptive method; anemia assessment, vaginal wet mount, diabetes (blood
sugar) testing, cholesterol or lipid testing, Hepatitis B testing, rubella titer, and
urinalysis.

7. Level I Infertility Services must be made available to female and male clients desiring
such services. Level I Infertility services includes: initial infertility interview,
education, physical examination, counseling, and appropriate referral.

8. Revisit schedules must be individualized based on the client's need for education;
counseling, and clinical care beyond that provided at the initial and annual visit. Clients
selecting hormonal contraceptives, lUDs, cervical caps, or diaphragms for the first time
should be scheduled for a revisit as appropriate after initiation of the method to
reinforce its proper use, to check for possible side effects, and to provide additional
information or clarification. A new or established client who chooses to continue a
method already in use need not return for a revisit unless a need for re-evaluation is
determined on the basis of findings at the initial visit.

9. Under the federal Title X law, grants cannot be made to entities that offer only a single
method or unduly limited number of family planning methods. Either directly or
through referral, all reversible and permanent methods of contraception must be
provided, which include barrier methods (female and male), lUDs, fertility awareness
based methods, hormonal methods (injectables, implants, oral contraceptives, and
emergency contraception) and sterilization. Methods not directly provided at the site
should be referred first to another Title X site, if appropriate, and, secondly, elsewhere
at an agency with which the site has a formal arrangement with for the provision of the
service.
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IV SAMPLE DISCOUNT SCHEDULE

The following discount schedule can be used by agencies to help develop their own discount
schedule. This discount schedule is a sample and does not necessarily reflect the current FPL.

Anmin/

hicane:

100%

poverty box

numbers

100% Discount

100% of poverty

No Fee

Cat 80

101-135% of poverty

S25 Fee

Cat 50

136 -185% of poverty

S50 Fee

Family Size:
From: To: From: To: From: To:

1 $ 12,060 $  - $ 12,179.60 $12,180.60 $16,400.60 $16,401.60 $22,430.60
2 $ I6;240 $  - $ 16,401.40 $16,402.40 $22,085.40 $22,086.40 $ 30,205.40
3 $ 20,420 $  - $ 20,623.20 $20,624.20 $27,770.20 $27.7-71.20 $37,980.20
4 $ 24,600 $  ■ - $ 24.845.00 $24,846.00 $33,455.00 $33,456.00 $45,755.00"
5 $ 28,780 $  - $ 29,066.80 $29,067.80 $39,139.80 $39,140.80 $ 53,529.80
6 $ 32,960 $  - $ 33,288.60 $33,289.60 $44,824.60 $44,825.60 $ 61,304.60
7 $37,140 $  - $ 37,510.40 $37,51 1.40 $50,509.40 $50,510.40 $ 69,079.40

8 $41,320 $  -■ $ 41,732.20 $41,733.20 $56,194.20 $56,195.20 $ 76,854.20

Additional

temily
member $4,180
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Fee Policy Agreement

On behalf of I hereby certify that I have read and understand the
(Agency Name)

Information and Fee Policy as detailed above. I agree to ensure all agency staff and

subcontractors working on the Title X project understand and adhere to the aforementioned

policies and procedures set forth.

Authorizing Official: Printed Name

Authorizing Official Signature Date

Oi
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SAMPLE

Stale of New Hampshire
Department of Health &, Human Services

Bureau of Population Health and Community Services
Maternal & Child Health Section

Family Planning Program

Family Planning Clinical Services Guidelines
Effcclive July 1, 2020

<Reviscd November 1996, November 1997, January 2001, May 2001. October 2004, October
2007, December 2009, December 2010, February 2011, February 2012, April 2014, June 2019,
May 2020>

These guidelines detail the minimum required clinical services for Family Planning
delegate agencies. They are designed to meet the Title X regulations and Program Guidelines for
Project Grants for Family Planning Services, U S. Department of Health & Human Services

Each delegate agency is expected to use these guidelines as minimum expectations for
clinical services;" the docunient docs not preclude an agency from providing a broader scope of
services if an agency chooses to develop full medical protocols, these guidelines will form the
foundation reference. Individual guidelines may be quite acceptable with an evidence base. An
agency may have more or less detailed guidelines as long as the acceptable national evidentiary
resource is cited' Title X agencies are expected to provide both contraceptive and preventative
health services

These guidelines must be signed by all MDs, APRNs, PAs, and nurses, anyone who is
providing direct care and/or education to clients The signatures indicate their agreement to follow

HtOllTU
Approved-

7/22/2020

Haley Johnston, MPH

Family Planning Program Manager.
DHKSDPI

Approved

^r- Amy'^aas, MD, MS
NH Family Planning Medical Consultant

Date- n

We agree to follow these guidelines effective July 1, 2019 as minimum required clinical services
for family planning.

Sub-Grantee Agency Name

Sub-Grantee Authon2ing Signature:
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Name/Title Signature Dale
(Please Type Name/Tiilc)
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Family Planning Clinical Services Guidelines

I. Overview of Famiiy Planning Clinical Guidelines:

^ Title X Priority Goals:
h To deliver quahly family planning and related prcvenlive health services, where

evidence exists that those services should lead to improvement m the overall health of
individuals.

2. To provide access to a broad range of acceptable and effective family planning
methods and related preventive health services The broad range of services docs not
include abortion as a method of family planning

3. To assess client's reproductive life plan as part of determining the need for family
planning services, and providing preconception ser%'iccs as appropriate.

^ Delegate Requirements
1. Provide clinical medical services related to family planning and (he effective

usage of contraceptive methods and practices.
The standard package of services includes-
•  Comprehensive family planning services including, client education and

counseling, health history, physical assessment, laboratory testing,-
• Cervical and breast cancer screening,
•  Infertility scr\'ices provide Level! Infertility Services at a minimum, which

includes initial infertility interview, education regarding causes and treatment
options, physical examination, counseling, and appropriate referral These
services must be provided at the client's request

•  Pregnancy diagnosis and counseling regarding prenatal care and delivery,
infant care, foster care, or adoption, and pregnancy termination;

•  Services for adolescents;
• Annual chlamydia and gonorrhea screening for all sexually active women less

than 25 years of age and high-risk women > 25 years of age,
•  Sexually transmitted disease (STD) and human immunodeficiency virus

(HIV) prevention education, testing, and referral;
•  Sexually transmitted disease diagnosis and treatment;

•  Provision and follow up of referrals as needed to address medical and social
services needs.

2. Follow-up treatment for significant problems uncovered by the history or
screening, physical or laboratory assessment or other required (or
recommended) services for Title X family planning patients should be provided
onsile or by appropriate referral per the following clinical practice guidelines:
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•  Providing Quality Family Planning Services - Recommendations of CDC
and US OPA, 2014 (or most current);
ht(D7/wvwv cdc gov/mmwr/Ddr/rr/rr6304 pdf

• With supporting guidelines from:
US Medical Eligibility Criteria for Contraceptive Use 2016, CDC (or most
current)

https //^ovw cdc gov/mmwr/volumcs/69/wr/mjn69l4a3 htm'^s cid—mm69i4a

3 w

U.S Selected Practice Recommendation for Contraceptive Use, 2016 (or most
current), hitos /Avw\v cdc gov/mmwr/volumes/65/iT/rT6S04al .htm

CDC STD & HIV Screening Recommendations, 2016 (or most current)
htiD //v^^v\v.cdc gov/std/preventionyscreenineReccs htm

CDC Sexually Transmitted Diseases Treatment Guidelines, 2015 (or most
current) httPS //wvvvv cdc gov/std/lg20)5Ag-20)5-prtnt.Ddf

CDC Recommendnlion (o Improve Preconception Health and Health Care,
2014 (or most current); httDs7/mvNv cdc gov/oreconceDtion/index.html
Guide to Clinical Preventive Services, 2014 Recommendations of the U S

Preventive Services Task Force

httD.//sv\vw.ahro gov/professionals/clinicians-Drovidcrs/auidelines-

recommendalions/euide/mdex html

American College of Obstetrics and Oynecology (ACOG), Guidelines and
Praclice Patlcrns

American Society of Colposcopy and Cervical Pathology (ASCCP)

Oiher relevant clinical practice guidelines approved by the BPHCS/US
DHHS

3. Necessary referrals for any required services should be initiated and tracked per
written referral protocols and follow>up procedures for each agency.

•  Substance Use Disorder

•  Behavioral Health

•  immediate Postparlum LARC Insertion

•  Primary Care Services
•  Infertility Services

4. Assurance of conndcntiality must be included for all sessions where services arc
provided.

• Mandated Reporting as a mandated reporter, the legal requirement to report
suspected child abuse or neglect supersedes any professional duty to keep
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information about clients confidential

httDsV/www.dhhs.nh eov/dohs/holu/documents/rct>orting-abuse.pdf

•  RSA 161-F, 42-57 Adult Protection Law Persons 18 years old and over
•  RSA 169-C, Child Protection Act Children under 18 years old.

5. Each client .will voluntarily review and sign a general consent form prior to
receiving medical treatment or contraceptive methods(s).

6. Required Trainings:
•  Sexually Transmitted Disease training ail family planning clinical staff members

must either participate in the live or recorded NH DHHS webinar session(s)
annually

•  Family Planning Basics (Family Planning National Training Center), alljamily
planning clinical staff must complete and maintain a (raining certificate on file.
httDS.//\vw\v fDntc.org/rcsQurccs/famiiv-plannin&-basics-elearnine

•  Title X Orientation, Program Requirements for Title X Funded Family Planning
Projects- all family planning staff (administrative and clinical) must complete and
maintain a training certificate on file http.s //www fonlc ore/resdurces/titlc-x-

oneniation-program-requirements-tn)e-x-fundcd-famiiv-D)anning-proiec(s

H. Family Planning Clinical Services

Determining the need for services among female and male clients of reproductive age
by assessing the reason for visit;

•  Reason for visit is related to preventing or achieving pregnancy.
•  Contraceptive services
•  Pregnancy lesung and counseling
•  Achieving pregnancy
•  Basic infertility services
•  Preconception health

•  Sexually transmitted disease services

•  Initial reason for visit is not related to preventing or achieving pregnancy (acute care,.
chronic care management, preventive services) but assessment identifies the need for
services to prevent or achieve pregnancy

•  Assess the need for related preventive services such as breast and cervical cancer
screening

The delivery of preconception, STD, and related preventive health sen-ices should not
be a barrier to a client receiving services related to preventing or achieving pregnancy.

Comprehensive Contraceptive Services (Providing Quality Family Planning Scr\'ices -
Recommendations of CDC and US OPA, 2014: pp 7 - 13)

-OS

anG
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The following steps should help the client adopt, change, or maintoin contraceptive
use:

1  Ensure privacy and confideniiality
2. Obtain clinical and social information including-

a) Medical history
For women;

• Menstrual history

• Gynecologic and obsietnc history
•  Contraceptive use including condom use

•  Allergies
•  Recent intercourse

•  Recent delivery, miscarriage, or termination
•  Any relevant infectious or chronic health conditions

•  Other characteristics and exposures that might affect medical criteria
for contraceptive method

For Men

•  Use of condoms

•  Known allergy to condoms

•  Partner contraception
•  Recent intercourse

• Whether partner is currently pregnant or has had a child, miscarriage,
or termination

•  The presence of any infectious or chronic health condition

The taking of a medical history should not be a barrier to obtaining condoms.

b) Pregnancy intention or reproductive life plan. Ask questions such as.
•  Do you want to become a parent?
•  Do you have any children now"^

•  Do you want to have (more) children''
•  How many (more) children would you like to have and when''

c) Contraceptive experiences and preferences
d) Sexual health assessment including;

•  Sexual practices: types of sexual activity the client engages in.
•  History of exchanging sex for drugs, shelter, money, etc for client or

partner(s)
•  Pregnancy prevention, current, past, and future contraception options

•  • Partners number, gender, concurrency of the client's sex partners

•  Protection from STD. condom use, monogamy, and abstinence
•  Past STD histoo'm client & partner (to the extent the client is aware)

• • History of needle use (drugs, steroids, etc) by client orpartner(s) C~08
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presenting informaiion on the most efFective methods that meet the Individual's
priorities for contraception (based whether or not the client wants to become pregnant
within the next year, medical history, and past experience with methods)

a) Ensure that the client understands

• Method effectiveness

•  Correct use of the method

•  Non-contraceptive benefits
•  Side effects

•  Protection from STDs, including HIV

b) Assist client to consider poieniial barriers that might influence the likelihood
of correct and consistent use of the method under consideration including-
•  Social-behaviorol faciors

•  Intimate partner violence and sexual violence
• Mental health and substance use behaviors

4 Conduct a physical assessment related to contraceptive use, when warranted as per
U.S. Selected Practice Recommendations for Contraceptive Use, 2016, Appendix C.
fhttos//www.cdc.aov/mmwr/voliimes/65/rr/rr6S04a) fippcndix h(m#T-4-C. I down).

5  Provide the contraception method along with instructions about coirecl and consistent
use, help the client develop a plan for using the selected method and for follow-up,
and confirm client understanding Document the client's undersianding of his or her
chosen contraceptive method by using a-

a) Checkbox, or;
b) Written statement, or

c) Method-specific consent fonn
d) Teach-back method may be used to confirm client's understanding about

risks and benefits, method use, and follow-up

6. Provide counseling for returning clients- ask if the client has any concerns with the
contraception method and assess its use. Assess any changes in the client's medical
history that might affect safe use of the contraceptive method

7  Counseling adolescent clients should include a discussion on-
a) Sexual coercion, how to resist altempls to coerce minors into engaging in

sexual activities

b) Family involvemeni: encourage and promote comnuinicntion between the
adolescent and his/her parent(s) or guardianfs) about sexual and reproductive

health

c) Abstinence- counseling that abstinence is an option and is the most effective

way to prevent pregnancy and STDs
OS
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A. Pregnancy Testing and Counseling rProviding Ounlitv Family Planning Services -

Rccommcndnlions of CDC and US OPA, 2014: nn 13- 16):

The visit should include a discussion about reproductive life plan and a medical
histbr)'. The test results should be presented to the elient, followed by a discussion
of options and appropriate referrals.

1  Positive Pregnancy Tesf include an esiiniaiion of gesiational age so that appropriate
counseling can be provided.

a  Sub-recipienls olTer pregnant women the opportunity to be provided
information and counseling regarding each of the following options:
•  Prenatal care and delivery
•  Infant care, foster care, or adoption
•  Pregnancy termmalion

a) For clients who are considenng or choose to continue the pregnancy, initial
prenatal counseling should be provided in accordance with recommendations
of professional medical organizations such as ACOG.

2. Negative Pregnancy Test and Not Seeking Pregnancy: evaluate reason for negative
lest Offer same day contraceptive services (including emergency contraception) and
discuss the value of making a reproductive life plan

3. Negative Pregnancy Test and Seeking Pregnancy counsel about how to maximize
fertility.
a) If appropriate, offer Basic Infertility Services (Level I) on-site or through referral

Key education points include.
•  Peak days and signs of fertility.

•  Vaginal intercourse soon after menstrual period ends can increase the
likelihood of becoming pregnant.

• Methods or devices that determine or predict ovuiation
•  Fertility rales are lower among women who are very thin or obese, and

those who consume high levels of cafTeme.
•  Smoking, consuming alcohol, using recreational drugs, and using most

commercially available vaginal lubricants might reduce fertility.

B. Prcconccntion Health Services fProvidlng Quality Family Planning Services --

Recommendations of CDC and liS OPA. 2014: nn 16- 17):

Preconception health services should be offered to women of reproductive age who
are not pregnant but are at risk of becoming pregnant and to men who are at risk
for impregnating their female pqrtner. Services should be administered in
accordance with CDC's recommendations to improve preconception health and
health care.

1  For women (
[
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a) Counsel on the need to lake a daily supplement containing folic acid
b) Discussion of reproductive life plan.
c) Sexual health assessment screening including screening for sexually

transmitted infections as indicated.

d) Other screening services that include
• Obtain medical history

o Many chronic medical conditions such as diabetes, hypertension,
psychiainc illness, and thyroid disease have implications for
pregnancy outcomes and should be optimally managed before
pregnancy.

o All prescription and nonprescription medications should be
reviewed during prcpregnancy counseling and icralogens should be
avoided

•  Screen for intimate partner violence
•  Screen for tobacco, alcohol, and substance use
•  Screen for immunization status

•  Screen for depression when staff are in place to ensure an accurate
diagnosis At a minimum, provide referral to behavioral health
services for those who have a positive screen

•  Screen for obesity by obtaining height, weight, & Body Mass Index
(BMI)

•  Screen for hypertension by obtaining Blood Pressure (BP).
•  Screen for type 2 diabetes in asymptomatic adults with sustained BP >

135/80 mmHg (refer to PCP)
•  "Women who present for prcpregnancy counseling should be offered

screening for the same genetic conditions as recommended for
pregnant women

•  Patients with potential exposure to certain infectious diseases, such as
the Zika viais, should be counseled regarding travel restrictions and
appropriate waiting time before attempting pregnancy.

2  For Men.

a) Discussion of reproductive life plan
b) Sexual health assessment screening
c) Other screening services that include.

Obtain medical history
Screen for tobacco, alcohol, and substance use

Screen for immunization status

Screen for depression when staff-assisted depression supports are in
place to ensure accurate diagnosis, effective treatment, and follow-up
Screen for obesity by obtaining height, weight, & BMI
Screen for hypertension by obtaining BP
Screen for type 2 diabetes in asymptomatic adults with sustained BP >
135/80 mmHg
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•  Patients' with potential exposure to certain infectious diseases, such as
(he Zika virus, should be counseled regarding travel restrictions and
appropriate wailing time before attempting pregnancy

D. Sexually Transmitted Disease $cr\'ices (Providing Quality Family Planning Services

- Recommendations of CDC and US OPA. 2014: dp 17- 20):

Provide STD services in accordance with CDC's STD treatment and HIV testing
guidelines.

I  Assess client.

a) Discuss client's reproductive life plan

b) Obtain medical history
c) Obtain sexual health assessment
d) Check immunization status

2. Screen client for STDs

a) Test sexually active women < 25 years of age and high-risk vyomen > 25 years
ofage yearly for chlamydia and gonorrhea

b) Screen clients for HIV/AIDS in accordance with CDC HIV testing guidelines
which include routinely screening all clients aged 13-64 years for HIV
infection at least one time. Those likely to be high risk for HIV should be rc-
scrcencd at least annually or per CDC Guidelines

c) Provide additional STD testing as indicated
o Syphilis

•  Populations at nsk include MSM, commercial sex workers,
persons who exchange sex for drugs, those in adult corrcciiona)
facilities and those living in communities with high prevalence
of syphilis

•  Pregnant women should be screened for syphilis at the time of
their positive pregnancy test if there might be delays In
obtaining prenatal carc.

o Hepatitis C
•  CDC recommends one-lime testing for hepatitis C (HCV) for

persons born during 1945-1965, as well as persons at high risk.

4 Treat client and his/her panner(s), through expedited partner therapy, if positive for
STDs in a timely fashion to prevent complications, re-infcction, and further spread in ,
accordance with CDC's STD Irealmenl guidelines. Re-test as indicated Follow NH
Bureau of Infectious Disease Control reporting regulations.
fhtlDs.//v\'ww.cdc.gov/std/eDt/dcfnult html

5  Provide STD/HIV risk reduction counseling.
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III. Guidelines for Related Preventive Health Services (Providing Quality

Family Planning Services - Recommendations of CDC and US OPA. 2014:

P. 20):

A. For clients without a PCP, the following screening services should be provided on-
site or by referral in accordance with federal and professional medical
recommendations:

• Medical History
•  Cervical Cylology and HPV vaccine
•  Clinical Breast Examination or discussion

•. Mammography

•  Genital Examination for adolescent males to assess normal gro\Wh and
development and other common genital findings

IV. Summary (Providing Quality Family Planning Services Recommendations
of CDC and US OPA, 2014: dp 22- 23V

A Checklist of family planning and related preventive health services for women:
Appendix B

B Checklist of family planning and related preventive health services for men:
Appendix C

V. Guidelines for Othcr.Mcdical Services

^ Postpartum Services

Provide postpartum services in accordance with federal and professional medical
recommendations In addition, provide comprehensive contraception services as described
above to meet family planning guidelines

^ $tcrili^ation Services

Public Health Services Guidelines on Sterilization of Persons in-Fedcrally Assisted Family
Planning Projects (42 CFR Part 50. Subpari B, 10-1-00 Edition) must be followed if
sterilization services are offered

C Minor Gynecological Problems

Diagnosis and treatment are provided according to each agency's medical guidelines

£L Genetic Screening
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Ininal genetic screening and referral for genetic counseling is provided to clients at risk for
transmission of genetic abnormalities Initial screening includes: family history of client and
partner

VI. Referrals

Agencies must establish formal arrangements with a referral agency for the provision of
services required by Title X that are not available on site Agencies must have written
policies/procedures for follow.up on referrals made as a result of abnormal physical exam or
laboratory test findings These policies must be sensitive to client's concerns for
confidentiality and privacy.

If services are determined to be necessary, but beyond the scope of Title X or the state
program clinical, guidelines, agencies are responsible to provide pertinent client information
to the referral provider (with the client's consent) and to counsel the client on her/his
responsibility to follow up with the referral and on the importance of the referral.

When making referrals for services that are not required under Title X or by the slate
program clinical guidelines, agencies must make efforts to assist the client in identifying
payment sources, but agencies are not responsible for payment for these services.

VII. Emergencies

All agencies must have written protocols for the management of on-siic medical
emergencies Protocols must also be in place for emergencies requiring transport, afler-hours

.  management of contraceptive emergencies and clinic emergencies. All staff must be familiar
with emergency protocols

VTTT. Resources

Contraception:

US Medical Eligibility for Contraceptive Use, 2016.

http //www cdc.eov/reDroducttvehealthAJninlcndedPregnancv/USMEC htm

U S Selected Practice Recommendations for Contraceptive Use, 2016
https//www cdc gov/mmwr/volumc.s/65/iT/rr6S04al htm'^.s cid°rr6504al w

o CDC IVTEC and SPR arc available as a mobile app

https //www cdc gov/mobilc/mobileapp html

Bedsider httDs//www.bedsider.org/

o Evidence-based resource for contraceptive counseling for patients and providers
,  05
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"Emergency Contraception," AGOG, /COG Practice Bulletin. No }52. September, 2015.
(ReafTinmed 2018) hrtos //www acoc ore/Clinjcfll-Cui'dnncc-and-Publicaiions/Practlce'
Bultet(ns/Conimiltee-on-Practice'Bullet>ns-GvnccolQgv/Emerfcncv-Contracep{ion-

"Long-Acting Reversible Coniraception Implants and Intrautcrinc Devices," AGOG

Practice Bulletin Number 186, November 2017. httPS./Awvw acoa orfi/Clinical-Guidance-

and-Pubiications/Practice-Bullelins/CoinmiHce-on-Prac(ice-Bulletins-GvhecQlQgv/Lonv-Aciinp-
Reversible-Contrflccption-lmplants-and-lntraiiterine-Devices

AGOG LARC program* clinical, billing, and policy resources
https*/yvvww acoQ org/Dractice-managementycodino

ContraceDlive Technoiogv. Hatcher, et al' 21*' Revised Edition

htto /ywww contraceDtivetechnoloev.orgythe-booky

Managing Contraceptive Pill Patients. Richard P. Dickey.

Emergency Contraception https yyvvww acog orgypatient-
resources/faQs/contraception/emergencv-contraception

Condom Effectiveness; http./ywvvw cdc.eovyconciomcfrecliveriess/index.htm)

Preventative Care

•  US Preventive Services Task Force (USPSTF)
http yywvAv.uspreventiveservicestaskforce.org

o U.S. Preventive Services Task Force (USPSTF). Guide to Clinical Preventive
Services, 2014 htto yyvvww ahrg.govyDrofessionalsyclinicians-

providersyguidehnes-recommendationsyguideyindex html

•  "Cervical cancer screening and prevention," ACOG Practice DuDciin Number 168,

October 2016 (Reaffirmed 2018) hitns yyvvww acog orgyCitmcal-Guidance-and-
■  PublicaiionsyPractice-Bulletins/Committee-on-Practice-Biilletins-GvnecoloevyCervical-Canccr-

Screen ing-and-PreveiUion

•  American Society for Colposcopy and Cervical Pathology (ASCCP)
http /ywww.asccp.org

O Massad ct al, 20)2 Updated Consensus Guidelines for the Management of Abnomial
Cervical Cancer Screening Tests and Cancer Precursors 2013, American Society for
Colposcopy and Cervical Pathology Journal of l^wer Genital Tract Disease, Volume 17,
Numbers, 2013, S1YS27

Mobile app: Abnormal pap management

https-yyvvvvw ascco oreymobile-aop os
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•  "Breast Cancer Risk Assessment and Screening in Average-Risk Women," ACOG
Practice Bulletin Number 179, July 20) 7. Imps //www acog org/Ciinical-Guidance.flnd-

Publications/Practicc-Bulietins/Comniittee-on-Practice-Bullet'ins-Gvnccology/Breast-Cancer-

Risk-Assessment-flnd-Screen»ng-in-Average-Risk-Womei>

Adolescent Health

•  American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP), Bright Futures, Guidelines for Health
Supervision of Infants, Children, and Adolescents, 4"' Edition.
httPsV/bnghtfuturcs aao org/Brioht''/o20Fuliires%20Documents/BF4 Introduction odf

•  American Medical Association (AMA) Guidelines for Adolescent-Preventive Ser\'iccs
(GAPS) httD //v^^vw.uptodate com/contents/guidelines-for-adolescent-preveniive-services

• North American Society of Pediatric and Adolescent Gynecology http //wnvw nasoae org/

•  American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP), Policy Statement- "Contraception for

Adolescents", September, 20)4

hup //pediatrics aappublications.org/content/earlv/2014/09/24/Deds 2014-2299

•  American Academy of Pediatrics, Policy Statement, Options Counseling for the Pregnant
Adolescent Patient. Pediatrics, September2017, VOLUME 140 / ISSUE 3

• Mandated Reporting: https./Av\wv fonlc org/resources/mandatorv-chiid-abuse-reporting-

statc-siimmancs/new-hamDshire

Sexually Transmitted Diseases

• USDHHS Centers for Disease Control (CDC), STD Treatment Guidelines
http /As^vw ode gov/std/treatment/.

o Available as a mobile app- httos //vs'ww cdc eov/mobile/mobilcapD html

•  Expedited Partner Therapy CDC htios /Avu^v cdc gov/std/ept/default.htm

o NH DHHS resource on EPT in NH. hitps /Avww dhhs nh gov/dohs/bchs/std/cpt htm

•  AIDS mfo (DHHS) http //w\v\v aidsinfo nih eov/

Pregnancy testing and counseling/Early pregnancy management

•  Exploring All Options* Pregnancy Counseling Without Bias • Quality Family Planning,
FPNTC is supported by the Office of Population Affairs of the U.S Department of
Health and Human Services. httDs./Av\v\v.fpntc.org/sites/default/riles/resources/2QI7-

10/fpntc expl all options20l6odf
OS
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American Academy of Pediatrics, Policy Statement, Options Counseling for the Pregnant
Adolescent Patient Pediatrics, September 2017, VOLUME 140 / ISSUE 3

Guidelines for Perinatal Care, 8th Edition. AAP Committee on Fetus and Newborn and

AGOG Committee on Obstetric Practice. Edited by Sarah J. Kilpairick, Lu-Ann Papile
and George A Macones Book | Published m 2017 ISBN (paper)-978-1-61002-087-9
https //ebooks aappubiications org/content/guidelines-for-pennalal-care-8th-edition

"Early pregnancy loss." ACOG Practice Bulletin No. 200. American College of
Obsictnciahs and Gynecoiogisis Obstet Gynecol 2018,132 el97-207.
https //www ncoft org/Clmicni-Gu»dance-and-P\ibtications/Prachcc-t3»tlctins/Coi-nmiltee»on-

Prflctice-Bulietins-Gvnecologv/Eariv-Preenancv-Loss

Fcrtilitv/Infcrtilitv counseling and basic workup

•  American Society for Reproductive Medicine (ASRM) http-/Awsav.asrm ore

o Practice Committee of the American Society for Reproductive Medicine in
collaboration with the,Society for Reproductive Endocrinology and infertility
Optimizing natural fertility a cornrnmee opinion Fertil Steril, January 2017,
Volume 107, Issue 1, Pages 52-58

o Practice Committee of the American Society for Reproductive Medicine
Diagnostic evaluation of the infertile female: a committee opinion Fertil Steril
2015 Jun;103(6):e44-50 doi: 10.10l6/j.fertnstert 2015.03 019. Epub20l5 Apr
30.

Preconception Visit

•  Prepregnancy counseling ACOG Committee Opinion No. 762. American College of
Obstetricians and Gynecologists. Obstet Gynecol 20l9;l33:e78~89.
https.//w\wv acQg org/clinical/clmical-guidance/committee-

opinion/anicles/2019/01 /prepregnancv-counseling

Other

•  .American College of Obstetrics and Gynecology (ACOG) Practice Bulletins and
Committee Opinions are available on-line to ACOG members only, at
http.//www acog.org Yearly on-line subscriptions and CD-ROMs are available for
purchase through the ACOG Bookstore. Compendium ofSelected PubUcalions contains
all of the ACOG Educational Bulletins, Practice Bulletins, and Committee Opinions, that
are current as of December 31, 2018 Can be purchased by.Phone. (800) 762-2264 or
(770) 280-4184, or through the Online bookstore. Iittps //sales acog org/2019-ComDendmm-
or-Selec(ed-P(iblicalions-USB-Drive-P498 asp.x
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•  Amcncan Cancer Society http //www.cancer.orfc/

•  Agency for Healthcare Research and Qualily http //vwsav ahra.gov/clinic/cpesix htm
I

•  Partners in Information Access for the Public Health Workforce

phpartners.ore/ph public/

• Women's Health Issue's, published bimonthly by the Jacobs Institute of Women's Health.
http.//w\vr\\' whijournal com

•  Amcncan Medical Association, Information Center http //swAV'.ama-assn.org/ama

•  US DHHS, Health Resources Services Administration (HRSA)
http //wwov hrsa gov/index html

•  "Reproductive Health Online (Rcprolinc)", Johns Hopkins University
httP //wovw reprolineplus org

•  National Guidelines Clearinghouse (NGCH) http //ssovw guidelme.eov

• Know &. Tell, child abuse and neglect Inforrnation and trainings;
httDs://knowandteH ore/

Additional Resources:

• American Society for Reproductive Medicine: hltp //www asrm ore

•  Centers for Disease Control & Prevention A to Z index, hltp //www cdc.eov/az/b html

•  Emergency Contraception Web site http //ec pnnceton edu/

• Office of Population Affairs. htip://w\vw hhs.gov/opa

•  Title X Statute http://wvw\'.hhs.gov/oDa/iitle-x-familv-Dlonnine/title'X-Dohcies/statutes»

and-regulations

•  Appropriations Language/Legislative Mandates http7/www hhs-gov/opaytitle-x-familv-

planning/titlc-x-policies/legislaiivc-mandates

•  Sterilization of Persons in Federally A.ssisied Family Planning Projects Regulations
httPs:/As^vw hh$.go\7opa/sitcs/default/fiiey/42-cfr'S0-c O.pdf

C—09
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Tirle X Community Participation, Education and Project Promotion
Section: Maternal & Child Health Sub Section{s): Family Planning Program Version: 2.0
Effective Date: [July 1,2021] Ne.xt Review Date: [July I, 2022]

Approved by: HALEY JOHNSTON

Authority Code of Federal RcEulations 42 CFR 59.6(a) ecfr.EOv

This set of policies describe the NH Family Planning Program's (NH FPP) process for ensuring
sub-recipient compliance with Community Participation, Education and Project promotion
requirements under the Title X Project. The following are covered in this section:

•  Advisory Committee & Infoimational &. Educational Materials Review and Approval
•  Collaborative Planning and Community Engagement

•  Community Awareness and Education

I. Advisory Committee and Informational & Educational Materials

Advisory Committee

Sub-recipients must have an Advisory Committee to provide an opportunity for participation in
the development, implementation and evaluation of the project by persons broadly representative
of all significant elements of the population served and by persons in the community
knowledgeable about the community's needs for family planning services (42 CFR 59.5(b)(IO)].

The Advisory Committee must:

•  Consist of no fewer than five members and up to as many members the recipient
deienmlnes

o The size of the committee can differfrom these limits with written documentation
and approvalfrom the Title X Regional Office (42 CFR 59.6(b)(1)}.

o Helpful Tip: Possessing more than five members will allow for continued

compliance and allot more time for member recruitment if someone chooses to

leave the committee.

•  include individuals broadly representative of the population or community thai is to be
served by the sub-recipient agency (in lemis of demographic factors such as race,
ethnicity, color, national origin, disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, age,
marital status, income, geography, and including but not limited to individuals who

belong to underscrvcd communities, such as Black, Latino, and Indigenous and Native
American persons, Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders and other persons of color;
members of religious minorities; lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, and queer
(LCBTQ+) persons; persons with disabilities; persons who live in rural areas; and
persons otherwise adversely affected by persistent poverty or inequality.
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• Meet regularly (in-person or virtually) to oversee the agency's Title X project, including

the revieWand approval of informational and educational (l&E) materials (print and

electronic).

A board or committee that is already in existence can be used for the purpose of the Advisory
Committee and/or l&E Committee as long as it meets the requirements. Check with local health
departmient staff, agency upper management, community groups, or organizations (e.g., school-
based health centers; public health advisory; alcohol and drug programs). Note: In-house agency
staff cannot sen'c as committee members.

Informational & Educational (l&E) Materials Review and Approval

The Title X Grantee (Department ofHealth and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Sen'ices, NH Family Planning Program (NH FPP)) delegates the IdcE operations for the review
and approval ofmaterials to sub-recipient agencies; however, oversight of the l&E committee(s)
and review process rests with the NH FPP. The NH FPP will ensure that sub-recipients and
service sites adhere to all Title X !&£ materials review and approval requirements.

Responsibility for Review and Approval

All I&E materials (print and electronic) developed or made available under the Title X Project
must be reviewed and approved by the sub-recipient Advisory Committee prior to their
distribution. If the Advisory Committee chooses it can delegate it's l&E functions and
responsibilities to a separate l&E Committee; however the final responsibility of all I&E

materials still lies with the Advisory Committee. If a separate l&E Committee is used, it must
consist of no few than five members that are broadly representative of the population or
communityfor which the l&£ materials are intended.

The responsible committee (l&E or Advisory) may delegate responsibility for the review of the
factual, technical, and clinical accuracy of all l&E materials developed or made available under
the Title X-funded project to appropriate project staff (e.g., RN, NP, CNM). If this function is
delegated to appropriate project staff, the responsible committee must still then oversee
operations and grant final approval.

The following language mav be used for the purpose of member recruitment or orientation:

•  Federally funded family planning agencies provide critical health services to low-income
and uninsured individuals to prevent unintended pregnancies.

•  The federal grant requires advisory committee review and approval of all educational
materials and information before distribution to the community.

•  Advisory committees assist in evaluating and selecting materials appropriate for clients'
and the community.

•. The family planning agency sends committee members materials, such as pamphlets,
videos, posters, or leaching tools. Members complete an l&E review form or attend a
meeting to give feedback regarding material appropriateness for the audience and
community.

' ̂
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Material Review and Approval Process

The responsible commiliee must review and approve all l&E materials (print and electronic)
developed or made available under the project prior to their distribution to ensure that the
materials arc suitable for the population and community for which they are intended and to
ensure their consistency with the purposes ofTitle X (Section 1006(d)(1), PHS Act; 42 CFR
59.6(a)). Thereafter, all materials being distributed or made available under the Title X
project must be reviewed and re-approved or expired on an annual basis.

The following criteria must be used for reviewing and approving materials to ensure that the
above requirements arc fulfilled:

•' Consider the educational, cultural, and diverse backgrounds of the individuals to whom
the materials are addressed;

•  Consider the standards of the population or community to be serN'cd with respect to
such materials;

•  Review the content of the material to assure that the information is factually correct,
medically accurate, culturally and linguistically appropriate, inclusive and trauma
informed;

•  Determine whether the material is suitable for the population or community for which
it is to be made available; and

•  Establish a written record of its determinations.

Committee meetings specifically for I&£ material review and approval are not required, but
strongly recommended. The committee may choose to meet in-person or via conference calls, or
may communicate by e-mail, phone, fax or mailfor each material's review.

Documentation Requirements for Advisory Committee and l&E Materials

The NH FPP will collect documentation described below as required or as necessary in order to
monitor sub-recipients to ensure compliance with the Title X project as it relates to the Advisory
Committee and the review and approval of l&E materials.

1.) I&E Master List Requirement. On an annual basis, sub-recipients will be required to submit
a comprehensive master list of l&E materials that are currently being distributed or are
available to Title X clients. The list must include the dale of approval, which must be within
one year from the date the l&E master list is due to be submitted.

2.) Policies and Procedures. Sub-recipients must have written documentation that outlines their
process for conducting material reviews, which must include:
•  A process for assessing that the content of l&E materials is factually correct, medically

accurate, culturally and linguistically appropriate, inclusive, and trauma informed, and
how it is ensured by the committee or appropriate project staff.

•  Criteria and procedures the committee members will use to ensure that the materials are
suitable for the population and community for which they are intended.

•  Processes for reviewing materials written in languages other than English.
•  How review and approval records will be maintained.

•  How old materials will be expired.

an
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•  Process to document compliance with the membership size requirement for the Advisory
Committee (updated lists/rosters, meeting minutes).

•  How the Advisory Committee provides oversight and final approval for l&E materials,
if this responsibility is delegated.

•  Process to document that the l&E/Advisory Committee is/are active (meeting minutes).
•  Process for selecting individuals to serve on the l&E/Advisory Committee(s) to ensure

membership is broadly representative of the population/community being served..
•  Process for documenting compliance with all l&E/Advisory Committee requirements

(meeting minutes, review form used).

II. Collaborative Planning and Community Engagement

Sub-recipients must establish community engagement plans that ensure individuals who are
broadly representative of all significant elements of the population served, and those who are
knowledgeable about the community's needs for family planning services, will participate in
developing, implementing, and evaluating the Title X project (42 CFR 59.5(b)(I0)).

A community participation committee must be identified to serve the community engagement
function. The l&E/Advisory committee may be used to fulfill this function or a separate group
may be identified, so long as it meets the requirements. The community participation committee
must meet annually or more often as appropriate.

Suggestions for Collaborative Planning and Community Engagement;

•  Conduct routine community needs assessments and/or joint community needs
assessments with community partners where service areas overlap.

•  Administer client satisfaction surveys and use results for program planning.
•  Collect feedback from clients through social media platforms.
•  Develop mechanism for obtaining feedback from community members on agency Title

X services and materials. Mechanisms may include a community advisory committee,
youth advisory committee, or patient advisory committee.

•  Present at community meetings and solicit feedback.
•  Conduct a survey with community partners (mental health 'and primary care providers,

shelters, prisons, faith-based organizations, school personnel, parent.groups, social
service agencies, food pantries, and other community organizations).

•  Conduct focus groups with clients or community partners.
•  Problem solve at service sites (e.g., determine how to increase male services; solve a

"no show" problem; improve customer service).

•  Offer feedback about your family planning program strengths and suggest areas
needing improvement. Serve as family planning advocates to increase community
awareness of the need for family planning services and the impact of services.

Sub-rccipients must establish within policies and procedures:
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Attachment 3- Title X Family Planning Inrormation and Education (I8E) Advisofy and Community Participation GuidelinesAgreement

•  A process by which diverse community members (identified through needs assessment)
will be involved in efforts to develop, assess, and/or evaluate the family planning project.

•  A process for documenting community engagement activities (reports, meeting minutes).
•  A process to document the committee is active (meeting minutes).

in. Community Awareness and Education

Each family planning project must establish and implement planned activities to facilitate
community awareness of and access to family planning services through the provision of
community information and education programs. Sub«recipients must provide for community
education and participation programs which should serve to "achieve community understanding
of the objectives of the project, inform the community of the availability of services, and
promote continued participation in the project by persons to whom family planning services may
be beneficial" (42 CFR 59.5(b)(3)). The community education program(s) should be based on an
assessment of the needs of the community and should contain an implementation and evaluation
strategy. The community participation committee described above can be utilized to execute the
functions and operations of this requirement.

Sub-recipients must establish within policies and procedures:

•  A process for assessing community awareness of and need for access to family planning
services.

•  A process for documenting implementation and evaluation of plan activities.
•  A community education and service promotion plan that:

o  states that the purpose is to achieve community understanding of the objectives of
the project, make known the availability of services to potential clients, and
encourage continued participation by persons to whom family planning may be
beneficial,

o promotes the use of family planning among those with unmet need,
o  utilizes an appropriate range of methods to reach the community, and
o  includes an evaluation strategy.

Suggestions for Community Awareness and Education Activities:

•  Community Presentations (e.g., providing education at a local school on a reproductive
health topic).

•  Attending community events to provide health education to attendees (e.g., tabling
events, community meetings).

•  Conduct presentations to inform community partners ((mental health and primary care
providers, shelters, prisons, faith-based organizations, school personnel, parent groups,
social service agencies, food pantries, and other community organizations) of services,

locations, and hours.

• Meet with community partners and coalitions to discuss family planning program and
potential referral opportunities.
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Attachment 3- Title X Family Planning Infbfmaiien and Education (I8E) Advtsory and Conwiunlty Participation GuldetinesAgreement

Post up-to-date program information at a range of community venues, including virtual
platforms (websites, social media, etc.)-

Distribute and post flyers.

Distribute program information at community events (e.g., tabling events).

CommuDity Participation, Education, and Project Promotion Agreement

On behalf of , I hereby certify that 1 have read and understand this
(Agency Name)

policy regarding Community Engagement, Education, and Project Promotion as detailed above.

I agree to ensure all agency staff and subcontractors working on the Title X project understand

and adhere to the aforementioned policies and procedures set forth.

Printed Name

Signature Date
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NH Family Planning Program (NH FPP) Priorities:

1. Ensuring that all clients receive contraceptive and other scr\'iccs in a vohtmary. c//en/-ccnicred and non-coercive manner in accordance with
national standards and guidelines, such as the Centers Tor Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). Qualiiy Family Planning (Ql-P) and NH
FPP clinical guidelines and scope of services, with the goal of supporting clients" decisions related to preventing or achieving pregnancy:

2. Assuring the delivery of quality family planning and related preventive health services, with priority given to individuals from low-income
families;

3. Providing access to a broad range of acceptable and cfTcctive family planning methods and related preventive health services in accordance
with the NH FPP program clinical guidelines and national standards of core. 'I"hcsc scr>'ices include, but arc not limited to, contraceptive •
services including fertility awareness based methods, pregnancy testing and counseling, services to help clients achieve pregnancy, basic
infertility services, STD services, preconception health services, and breast ond cervical cancer screening. The broad range of services docs
not include abortion as a method of family planning:

4. Assessing clients' reproductive life plan/rcproductivc intentions as part of dctcmiining the need for family planning services, ond providing
preconception scn'iccs as stipulated in QFP;

5. Following a model that promotes optimal health outcomes (physical, mental and social health) for the client by emphasizing comprehensive
primary health care services ond substance use disorder screening, along with family planning sen-iccs preferably ot the same location or
through nearby referral providers;

6. Providing counseling for adolescents that encourages the delay the onset of sc.nuoI activity ond abstinence as on option to reduce sexual risk,
promotes parental involvement, and discusses ways to resist sexual coercion;

7. Identifying individuals, families, and communities in need, but not currently receiving family planning scr^'ices, through outreach to hard-to-
reach and/or vulnerable populations, and pannering with other community-based health and social scn-icc providers that provide needed
services; and

8. Demonstrating that the project's infrastructure and management practices ensure sustainabiliiy of family planning ond reproductive health
services delivery throughout the proposed service area including:

o  Incorporation of cenincd Electronic Health Record (EHR) s>'siems (when available) that have the ability to capture family planning
data within structured fields;

0  Evidence of contracts with insurance plans ond s>'stems for third party billing as well as the ability to facilitate the enrollment of
clients into private insurance and Medicaid, optimally onsitc; and to report on numbers of clients assisted and enrolled; and

o Addressing the comprehensive health care nccd.s of clients through fomial. robust linkages or integration with comprehcn.«!ivc primary
carc providers.
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New Hampshire will also consider and Incorporate the following key issues within its Service Deliver^' Work Plan:

•  Adhere to the most current Family Planning Scope of Scn iccs and NH FPP clinical guidelines;
•  Establish efficient and eiTectivc progrant management and operations;
•  Provide patient access to a broad range of contraceptive options, including Long Acting Reversible Contraceptives (LARC) and fertility

awaicncss based methods (FABM), other pharmaceuticals, and laboraiorv- tests, preferably on site;
• ' Use of performance measures to regularly pcrfon'n quality assurana and quality improvement activities, including the use of measures to

monitor contraceptive use;

•  Establish formal linkages and documented partnerships with comprehensive primary- care providers, HIV care and treatment providers, and
mental health, drug and alcohol treatmcni providers;

•  Incorporate the National HIV/AIDS Strategy (NHAS) and CDC's "Revised Recommendations for HIV Testing of Adults. Adolescents and
Pregnant Women in Health Care Settings;" and

•  Conduct efficient and streamlined electronic dota collection, reporting and analysis for internal use in monitoring staff or program
performance, program efficiency, and staff productivity in order to improve the quality and delivery of family planning services.

{Z
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Goal I: Maintain access to family planning scnlccs for low-lncomc populations across the state.

Pcrfonnance (NDiCATOR #1:

Through June 20XX, the following targets hove been set:
la. clients will be served
lb • clients <100% FPL will be served

Ic. clients <250% FPL will be served
Id. clients <20 years old will be served
Ic. clients on Mcdicoid will be scnxd
If. male clients will be served

Through June 20XX. the following targets have been set:
la. clients will be served

lb clients <100% FPL will be served
Ic. clients <250% FPL will be scr^xd
Id. clients <20 years old will be scrvxd
le. clients on Mcdicaid will be served
If. mole clients will be served

SFV XX Outcome

la. Clients senxd

lb Clients <100% FPL
Ic. Clients <250% FPL

Id. Clients <20 years old
Ic. Clients on Mcdicaid

If. Clients - Male

'g. Women <25 years old positive for
Chlamydia

SPY XX Outcome

la. Clients scrvxd

lb Clients <100% FPL

Ic. . Clients <250% FPL

Id. Clients <20 years old
le. Clients on Mcdicaid

If. Clients - Male

'g- Women <25 years old positive for
Chlamydia
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Cofll 2: Assure access to quality clinical and diagnostic ser>-iccs and a broad range of contraceptive methods.

By August 31. 20XX lOOVoofsub-recipicnl ogcncics will have a policy for how ihcy will include abstinence in their education of ovailobic methods
in being o form of birth control amongst family planning clients, specifically those clients less than 18 years old. {Performance Measure MS) '

Sub-rccipicni provides grantee a copy of abstinence education policy for review and approval by August 31. 20XX.

Coal 3: Assure thai all women of chlldbcaring age reeeiving Title X scr>-kes receive preconception care services through risk assessment
(i.e., screening, educational & health promotion, and Inicrr-cntlons) that will reduce reproductive risk.

By August 31. 20XX, 100% of sub-recipient agencies will have a policy for how they will provide STD/HIV harm reduction education with all
family planning clients. (Performance Measure M6)

Sub-rccipicnt provides grantee a copy of STD/HIV harm reduction education policy for review and approval by August 31, 20XX.

Goal 4; Provide appropriate education and networking to ensure vulnerable populations arc aware of the availability' of family planning
services and to Inform public audiences obout Title X priorities.

By August 31 St. of each SPY, sub-rccipicnis will complete an outreach and education report of the number of community service providers that they
contacted in order to establish effective outreach for populoiions in need of reproductive health scr\'iccs. {Performance Measure ft?)

I—I Sub-rccipicnt provides grantee a copy of completed outreach & education rcpon by August 31. 20XX.

□ Sub-rccipicnt provides grantee o copy of completed outreach & education report by AugusfS 1, 20XX.
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Goal 5: The NH FPP program will assure sub-recipient agencies ore providing appropriate training and technical assistance to ensure Title
X family planning staff (e.g., any staff with clinical, administrative and/or fiscal responsibilities) ore aware of federal guidelines, program
priorities, and new developments In reproductive health and that they have the skills to respond.

By August 3 Isi of each SFY, sub-recipients wll! submit an annual training report for clinical & non-clinical stall that panicipatcd in the provision of
family planning services and/or activities to ensure adequate knowledge of Title X policies, practices and guidelines. {Performance Measure HS)

^ Sub-rccipicnt prgvidcs grantee a copy of completed annual training report by August 31, 20XX.
I  I Sub-rccipicnt provides grantee a copy of completed annual training rcpon by August 31, 20XX,

Goal 6: Provide counseling for minors that encourages delaying the onset of sexual acilvitx' and abstinence as an option to reduce sc.vual risk,
promotes parental involvement, and discusses ways to resist sexual coercion. '

Within 30 days of Governor and Council Approval, 100% of .sub-rccipicni agencies will have a policy for how they will provide minors counseling to
all clients under 18 years of age.

Q Sub-rccipicnt provides grantee a copy of minors' policy for review and approval within 30 days of Governor and Council. Approval
Clinical Performance:

The following section i.s to report inpuls/activiiics/cvaluaiion and outcomes for ihrcc'oul of si.\ Tamily Planning Clinical Performance Measures as
listed bciow;

•  Performance Measure: The percent of all female family planning clients of reproductive age (15-44) who receive preconception counseling
•  Performance Measure: The percent of female family planning clients < 25 years old screened for chlamydia infection.
•  Performance Measure: The percent of women aged 15-44 at risk of unintended prcgnancv that is provided a long-acting reversible

contraceptive (LARC) method (Implant or (UD/IUS)
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Work Plan Instructions:

Please use ihc following icmplaic lo complete the nvo-ycar work plan for the 1-Y XX & FY XX. The work plan componcnis include:
•  Project Goal
•  Project Objectives
•  Inpuis^Rcsotirccs
•  Planned Activities

•  Planned Evaluation Activities

Project Goals:
Broad statements that provide overall direction for the Family Planning Ser\'iccs.

Project Objectives: .
List 2-} objectivesfor each gboi Objectives represent the steps an agency will take to achieve each goat. ̂ Encltolyicciivc shot/Id he Spcci/ic}
'Measurable, Achievable. HMlisiiCi and Thne'phased (SMARff^ Each objective must be related and contribute directly to the accontplishmcnt of the
stated goal.

Input/Resources:
List all the inputs, resources, contributions and/or investments (e.g.. staff, bus vouchers, training, etc.) the agency will use to implement the planned
activities and plonned evaluation activities. Note: Inputs listed on your work plan, such as staff, should also be accounted for in your budget.

Planned Acilvliies;

Activities describe what your agency plans to do to bring about the intended objectives (e.g., bus vouchers, trainings, etc.)

Evaluation Activities;

Activities that tell us how you will determine whether or not the planned activities were effeetive (i.e., did you achieve your measurable objective?)

Work Plan Pcrformancc.Ouleomc:
At the end of each SPY you will report your annual outcomes, indicate if lorgcts were met, describe activities that contributed to your oiitcon^s and
c.sploin what your agency intends to do differently over the next year.
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Sample Work Plan
Project Coal: To provide to patients/families support that enhance clinical services and treatment plans for population health improvement
Project Objective ffl: (Care Management/Health Coaching/Behavior Change Assistance): By June 30, 2017, 60 V* of patients who compjcte n SWAP
(Sustained Weltness Action Plan) will report an Improvement in health/well-being, as measured by responses to a Quality of Life Indcs.

I INPUT/RRSOIIRCES PLANNED ACTIVITIES,

RN Health Coaches

Core Management Team

Clinical Teams

SehaNnoral Health and LCSW staff

SWAP matcriols ond SWAP

Scir-Managemeni Programs and Tools

6.

Clinical Teams \n)l assess patients/families' potential for benefit from n>orc intensive cafe management and
refer eases to Care Management Team and Health Coaching, as oppropriate.
Care Management Team may refer, based on external data (such as payer claims data and high-utilization data)
RN Health Coaches assess patients/families and engage in SWAP, os appropriate.
SWAP intervention may include Team-based interventions, stich as family meetings with Social Work.
Behavioral Health, etc.

Comprehensive SWAP may include referral to additional self-management activities, such as chronic disease
sclf-monagcmcm program workshops.
RN Health Coaches will administer Quality Of Life Index at start ond completion of SWAP.

EVALUATION ACTI VITIES,

I. Director of Quality will ena!)'ze data scmi-annually to evaluate performance.
2- Care Management Team will conduct regular review's of SWAP results as pan of weekly meetings and

examine qualitative data.
Project Objective 1^2: (Care Mnnagcmcnt/Carc Transitions): By June 30, 2017, 75% of patients discharged from an inpaticnt hospital stay during (he
measurement period will have received Care Transitions follow-up from agency staff ; ,
INPUT/RESOURCES " PLANNED ACTIVITIES J
Nursing/Triage Staff

Core Transitions Team

Care Management Team

GHR

Transitions of Care template
documentation

Access to local Hospital data

1. Nursing/Triage Staff will access available data on inpaticnt discharges each business day and complete
Transition of Care follow-up. as per procedure.

2. Care Transitions Champion and other Core Transitions Team members will participate in weekly telephone
calls to do core coordination activities and status updates for patients w'ho are inpatienis in loeol critical Access
Hospital, have just been discharged, or that staff feel may be at risk for an upcoming admission.

3. SiafTconducting Transitions of Care follow-up will update patients' record, including medication
reconciliation. -

EVALUATION ACI IVITIES •

1. Care Management Tcaiit will evaluate available data (example; payer claints data, internal audits/reports)
scmi-onnualty to evnlunic program effectiveness on paiicni care coordination and odmission raics/ulilizniion

2. Director of Quality will run Care Tran.siiions report scini-onnually to evaluate performance.
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Program Coal: Assure Ihal all women ofchitdbearing age receiving family planning services receive preconception care services through risk
assessment (i.e., screening, educational <8 health promotion, and interventions) that will reduce reproductive risk.

Performnncc Measure: The percent of all female family planning clients of reproductive age (15-44) who receive preconception counseling

Project ObiccHvc:

INPUT/RESOURCES PLANNED ACTIVITIES

EVALUATION ACTIVITIES

WORK PLAN PERFORMANCE OUTCOME fl'o be completed at end of each SFV)
SPY XX Outcome: Insen your ag«nc\''s dnta/ouicome results herefor July /. 20XX- June SO. 20XX.

Targci/Objcctivc Mel
Narrative; Explain what happened during the year that contributed to success (i.e.. PDSA cycles etc.)

Targci/Objcciive Not Met
Narrative for Not Meeting Target: Explain what happened during the year that contributed to sttccess (i.e.. PDSA cycles etc.)
Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently) to achieve target/objectivefor nc-xt year.

Revised Work Plan Attached (Please check If work plan has been revised)
SPY XX Outcome: Insert your agenc}' 's data/outcome results here for July I. 20XX- June 30. 20XX

Targci/Objcctivc Mel
Narrative; Explain what happened during the year that contributed to success (i.e.. PDSA cycles etc.)

Targci/Objcctivc Not Mel
Narrative for Not Meeting Target: Explain what happened during the year, why measure was not met. improvement activities, barriers, etc.
Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently) to achieve largei/objecilwfor nixxi year

O)
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Program Goal: To promote the availability ofSTD screening per CDC screening recommendationsfor chiamydia and other STDs (as well as
HIV testinR) that have potential long-term impact on fertility and pregnancy

Performance Meajurc: The percent of female family planning clients <25 years old screened for chiamydia infection

Prolect Objective:

INPUT/RESOURCES . PLANNED ACTIVITIES

evaluation activities

\  WORK PLAN PERFORMANCE OUTCOME fTo be completed at end of each SEV)
SPY XX Outcome: Insert your agency's data/outcome results herefor July /. 20XX- June 30. 20XX

Tarect/Obiectivc Mel

Narrative; Explain what happened during the year that contributed to success (7.e.. PDSA cycles etc.)
Targci/Objcciivc Not Met '

Narrative for Not Meeting Target: Explain what happened during the year, why measure was not met, improvement activities, barriers, etc.

Proposed Improvement Plan; Explain what your agency will do (differently) to achieve target/objectivefor next year.
'  Revised Work Plan Attached (Plettsc check if work plan has been revised)

SPY XX Outcome: Insert yvtir agency's data/outcome results here for July I, 20XX' June 30. 20XX

Target/Objective Mel
Narrative; Explain what happened during the year that contributed to success fi.c.. PDSA cycles etc.)

Target/Objective Not Met
Narrative for Not Meeting Target: Explain what happened during the year, why measure was not met. improvement activities, barriers, etc.
Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what vour agency will do (differently) to achieve target/objective for next year
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Program Coal: Assure access to quality clinical and diagnostic services atjd a broad range of contraceptive methods.

Performance Measure: The pcrceni of women aged 15-^4 ai risk of unintended pregnancy thai is provided a long-acting reversible contraceptive
(LARC) method (Implant or lUD/IUS)
Project Objcedve:.

INPUT/RESOURCES PLANNED ACTIVITIES

EVALUATION ACTIVITIES

WORK PLAN PERFORMANCE OUTCOiME fTo be completed at end of each SFV)

SPY XX Outcontc: Insert your agenc\' 's dala/oiiicome re.^ulis herefor July I. 20XX- June 30. 20XX

Targei/Objeciivc Mel
NarratK'c; Explain what happened during the year that contributed to success (i.e.. PDSA cycles etc.)

Target/Objeciivc Not Met
Narrative for Not Meeting Target:

Proposed Improvement Plan: £rp/o;n what your agency will do (differently) to achieve largct/objectis-e for ncet year.
Revised Work Plan Attached {Please check if work plan has been revised)

SPY XX Outcome: Irutn your agency's daia/oiitcoine results herefor July I. 20.\'X- June 30. 20XX

Target/Objective Mel
Narrative; Ex-plain what happened during the year that contributed lo success (i.e.. PDSA cycles etc.)

Target/Objective Not Met
Narrative for Not Meeting Target: Ex'plain what happened during the year, why measure was not met. improvement aciix'iiies, barriers, etc.
Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently) to achieve torgci/objcclh'c for nett year.
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Anachment 5 - Family Ranning Reporting Calendar

NH Family Planning Reporting Calendar SFY 22-24

res•  SFY 2021 Clinical Guidelines signaiu

•  FP Work Plan

SFY 22 (Js)nuar>' 1, 2022 - December 31, 2023)

Due Date: Reporting Requirement:

January 14, 2022

•only for those who. were a title X SUB-

RECIPIENT FROM JANUARY 1. 202IOUNE 30, 2021

FPAR Reporting:
•  Source of Revenue

•  Clinical Data (HIV & Pap Tests)
•  Table 13: PTE/Provider Type

March 1 1.2022 Sliding Fee Scales/Discount of Services

Aprils, 2022 Public Health Sterilization Records (January-March)
Laie April - May (Official dates shared when
released from HRSA)

340B Annual Rcccnification

(http://ow.ly/NBJC30dmcF7)

May 6, 2022 Pharmacy Protocols/Cuidelincs

May 27, 2022 l&E Material List with Advisory Board Approval Dates

SFY 23 (July 1,2022- June 30, 2023)

Due Date:. Reporting Requirement;

July 8. 2022 Public Health Sterilization Records (April-June) .

July 15, 2022 Clinical Guidelines Signatures

July - August 2022 (ofTlcial date TBD) STD Webinar Signatures

October 7. 2022 Public Health Sterilization Records (July-September)

Januar>' 13, 2023 Public Health Sterilization Records (October - December)

Januao' 13, 2023 FPAR Reporting:

•  Source of Revenue

•  Clinical Data (HIV & Pap Tests)
•  Table 13: PTE/Provider Type

January 31, 2023

a

•  Patient Satisfaction Sur\'eys
•  Outreach and Education Report
•  Annual Training Report
•  Work Plan Update/Outcome Report
•  Data Trend Tables (DTT)

March 10. 2023 Sliding Fee Scales/Discount of Services

April 14,2023 Public Health Sterilization Records (January-March)
Late April - May (Official dates shared when
released from HRSA)

3408 Annual Reccrtification

(http://ow.ly/NBJG30dmcF7)

May 5, 2023 Pharmacy Protocols/Guidelines

May 26. 2023 l&E Material List with Advisory Board Approval Dates

SFY 24 (July 1, 2023 - Jiiiic 30, 2024) contract ends on December 31, 2023

July 14. 2023 Clinical Guidelines Signatures (effective July 1, 2023)
July - August 2023 (official date TBD) STD Webinar Signatures „
October 6, 2023 Public Health Sterilization Records (July-September)
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Anacnment 5 - Fsmi^ Planning Reporting Calendar

January 12, 2024 FPAR Reporting:

•  Source of Revenue

•  Clinical Daia (HIV & Pap Tests)

•  Table 13: FTE/ProviderType

January 31, 2024 •  Patient Satisfaction Sur\'eys
•  Outreach and Education Report

•  Annual Training Report

• Work Plan Update/Outcome Report

•  Data Trend Tables (DTT)

AH dates and reporting requirements are subject to change at the discretion ofthe NH Family Planning Program and
Title X Federal Requirements.
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Attachmenl 6 - FPAR Dale Ele(T>enis (SAMPLE DRAFT)

New Hampshire Planning Program
Family Planning Annual Report (FPAR)

Existing Data Elements
Proposed FPAR 2.0 Additional Data Elements

Age Clinical Provider Identifier

Annual Household Income Contraceptive Counseling
Birth Sex Contraceptive provision method (prescription, referral)
Breast Exam Counseling to achieve pregnancy provided

CBE Referral CT performed at visit

Chlamydia Test (CT) CT Test Result

Contraceptive method Initial Date of Last HIV test

Contraceptive method at exit Date of Last HPV Co-test

Date of Birth Date of Pap Tests Last 5 years
English Proficiency Diastolic blood pressure

Ethnicity Ever Had Sex

Gonorrhea Test (6C) Facility Identifier

HIV Test-Rapid GC performed at visit
HIV Test - Standard GC Test Result

Household Family Size Gravidity

Medical Services Height

Office Visit - new or established patient HIV test performed at visit

PapTest HIV Referral Recommended Date

Patient Number • HIV Referral Visit Completed Dale

Preconception Counseling HPV test performed at visit

Pregnancy Status HPV Test Result

Pregnancy Test Method(s) Provided At Exit

Primary Contraceptive Method Parity

Primary Reimbursement Pap Test in the last 5 years

Principle Health Insurance Coverage Pregnancy Future Intention

Procedure Visit Type Pregnancy Status Reporting
Provider Role (e.g., MD, CNM, NP) Reason for no contraceptive method at intake

Race Sex in the last 12 Months

Reason for no method at exit Sex in the last 3 Months

Syphilis test result Smoking status
Site Systolic blood pressure

Visit Date Syphilis test performed at visit

Zip code Weight
••
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Family Planning fFP') Performance Indicator #1

Indicators:

la. clients will be served
lb. clients < 100% FPL will be served
Ic. , clients < 250% FPL will be served
Id. clients < 20 years of age will be served
Ie. clients ort Medicaid at their last visit will be served
If. male clients will be served

Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1 b

SFY XX Outcome

la. clients served

lb. clients <100% FPL

Ic. clients <250% FPL

Id. clients <20vears of age

le. clients on Medicaid

If. male clients

le. women <25 years of age

positive forchlamydia

Indicator: The percent of family planning clients under 100% FPU in the family planning

caseload.

Goal: To increase access to reproductive services to low-income residents.

Definition: Numerator: Total number of clients <100% FPL served.

Denominator: Total number of clients served,

Data Source: Family Planning Data Base System

Family Planning (TP) Performance Indicator #1 c

Indicator: The percent of family planning clients under 250% FPL.

• Goal: To increase access to reproductive services to low-income residents.

Definition: Numerator: Total number of clients <250% FPL served.

Denominator: Total number of clients served.

Data Source: Family Planning Data Base System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator d

Indicator: The percent of family planning clients under 20 years of age.

Goal: • To increase access to reproductive services to adolescents.

Definition: Numerator: Total number of clients under 20 years of age served.

Denominator: Total number of clients served.

Data Source: Family Planning Data Base System
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Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1 e

Indicator: The percent of family planning clients that were Medicaid recipients at the time of their
last visit.

Coal: To improve access to reproductive services to Medicaid clients.

Definition: Numerator; Number of clients that used Medicaid as payment source.

Denominator: Total number of clients served.

Data Source: Family Planning Data Base System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1 f

Indicator: The percent of family planning male clients.

Goal: To increase access to reproductive services to males.

Definition: Numerator: Total number of male clients served.

Denominator: Total number of clients served.

Data Source: Family Planning Data Base System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1 g

Indicator: The proportion of women <25 years old screened for chlamydia that tested positive.

Goal: To improve diagnosis of asymptomatic chlamydia infection in the age group with
highest risk.

Definition: Numerator: Total number of women <25 years old that tested positive for chlamydia.

Denominator: The total number of women <25 years old screened for chlamydia.

Data Source: Electronic Medical Records (EMR)

Family Planning (FP> Performance Measure #1

Measure: The percent of family planning clients of reproductive age who received preconception
counseling.

.Goal: To assure that all women of childbearing age receiving Title X services receive
preconception care services through risk assessment (i.e., screening, educational &
health promotion, and interventions) that will reduce reproductive risk. I ^
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Definition: Numerator: Toial number of clienis of reproductive age who receive preconception
health counseling.

Dcnomioator: Total number of clients of reproductive age.

Data Source: Electronic Medical Records (EMR)

Family Planning fFP) Performance Measure #2

Measure: The percent of female family planning clienis < 25 years old screened for chlamydia
infection.

Goal: To improve diagnosis of asymptomatic chlamydia infection in the age group with
highest risk.

Definition: Numerator: Total number of chlamydia tests for female clients <25 years old.

Denominator: Total number of female clients < 25 years old.

Data Source: Family Planning Data Base System

Family Planning (FP> Performance Measure #3

Measure: The percentage of women aged 15-44 years at risk of unintended pregnancy that is
provided a most effective (sterilization, implants, intrautcrinc devices or systems (lUD/IUS)) or
moderately effective (injectable, oral pills, patch, ring, or diaphragm) contraceptive method.

Goal: To improve utilization of most and moderately effective contraceptive methods to
reduce unintended pregnancy.

Definition: Numerator: The number of women aged 15-44 years at risk for unintended pregnancy
provided a most or moderately effective contraceptive method.

Denominator: The number of women aged 15-44 years at risk for unintended
pregnancy.

Data Source; Family Planning Data Base System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #4

Measure: The percentage of women aged 15-44 years at risk of unintended pregnancy that is
provided a lone-actinc reversible contraceptive (LARC) (implants or intrauterinc
devices systems (lUD/IUS)) method.

Goal: • To improve utilization of LARC methods to reduce unintended pregnancy.
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Definition: Numerator: The number of women aged 15-44 years at risk of pregnancy that is
provided a long-acting reversible contraceptive (LARC) method (implants or lUD/IUS).

Denominator: The number of women aged 15-44 years at risk for unintended
pregnancy.

Data Source: Family Planning Data Base System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #S

Measure: The percent of family planning clients less than 18 years of age who received education
that abstinence Is a viable method/form of birth control.

Goal: To improve access to a broad range of effective contraceptive methods, including
abstinence, to prevent unintended pregnancy, STDs and HIV/AIDS.

Definition: Numerator: Total number of clients under the age of 18 who received abstinence
education.

Denominator: Total number of clients under the age of 18.

Data Source: Electronic Medical Records (EM R)

Family Planning (FP> Performance Measure #6

Measure: The percentage of family planning clients who received STD/HIV reduction education.

Goal: To ensure that all clients receive STD/HIV reduction education.

Definition: Numerator: The total number of clients that received STD/HIV reduction education.

Denominator: The total number of clients served.

Data Source: Electronic Medical Records (EMR)

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure U1

Community Partnership Report

Definition: This measure requires for meetings (in-person and/or virtual) with agencies or individuals
intended to increase linkages between the family planning program and key partners in the community.
Outreach efforts should include: (I) learning about the partner agency (2) informing the partner
agency about family planning services and (3) identifying areas where linkages can be established.
The most effective outreach is targeted to a specific audience and/or purpose and is directed based on^^
identified needs. All sites are required to make one contact annually with the local DCYF
Please be very specific in describing the outcomes of the linkages you were able to establish. I ^
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SAMPLE:

Outreach Plan Outreach Report

Agency/Individual
Partner Contacted

Purpose Contact

Date

Outcome - Linkages
Established

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #8

Annual Training Report

Definition: This measure requires the family planning delegate to submit an annual training report for
clinical & non-clinical staff that participate in the provision of family planning services and/or
activities to ensure adequate knowledge of Title X policies, practices and guidelines.
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Allachmeni 8 • NH FPP TANF Policy

TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE FOR NEEDY FAMILIES FUNDING POLICY
Section; Maternal.& Child Health Sub Seciion(s): Family Planning Program Version:' 1.0

Effective Date: [INSERT DATE] Next Review Date:. [INSERT DATE]

Approved by: HALEY JOHNSTON

Authority NH Department of Health and Human Services, Division of

Economic and Housing Supports

The purpose of this policy is to describe the NH Family Planning Program's (NH FPP)
process for ensuring sub-recipient compliance with proper utilization of the Tcmporar>'
Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) funding awarded by the NH Department of
Health and Human Services, NH Division of Public Health Services, and as administered
and required by the U.S Department of Health and Human Services (HHS),
Administration for Children and Families (ACF), Office of Family Assistance (OFA).

I. TANF Funding Policy

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) funding must only be utilized by sub-
recipients for family planning program outreach and promotional activities or events that
support knowledge of and access to family planning services by populations in need. Outreach
and promotional activities/events may include, but are not limited to:

•  Outreach coordination.

•  Community table events.

•  Social media.

•  Outreach to schools.

Sub-recipients should produce a plan that documents a promotional strategy and marketing
campaign that includes identincalion of populations in need of family planning services,
details activities and projects for reaching the target population and specifies evaluation
measures. Sub-recipients must submit an Outreach & Education Report on an annual basis
on August 31 ofeach contract year or as requested by the NH FPP.

Outreach efforts must he specific to the NH family planning program and sub-recipients
must not report any outreach efforts conducted by any other program within their
organization.

Suggestions for TANF-funded promotional activities/events:
•  Community Presentations (e.g., providing education at a local school on a reproductive

health topic)
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Altachment 8 • NH FPP TANF Policy

•  Attend community events to provide health education to attendees (e.g., tabling events,
community meetings).

•  Distribute program information at community events (e.g., tabling events).

•  Conduct presentations to inform community partners (mental health and primary care

providers, shelters, prisons, faith-based organizations, school personnel, parent groups,

social service agencies, food pantries, and other community organizations) of services,

locations, and hours.

• Meet with community partners and coalitions to discuss the family planning program

and potential referral oppoitunities.

•  Post up-to-date program information at a range of community venues, including virtual

platforms (e.g., websites, social media).

•  Distribute and post flyers.

•  Create and post social media to promote family planning services.

TANF Funding Policy Agreement

On behalf of , I hereby certify that I have read and understand the
(Agency Name)

TANF Funding PoHcy as detailed above. I agree to ensure alt agency staff and subcontractors

working on the Title X project understand and adhere to the aforementioned policies and

procedures set forth.

Authorizing Official: Printed Name

Authorizing Official Signature Date

[o)
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